
 
 
 
 
  

 
                      MEETING AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE 
PLAN COMMISSION 

Memorial Hall – Memorial Building 
19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

Wednesday, November 10, 2021 
7:30 p.m. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
 
2. ROLL CALL  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Non-Agenda Items) 
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – October 13, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
5. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
a) Case A-23-2021 – 920 N. York Road – Design Review Permit and Sign Permit Review to allow 

for the installation of new sign cabinet on the existing ground sign base for The Derm Institute 
located at 920 N. York Road in the O-2 Limited Office District 
 

b) Case A-18-2021 – 33 E. First Street – Frederick Lynn Haberdasshere - Exterior Appearance and 
Site Plan Review to allow for façade improvements to the existing building located at 33 E. First 
Street in the B-2 Central Business District 

 
6. SCHEDULING OF PUBLIC HEARINGS – No discussion will take place regarding the requested 

application except to determine a time and date for the public hearing – The next regular Plan 
Commission meeting is scheduled to take place on Wednesday, December 8, 2021 

 
a) Case A-27-2021 – 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 – Special Use Permit to allow for a Martial Arts 

Studio / Physical Fitness Facility for Premier Martial Arts (IJKLM, LLC) at 777 N. York Road, Unit 
21 in the B-1 Community Business District 

 
7. SIGN PERMIT REVIEW 
 

a) Case A-28-2021 – 6 W. Hinsdale Avenue – Indifference Salon – Installation of One (1) Wall Sign 
and One (1) Permanent Window Sign 
 

b) Case A-26-2021 – 600 W. Ogden Avenue – ProMedica Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation – 
Installation of a New Sign Face on an Existing Non-Conforming Ground Sign 
 

8. PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
a) Case A-25-2021 – 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue – Performance Wealth Management – Exterior 

Appearance Review, Site Plan Review, and Sign Permit Review to allow for the installation of one 
(1) new wall sign and exterior changes to the façade of the building located at 36 E. Hinsdale 
Avenue in the B-2 Central Business District 
 



2 
 

b) Case A-26-2021 – 4 N. Washington Street – Chase Bank Parking Lot Lighting – Exterior 
Appearance and Site Plan Review to allow for the installation of two (2) parking lot light poles and 
one (1) wall-mounted light for Chase Bank located at 4 N. Washington Street in the B-1 
Community Business District 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
Public comments are welcome on any topic related to the business of the Commission at Regular and Special 
Meetings during the portion of the meeting devoted to a particular agenda item, or during the period designated for 
public comment for non-agenda items. Individuals who wish to comment must be recognized by the Chairperson 
and then speak at the podium, beginning by identifying themselves by name and address. All members of the public 
are requested to keep their written comments or testimony to three pages or less, and speakers are requested to keep 
their live comments or testimony to five minutes or less. Submissions or comments exceeding those limits may, if time 
allows and at the discretion of the Chairperson, be presented after all others have had an opportunity to testify, 
comment or have their comments read. Matters on this Agenda may be continued from time to time without further 
notice, except as otherwise required under the Illinois Open Meetings Act. 
 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the 
facilities, are requested to contact Brad Bloom, ADA Coordinator at 630-789-7007 or by TDD at 630-789-7022 
promptly to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. Additional 
information may be found on the Village’s website at www.villageofhinsdale.org 

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/


MINUTES 
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

PLAN COMMISSION 
MEMORIAL HALL  

19 E. CHICAGO AVENUE, HINSDALE, IL 
October 13, 2021 

7:30 P.M. 

Call to Order & Roll Call 
The regularly scheduled meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairman Cashman 
on Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 7:31 PM.   

Roll call was taken and a quorum was present at the meeting. 

PRESENT: Chairman Steve Cashman, Commissioner Julie Crnovich, Commissioner Jim 
Krillenberger, Commissioner Gerald Jablonski, Commissioner Anna Fiascone, 
Commissioner Mark Willobee, Commissioner Shelley Carter, Commissioner 
Patrick Hurley, Commissioner Cynthia Curry 

ABSENT: None 

ALSO PRESENT:      Bethany Salmon, Village Planner 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
Chairman Cashman asked for any public comments. There were no public comments pertaining to non-
agenda items.  

Approval of the Minutes – September 8, 2021 

A motion was made by Commissioner Krillenberger, seconded by Commissioner Crnovich, to approve 
the September 8, 2021 draft minutes, as submitted. The motion carried by the roll call vote of 6-0 as 
follows: 

Ayes: Commissioner Crnovich, Commissioner Krillenberger, Commissioner Jablonski, 
Commissioner Willobee, Commissioner Fiascone, Chairman Cashman 

Nays: None 
Abstain: Commissioner Curry, Commissioner Hurley, Commissioner Carter 
Absent: None 

Public Hearing 
a) Case A-23-2021 – 920 N. York Road – Design Review Permit and Sign Permit Review to allow

for the installation of a new sign cabinet on the existing ground sign base for The Derm Institute
located at 920 N. York Road in the O-2 Limited Office District

Please refer to Attachment 1 for the transcript for Public Hearing Case A-23-2021. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Willobee, seconded by Commissioner Hurley to open the public 
hearing.  The motion carried by a roll call vote of 9-0 as follows:  

Approved



2 

Ayes: Commissioner Crnovich, Commissioner Krillenberger, Commissioner Jablonski, 
Commissioner Willobee, Commissioner Fiascone, Commissioner Curry, 
Commissioner Hurley, Commissioner Carter, Chairman Cashman 

Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

Stephen Hull, representing the sign company Doyle Signs, Inc., and Dr. Jordan Carqueville were present 
at the meeting to address the Commission. Mr. Hull provided a summary of the proposal and shared 
some examples with the Commission. Discussion followed about the color, size of the lettering, the 
surrounding landscape, and the illumination.   

A motion was made by Commissioner Hurley, seconded by Commissioner Jablonski, to approve Case 
A-23-2021 – 920 N. York Road – Design Review Permit and Sign Permit Review to allow for the
installation of a new sign cabinet on the existing ground sign base for The Derm Institute located at 920
N. York Road in the O-2 Limited Office District.  The motion carried by a roll call vote of 9-0 as follows:

Ayes: Commissioner Crnovich, Commissioner Krillenberger, Commissioner Jablonski, 
Commissioner Willobee, Commissioner Fiascone, Commissioner Curry, 
Commissioner Hurley, Commissioner Carter, Chairman Cashman 

Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

A motion was made by Commissioner Krillenberger, seconded by Commissioner Jablonski to close the 
public hearing.  The motion carried by a roll call vote of 9-0 as follows:  

Ayes: Commissioner Crnovich, Commissioner Krillenberger, Commissioner Jablonski, 
Commissioner Willobee, Commissioner Fiascone, Commissioner Curry, 
Commissioner Hurley, Commissioner Carter, Chairman Cashman 

Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

Public Meeting 
a) Case A-18-2021 – 33 E. First Street – Frederick Lynn Haberdasshere – Exterior Appearance

and Site Plan Review to allow for façade improvements to the existing building located at 33
E. First Street in the B-2 Central Business District

Aaron Comes, the building owner, and David Szalko, the project architect, were present at the meeting 
to address the Commission and provided a summary of the proposed changes.   

Mr. Comes went through a series of photographs to provide an understanding of the proposal.  Mr. Comes 
stated that picture six (6) showed the historic red brick that will be preserved.  Mr. Comes showed an 
example of the limestone base trim that will be added to the bottom of the wall to cover existing damage. 
Mr. Comes stated that wood slat trim would be installed under the overhangs on first and second floors.  

Mr. Comes stated he would like to work with the Village and adjacent property owner in the future to 
replace the concrete in the public and private walkways to further beautify the space. Mr. Comes 
discussed a possibility of installing a gate in the future, similar to that of the adjacent theatre building and 
repainting the side wall the original white color.  



3 

Mr. Comes discussed the rear door installation to help with loading, improve aesthetics and provide a 
code compliant second egress. Mr. Comes stated he would like to have the unused wood telephone pole 
removed and plans to install an awning over the proposed rear door.  

Mr. Comes stated he proposes to uncover and restore some of the original windows to allow more light 
into the building and paint the trim black. Mr. Szalko clarified the aluminum sign band in the front of the 
building will be painted a lighter shade of gray than shown on the exhibits, as recommended by the 
Historic Preservation Commission.  Mr. Comes stated he would like to replace the current second story 
windows and discussed potential signage options for the future.  

Commissioner Carter stated her concerns with signage that where addressed in Mr. Comes’ summary 
and stated that she liked the Option B proposal that maintains the red brick, the idea of replacing the 
smaller front windows on the second floor with one large window, and using the lighter shade of gray on 
the aluminum band on the front of the building. It was stated that signage for the second floor would need 
to be further developed to meet Village codes.   

Commissioner Fiascone stated she was fine with the black color on the front if the red brick is maintained 
but asked about the plan for the column on the front of the building. The applicant confirmed that the plan 
is to paint it.   

Commissioner Willobee stated he was glad Option B was chosen and he liked it much better than the 
alternative option. Commissioner Willobee stated he was also fine with the black paint color with the red 
brick. Commissioner Willobee expressed he did not feel the awning over the rear door needed to match 
the other awnings nearby in the downtown and that he liked the one shown in the proposal.   

Commissioner Crnovich stated that she liked that the brick would be left red, and she liked the 
improvements to the rear and the side of the building.  Commissioner Crnovich stated it will also be an 
improvement to remove some of the nearby clutter such as outdoor dining tent and signage.   

The question of the Plan Commission’s preferred lighting design to be used for second floor lighting was 
introduced.  The Commissioners were supportive of Mr. Comes’ proposal and the future walkway lighting 
to beautify the space.  

Mr. Comes discussed his desire for a future loading zone in the rear parking lot. 

Commissioner Jablonski was supportive of the proposal. 

Commissioner Hurley was also supportive of the project but had a question about the dark tint of the 
second floor, south facing windows shown in the rendering.  Mr. Comes stated the windows will not be 
as dark as the rendering shows and he will want ample natural light on the second floor.   

In response to a question about a time frame for the various parts of the project, Mr. Comes stated he 
would like to begin work as soon as possible with weather being taken into consideration for the aspects 
of the project included in this application. 

Commissioner Krillenberger stated he also preferred Option B and felt the design was tasteful and 
thoughtful and stated that he appreciated the investment into the community by Mr. Comes.   

Commissioner Curry stated that she liked the proposal and asked if Mr. Comes was certain he wanted 
to replace the second story windows with one large window.  Mr. Comes and Mr. Szalko stated that one 
window would widen the view and provide improved visibility for a second-floor business.  Ms. Salmon 
clarified the second-floor window is not part of this application and can be considered in a future 
application.   



4 

Chairman Cashman stated that he was supportive of maintaining the red brick and the size of the 
limestone base.  Chairman Cashman felt the building changes will improve Hinsdale and will look even 
better once the outdoor dining tents are removed and the street traffic restored. 

Commissioner Curry asked about the electric meters in between the buildings.  It was confirmed that the 
meters would not be relocated and would remain tucked in between the buildings.   

Mr. Comes asked the Commission about lighting preferences.  Chairman Cashman responded that he 
preferred a more modern fixture in keeping with the building if the current gooseneck lighting would be 
removed.    

A motion was made by Commissioner Curry, seconded by Commissioner Jablonski, to approve “Option 
B” of Case A-18-2021 – 33 E. First Street – Frederick Lynn Haberdasshere – Exterior Appearance and 
Site Plan Review to allow for façade improvements to the existing building located at 33 E. First Street in 
the B-2 Central Business District.  The motion carried by a roll call vote of 9-0 as follows:  

Ayes: Commissioner Crnovich, Commissioner Krillenberger, Commissioner Jablonski, 
Commissioner Willobee, Commissioner Fiascone, Commissioner Curry, 
Commissioner Hurley, Commissioner Carter, Chairman Cashman 

Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

Sign Permit Review 
a) Case A-10-2021 – 137 S. Garfield Street- Union Church of Hinsdale – Installation of One (1)

Ground Sign with a Bulletin Board [Continued from the September 8, 2021 Plan Commission
Meeting]

Sharon Olsen and Matt Klein were present at the meeting to address the Commission.  Ms. Olsen gave 
an overview of the proposal that included a solid masonry structure, a limestone cap and a column 
made with original brick discovered in the Church building to match the building.  Ms. Olsen stated the 
location of the sign is unchanged from the previous submittals and prairie grass and plant materials will 
surround the sign as shown in the landscape plan provided.  Ms. Olsen stated the column of the sign 
will mimic the Church bell tower and contain an unlit brass logo. The Union Church logo will be backlit 
and contain the same light fixture in the previous proposal and bulletin board letters will be four (4) 
inches tall.  The new proposal presented to the Commission at the meeting comes with a significantly 
larger cost to the church.  

Commissioner Curry stated the sign was an improvement, liked the idea of using the matching brick 
found on the sign, and would like to see evergreens added to the landscape plan.   

Commissioner Krillenberger stated the sign was spectacular. 

Commissioner Hurley asked for clarifications on the size of the sign. Details were provided to address 
the concerns.   

Commissioner Jablonski stated it looked great. 

Commissioner Crnovich stated it was a huge improvement and the changes made and time spent to 
do so were appreciated.  Commissioner Crnovich stated she liked the landscaping but was hoping the 
size of the sign would be decreased for a historic district in a residential area.   



 

 
5 

Commissioner Crnovich asked for the status of the Church’s temporary sign policy. Ms. Olsen 
apologized on the Church’s behalf for the large wood temporary sign displayed earlier in the year and 
discussed the newly adopted temporary sign policy. Ms. Olsen stated the policy had passed through 
all the Church Committees and took into consideration neighbor requests and the Village code 
requirements.  Ms. Olsen shared a brief overview of the policy that allowed for the installation of 
temporary signage to be limited to Garfield Street only as well as a limitation on temporary sign size, 
duration of display time, and colors.   
 
Commissioner Crnovich asked about the length of time the ground sign is going to be lit.  Ms. Olsen 
responded the sign would be illuminated from dusk, exact time to change seasonally, until 10:00 pm, 
meeting the Village ordinance.  
 
Commissioner Willobee stated the sign looked good.  
 
Commissioner Fiascone stated that she too would like to see some evergreen plantings.   
 
Chairman Cashman stated the sign looked fantastic and appreciated the expense and effort the Church 
made to arrive at this design.  Chairman Cashman added that the sign in this proposal is much more 
in keeping with the beautiful church and will stand the test of time.   
 
As part of the public comments, Mr. Jim Oles stated he would like to see the sign lights turned off and 
9:00 PM.  Ms. Olsen stated the sign would be on a timer and could be changed, but parking lot lights 
would need to be left on later for safety on nights when Church events ran lighter into the evening.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krillenberger, seconded by Commissioner Hurley to approve Case 
A-10-2021 – 137 S. Garfield Street – Union Church of Hinsdale – Installation of One (1) Ground Sign with 
a Bulletin Board, as submitted with the request to turn the sign light off at 9:00 pm.  The motion carried 
by a roll call vote of 9-0 as follows:  
 

Ayes:  Commissioner Crnovich, Commissioner Krillenberger, Commissioner Jablonski, 
Commissioner Willobee, Commissioner Fiascone, Commissioner Curry, 
Commissioner Hurley, Commissioner Carter, Chairman Cashman 

Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

 
Adjournment 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krillenberger, seconded by Commissioner Jablonski, to adjourn 
the meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 8:41 PM after a unanimous voice vote of 9-0. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Jennifer Spires, Community Development Office 



1 of 10 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

1

STATE OF ILLINOIS  )
 )  ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE  )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 

In the Matter of:          )
)
)

THE DERM INSTITUTE OF      )
CHICAGO, Case No. A-23-2021)
920 North York Road.       )

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 

taken at the hearing of the above-entitled 

matter before the Hinsdale Plan Commission, at 

19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on 

October 13, 2021, at the hour of 7:30 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;

MS. SHELLEY CARTER, Member; 

MR. PATRICK HURLEY, Member; 

MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member;

MR. GERALD JABLONSKI, Member;

MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member;

MS. CYNTHIA CURRY, Member; 

MS. JULIE CRNOVICH, Member; and

MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member.

Attachment 1



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 2 of 10 sheets 

2

     ALSO PRESENT:1

         MS. BETHANY SALMAN, Village Planner;2

         DR. JORDAN CARQUEVILLE, Petitioner;3

         MR. STEPHEN HULL, Petitioner's4
         Representative.
________________________________________________5

6

         CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Case A-23-2021, 9207
North York Road, design review permit and sign8
permit review to allow the installation of new9
sign cabinet on existing ground sign base for07:33:58PM 10
The Derm Institute, located at 920 North York11
Road, in the O-2 limited office district.12
              May I have a motion to open the13
Public Hearing?14

MR. WILLOBEE:  So moved.15
MR. HURLEY:  Second.16
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Can I have a roll17

call, please.18
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Curry?19
         MS. CURRY:  Aye.20
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner21
Krillenberger?22

3

         MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye.1
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Hurley?2

MR. HURLEY:  Aye.3
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Jablonski?4

MR. JABLONSKI:  Aye.5
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Crnovich?6
         MS. CRNOVICH:  Aye.7
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Willobee?8

MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.9
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Fiascone?10
         MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.11
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Carter?12

MS. CARTER:  Aye.13
MS. SALMON:  Chairman Cashman?14
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.15

Do we have someone representing the16
applicant?  Everyone who wants to speak on this17
matter we need to swear you in.18
                       (WHEREUPON, Mr. Hull and19
                        Dr. Carqueville were07:34:42PM 20
                        administered the oath.)21

MR. HULL:  Stephen, S-t-e-p-h-e-n,22

4

Hull, H-u-l-l.1
DR. CARQUEVILLE:  I'm Jordan2

Carqueville, C-a-r-q-u-e-v-i-l-l-e.3
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Would you like to4

give us a review of what you are proposing and5
then we will see if we have any questions?6

MR. HULL:  Of course.  My name is Steve7
Hull.  I'm with Doyle Signs representing8
Dr. Jordan Carqueville, the owner and founder of9
The Derm Institute.07:35:55PM 10

We are here to propose this sign in11
the design district for The Derm Institute.12
What's being passed around right now is a13
visibility chart, the location of each -- the14
location of the sign and of course the distance15
according to Google Maps from the street corner16
of the sign.  And you will see the character17
height of the chart, distance visibility, we18
have our colors laid out.19

What's not exactly shown on here is07:36:22PM 20
a night render.  You may have in your bundle the21
proposed night view of the teal color that we22

5

have right here.  This is the accurate color1
representation of what the sign will be made of.2
It's the exact same material, exact same style.3
The white is translucent while the teal will be4
opaque at night so it will appear as black.5

Would you guys like to see this?6
(Indicating.)7

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Sure.8
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.9

Cindy, do you have any questions?07:37:02PM 10
MS. CURRY:  I do.  Are you tied to the11

teal color?  Is that representative of something12
of the institute?13

MR. HULL:  Absolutely.  I'll have14
Dr. Jordan Carqueville speak in on that, the15
reason for the teal.16

DR. CARQUEVILLE:  So originally it was17
different.  We had, actually, the first18
chairwoman of Leo Burnett did our logo, she took19
Leo's job, so she's awesome, she lives here in07:37:26PM 20
Chicago, and she really wanted us to do a full21
array of color, including different skin types.22



3 of 10 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

6

But we were advised by Steve, I think was1
talking to the board, that that might be too2
much color.3

So we thought, okay, let's simplify4
it, and so we picked the color, really analyzed5
the look of the area and everything is very red6
and very -- red brick and there's the red7
McDonald's and there's the Dunkin' Donuts with8
lots of colors and I thought, let's just do9
something very elegant, calming, cool and non-07:38:03PM 10
offensive.  So that's why I thought that color11
would be good.  And blue has a calming affect on12
me.13

MS. CURRY:  I just had a concern14
because it is a gateway and in a significant15
historic area.  I do actually like the night16
view, I like the black.  I like the way it fits17
in.  Yes, there's the McDonald's red sign.  But18
other than that, you have the professional19
building, which is just to the north, which is07:38:31PM 20
called Graue Mill professional building, it's a21
wooden sign, a little discreet.22

7

Whereas, your sign where it's1
positioned is so close to the village of2
Hinsdale historic sign that it seems to me not3
to enhance the area right where it's located.4

DR. CARQUEVILLE:  We had a lot of5
positive feedback from the temporary sign that's6
up.  It's gotten a lot of compliments.  I was7
surprised even like a cardboard sign it's drawn8
people into our office, which is, obviously,9
very important to us, and people are just giving07:39:08PM 10
us a lot of compliments how it's just very11
tastefully done.  So that is the feedback I have12
gotten, which made me not regret switching from13
the variation of colors.  But I think that this14
has been very well-received in the past six15
weeks if that gives you any reassurance.16

MR. HULL:  To taper off of that, the17
blue, it's not a loud carnival blue, it's a very18
smooth blue.  You know, I have been selling19
signs for about nine years.07:39:46PM 20

Our organization has been in21
business for 105 years and I have seen in just 922

8

years, I have seen God awful signs and this is1
not one of them and so I'm actually very proud.2
There was a lot of thought that went into this,3
even more so than on my end because you guys4
worked with the actual designer to create the5
logo and everything else, the whole brand.6

DR. CARQUEVILLE:  It's the color inside7
the whole office, too, so it is tied to it and8
it is important.9

MS. CURRY:  Okay.07:40:20PM 10
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Jim?11
MR. KRILLENBERGER:  I like the12

simplicity, I like the fact that it says what13
you do and looks great.14

MR. HULL:  Something I did not point15
out, I apologize.  The sign in the middle here16
that is a to scale of what the actual sign will17
look like, it's just a portion.  So the D, the18
I, is all to scale according to the plans you19
have in your hands right here and I just kind of07:40:45PM 20
wanted to showcase that.  It's not super-21
obnoxiously large or anything like that.  It's22

9

not even really high contrast either, the white1
and the blue are pretty decent.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Pat?3
MR. HURLEY:  What are the total4

dimensions, is it 5 by 8?  Is that what it is?5
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Five feet by eight6

feet.7
MR. HULL:  Overall, yes, the cabinet is8

5-foot tall, 8-foot wide, correct.9
MR. HURLEY:  What's the total inclusive07:41:11PM 10

of the brick base?11
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  7, 8.12
MR. HURLEY:  I think it looks very nice13

and I'm envisioning driving on that stretch.  I14
like it.  I like the color choice actually, and15
I like the (inaudible) here for nighttime so I16
think it's very well done.17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Jerry?18
MR. JABLONSKI:  I like the fact that19

you guys have somebody from Leo Burnett involved07:41:41PM 20
from Chicago.  It looks nice.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Julie?22



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 4 of 10 sheets 

10

MS. CRNOVICH:  I'm going to start with1
the size of the letters is what, 14, the Derm is2
14 inches tall?3

MR. HULL:  Correct.  The D in Derm is4
14 and a half inches tall.  I don't have the5
height of the Ns, obviously, it's just the way6
it's designed.  But, yes, the overall height of7
the D is 14 and a half inches.8

MS. CRNOVICH:  Being in the middle of9
historic overlay district, I was hoping it could07:42:16PM 10
be maybe a little smaller and also, do you have11
any plans for landscaping?12

DR. CARQUEVILLE:  They did it all.  We13
just opened about six weeks ago and that was one14
of the requirements.  I researched it and it sat15
vacant for a long time.  I think that there was16
a bank there before (inaudible) and then a bank17
and it was vacant for almost two years or so.18
So they washed the building, they did all the19
landscaping.07:42:52PM 20

MS. CRNOVICH:  The base of the sign I21
like the brick.22

11

Will this be illuminated at night,1
too?2

DR. CARQUEVILLE:  Just the white3
portion.4

MR. HULL:  The paper I passed out did5
not include the plans.  But if you have the6
plans, there is a night render on there.  The7
teal, the blue is not translucent, it's fully8
opaque.  So the only thing that illuminates at9
night is the white copy.07:43:19PM 10

MS. CRNOVICH:  Will it have a dimmer11
switch?12

MR. HULL:  It can.  Anything is13
possible.  Yes, we can put one on there.14

MS. CRNOVICH:  Thank you.15
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Mark?16
MR. WILLOBEE:  So the temporary sign,17

is that the same scale?18
MR. HULL:  I don't believe so.  I think19

the temporary signs based off of code you are07:43:39PM 20
allowed X amount of square footage.  And I think21
there's something else on the temporary sign if22

12

I recall.  So, no, I believe it's slightly1
smaller.  It's a little bit smaller.2

MR. WILLOBEE:  So similarly, I drive by3
there every day, twice a day, and similar to the4
temporary sign jumps out at me right now, it's5
too large.  So I know I didn't have time to read6
but (inaudible).  It does the job.  I know you7
guys are there but from the lettering is too8
large.9

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  There's a picture07:44:23PM 10
of the temporary sign.11

MR. HULL:  Something that's not really12
shown, I think the final plans you have in your13
hand, that was version 17.  We went through 1714
revisions.  I believe we started this process in15
March and the logo, because of the way it's16
designed, there is not a lot of room for17
manipulation, right.  So if we were to decrease18
the sign, there's like a pinch in zoom.  If we19
were to pinch in zoom on your phone, The Derm07:44:50PM 20
Institute logo we could decrease the size of the21
cabinet and it would still look overbearing.  It22

13

doesn't matter, it's just because the way it's1
this rectangle shape there's no other way to put2
it on there.3

Kind of like the McDonald's sign,4
right, the McDonald's sign in itself is more of5
a square, the white space around -- the equal6
white space around the logo, it's hard to work7
around.  And same thing with this logo.8

Like I said, this is version 179
that are in your hands right now because there07:45:18PM 10
was just a lot that went into it.  So if we did11
bring the logo down, visually speaking there12
would have to be equal white space all the way13
around the logo and it may completely change the14
look of the sign.  It's just the way the logo is15
designed.16

MS. CRNOVICH:  I know the revision is17
in the packaging you submitted and thank you for18
giving us the measurement of the letters.19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Anything else?07:45:46PM 20
MR. WILLOBEE:  No, overall everything21

looks good.  I would agree having a dimmable22



5 of 10 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

14

switch.  I just don't like the size of the1
letters.2

MS. FIASCONE:  So you are using the3
current space, correct?4

MR. HULL:  Correct.5
MS. FIASCONE:  Okay.  That's the reason6

for the size?7
MR. HULL:  Yes.8
MS. FIASCONE:  I think it looks great.9

Is there a wall sign still on that building?07:46:14PM 10
DR. CARQUEVILLE:  Yes.  I think it's a11

dental office.12
MS. FIASCONE:  Okay.  I'm good.13
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Shelley?14
MS. CARTER:  I like it, too.  I like15

the color; I think it's pretty simple.  If you16
could go down a little bit on The Derm, I17
probably would.  I don't know if it's strongly18
enough to redesign the size of the sign.  I19
think it's good.07:46:50PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  One of our21
controversies was on the size.  McDonald's is22

15

about three feet high.  You may recall we did1
the pride and that pride lettering is 14 inches2
tall.  So I think it fits in my mind.  I like3
the color.4

I do know, because I think you have5
been communicating with me and with Bethany, and6
I went on your website and saw the gradation of7
color and it's just a good idea but years ago we8
had Amita with a variation of colors.  They were9
very upset when we told them they had to change07:47:27PM 10
the logo.11

DR. CARQUEVILLE:  When you said that, I12
thought, he's so right.  I don't like that look13
either.14

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I saw what the look15
was and then I saw how you did it and it's a16
nice job.  I think it's tastefully done.  I like17
the landscaping and it will be nice to have some18
life into this building.  It's been pretty19
desolate over there.07:47:55PM 20

Other thoughts or commissioners21
want to talk about the letter size or anything?22

16

(No response.)1
Motion to approve Case A-23-2021 as2

submitted with the request to make the3
illumination dimmable.4

MR. HURLEY:  So moved.5
MR. JABLONSKI:  Second.6
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Can I have a roll7

call, please, Bethany?8
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Curry?9
         MS. CURRY:  Aye.10
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner11
Krillenberger?12
         MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye.13
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Hurley?14

MR. HURLEY:  Aye.15
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Jablonski?16

MR. JABLONSKI:  Aye.17
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Crnovich?18
         MS. CRNOVICH:  Aye.19
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Willobee?20

MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.21
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Fiascone?22

17

         MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.1
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Carter?2

MS. CARTER:  Aye.3
MS. SALMON:  Chairman Cashman?4
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.5

Thank you very much.6
MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Go forth and clear7

up our skin.8
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Do I need a motion9

to close the hearing?07:48:38PM 10
MS. SALMON:  Yes.11
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Can I have a motion12

to close the Public Hearing, please?13
MR. KRILLENBERGER:  So moved.14
MR. JABLONSKI:  Second.15
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Can I have a roll16

call, please?17
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Curry?18
         MS. CURRY:  Aye.19
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner20
Krillenberger?21
         MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye.22



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 6 of 10 sheets 

18

         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Hurley?1
MR. HURLEY:  Aye.2

         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Jablonski?3
MR. JABLONSKI:  Aye.4

         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Crnovich?5
         MS. CRNOVICH:  Aye.6
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Willobee?7

MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.8
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Fiascone?9
         MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.10
         MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Carter?11

MS. CARTER:  Aye.12
MS. SALMON:  Chairman Cashman?13
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.14

                  (WHICH, were all of the15
                   proceedings had, evidence16
                   offered or received in the17
                   above entitled cause.)18

19
20
21
22

19
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

              I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified
Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the
County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that previous to the commencement of the
examination and testimony of the various
witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to
testify the truth in relation to the matters
pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by
said witnesses was reduced to writing by means
of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into
typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a
true, correct and complete transcript of my
shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.
              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have
hereunto set my hand and affix my electronic
signature this 26th day of October, A.D. 2021.

                       _________________________
                       KATHLEEN W. BONO
                       C.S.R. No. 84-1423
                       Notary Public, DuPage County



7 of 10 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

1

105  [1] - 7:22
13  [1] - 1:12
14  [5] - 10:2, 10:3, 

10:5, 10:8, 15:2
17  [3] - 12:14, 13:9
19  [1] - 1:11

2

2021  [2] - 1:12, 19:18
26th [1] - 19:18

5

5 [1] - 9:5
5-foot  [1] - 9:9

7

7 [1] - 9:12
7:30  [1] - 1:12

8

8 [2] - 9:5, 9:12
8-foot  [1] - 9:9
84-1423  [1] - 19:21

9

9 [1] - 7:22
920  [3] - 1:7, 2:7, 

2:11

A

A-23-2021  [3] - 1:6, 
2:7, 16:2

A.D [1] - 19:18
above -entitled  [1] - 

1:9
absolutely  [1] - 5:14
according  [2] - 4:16, 

8:19
accurate  [1] - 5:1
actual  [2] - 8:5, 8:17
administered  [1] - 

3:21
advised  [1] - 6:1
affect  [1] - 6:12
affix  [1] - 19:17
aforesaid  [1] - 19:15
ago  [2] - 10:14, 15:8

agree  [1] - 13:22
allow  [1] - 2:9
allowed  [1] - 11:21
almost  [1] - 10:18
ALSO  [1] - 2:1
Amita  [1] - 15:9
amount  [1] - 11:21
analyzed  [1] - 6:5
ANNA  [1] - 1:17
apologize  [1] - 8:16
appear  [1] - 5:5
applicant  [1] - 3:17
approve  [1] - 16:2
area  [3] - 6:6, 6:16, 

7:4
array  [1] - 5:22
Avenue  [1] - 1:11
awesome  [1] - 5:20
awful  [1] - 8:1
Aye [4] - 2:20, 16:10, 

17:19, 18:14
aye  [23] - 3:1, 3:3, 

3:5, 3:7, 3:9, 3:11, 
3:13, 3:15, 16:13, 
16:15, 16:17, 16:19, 
16:21, 17:1, 17:3, 
17:5, 17:22, 18:2, 
18:4, 18:6, 18:8, 
18:10, 18:12

B

bank  [2] - 10:17
base  [3] - 2:10, 9:11, 

10:21
based  [1] - 11:20
BEFORE  [1] - 1:3
BETHANY  [1] - 2:2
Bethany  [2] - 15:6, 

16:8
bit  [2] - 12:2, 14:17
black  [2] - 5:5, 6:17
blue  [6] - 6:12, 7:18, 

7:19, 9:2, 11:8
BOARD  [1] - 1:13
board  [1] - 6:2
BONO  [2] - 19:3, 

19:20
brand  [1] - 8:6
brick  [3] - 6:7, 9:11, 

10:22
bring  [1] - 13:12
building  [5] - 6:20, 

6:21, 10:19, 14:10, 
15:19

bundle  [1] - 4:21
Burnett  [2] - 5:19, 

9:20
business  [1] - 7:22

C

C-a-r-q-u-e-v-i-l-l-e 

[1] - 4:3
C.S.R [1] - 19:21
cabinet  [3] - 2:10, 

9:8, 12:22
calming  [2] - 6:10, 

6:12
cardboard  [1] - 7:8
carnival  [1] - 7:18
CARQUEVILLE  [9] - 

2:3, 4:2, 5:17, 7:5, 
8:7, 10:13, 11:3, 
14:11, 15:12

Carqueville  [4] - 
3:20, 4:3, 4:9, 5:15

CARTER  [5] - 1:15, 
3:13, 14:15, 17:3, 
18:12

Carter  [3] - 3:12, 
17:2, 18:11

Case  [2] - 1:6, 16:2
case  [1] - 2:7
CASHMAN  [23] - 

1:14, 2:7, 2:17, 3:15, 
4:4, 5:9, 8:11, 9:3, 
9:6, 9:12, 9:18, 9:22, 
11:16, 13:20, 14:14, 
14:21, 15:15, 16:7, 
17:5, 17:9, 17:12, 
17:16, 18:14

Cashman  [3] - 3:14, 
17:4, 18:13

Certified  [1] - 19:3
certify  [1] - 19:6
Chairman  [4] - 1:14, 

3:14, 17:4, 18:13
CHAIRMAN  [22] - 

2:7, 2:17, 3:15, 4:4, 
5:9, 8:11, 9:3, 9:6, 
9:12, 9:18, 9:22, 
11:16, 13:20, 14:14, 
14:21, 15:15, 16:7, 
17:5, 17:9, 17:12, 
17:16, 18:14

chairwoman  [1] - 
5:19

change  [2] - 13:14, 
15:10

character  [1] - 4:17
chart  [2] - 4:14, 4:18
CHICAGO  [1] - 1:6
Chicago  [3] - 1:11, 

5:21, 9:21
choice  [1] - 9:15
Cindy  [1] - 5:10
clear  [1] - 17:7
close  [3] - 7:2, 17:10, 

17:13
code  [1] - 11:20
color  [12] - 4:22, 5:1, 

5:12, 5:22, 6:3, 6:5, 
6:11, 8:7, 9:15, 14:16, 
15:4, 15:8

colors  [4] - 4:19, 6:9, 
7:14, 15:9

commencement  [1] 
- 19:6

COMMISSION  [1] - 
1:3

Commission  [1] - 
1:10

commissioner  [3] - 
2:19, 16:9, 17:18

Commissioner  [21] - 
2:21, 3:2, 3:4, 3:6, 
3:8, 3:10, 3:12, 16:11, 
16:14, 16:16, 16:18, 
16:20, 16:22, 17:2, 
17:20, 18:1, 18:3, 
18:5, 18:7, 18:9, 
18:11

commissioners  [1] - 
15:21

communicating  [1] - 
15:6

complete  [1] - 19:14
completely  [1] - 

13:14
compliments  [2] - 

7:7, 7:11
concern  [1] - 6:14
contrast  [1] - 9:1
controversies  [1] - 

14:22
cool  [1] - 6:10
copy  [1] - 11:10
corner  [1] - 4:16
correct  [5] - 9:9, 

10:4, 14:4, 14:5, 
19:14

COUNTY  [2] - 1:2, 
19:2

County  [2] - 19:5, 
19:21

course  [2] - 4:7, 4:15
create  [1] - 8:5
CRNOVICH  [10] - 

1:21, 3:7, 10:1, 10:9, 
10:21, 11:11, 11:15, 
13:17, 16:19, 18:6

Crnovich  [3] - 3:6, 
16:18, 18:5

current  [1] - 14:4
CURRY  [7] - 1:20, 

2:20, 5:11, 6:14, 8:10, 
16:10, 17:19

Curry  [3] - 2:19, 

20

16:9, 17:18
CYNTHIA  [1] - 1:20

D

decent  [1] - 9:2
decrease  [2] - 12:18, 

12:21
dental  [1] - 14:12
Derm  [7] - 2:11, 4:10, 

4:12, 10:2, 10:4, 
12:20, 14:17

DERM  [1] - 1:6
design  [2] - 2:8, 4:12
designed  [3] - 10:7, 

12:17, 13:16
designer  [1] - 8:5
desolate  [1] - 15:20
different  [2] - 5:18, 

5:22
dimensions  [1] - 9:5
dimmable  [2] - 

13:22, 16:4
dimmer  [1] - 11:11
discreet  [1] - 6:22
distance  [2] - 4:15, 

4:18
district  [3] - 2:12, 

4:12, 10:10
done  [3] - 7:12, 9:17, 

15:17
Donuts  [1] - 6:8
down  [2] - 13:12, 

14:17
Doyle  [1] - 4:8
DR  [9] - 2:3, 4:2, 

5:17, 7:5, 8:7, 10:13, 
11:3, 14:11, 15:12

Dr  [3] - 3:20, 4:9, 
5:15

drawn  [1] - 7:8
drive  [1] - 12:3
driving  [1] - 9:14
DU  [2] - 1:2, 19:2
duly  [1] - 19:8
Dunkin ' [1] - 6:8
DuPage  [2] - 19:5, 

19:21

E

East  [1] - 1:11
eight  [1] - 9:6
either  [2] - 9:1, 15:14
electronic  [1] - 19:17
elegant  [1] - 6:10
end  [1] - 8:4
enhance  [1] - 7:4



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 8 of 10 sheets 

entitled  [2] - 1:9, 
18:18

envisioning  [1] - 
9:14

equal  [2] - 13:6, 
13:13

evidence  [1] - 18:16
exact  [2] - 5:3
exactly  [1] - 4:20
examination  [1] - 

19:7
existing  [1] - 2:10

F

fact  [2] - 8:13, 9:19
feedback  [2] - 7:6, 

7:12
feet  [3] - 9:6, 9:7, 

15:1
FIASCONE  [8] - 

1:17, 3:11, 14:3, 14:6, 
14:9, 14:13, 17:1, 
18:10

Fiascone  [3] - 3:10, 
16:22, 18:9

final  [1] - 12:13
first  [1] - 5:18
fits  [2] - 6:17, 15:3
five  [1] - 9:6
footage  [1] - 11:21
foregoing  [1] - 19:13
form  [1] - 19:13
forth  [1] - 17:7
founder  [1] - 4:9
full  [1] - 5:21
fully  [1] - 11:8

G

gateway  [1] - 6:15
GERALD  [1] - 1:18
given  [1] - 19:10
God  [1] - 8:1
Google  [1] - 4:16
gradation  [1] - 15:7
Graue  [1] - 6:21
great  [2] - 8:14, 14:9
ground  [1] - 2:10
guys  [4] - 5:6, 8:4, 

9:20, 12:8

H

H-u-l-l [1] - 4:1
half  [2] - 10:5, 10:8
hand  [2] - 12:14, 

19:17

hands  [2] - 8:20, 
13:10

hard  [1] - 13:7
hearing  [2] - 1:9, 

17:10
Hearing  [2] - 2:14, 

17:13
height  [3] - 4:18, 

10:6, 10:7
hereby  [1] - 19:5
herein  [1] - 19:8
hereto  [1] - 19:10
hereunto  [1] - 19:17
high  [2] - 9:1, 15:1
HINSDALE  [1] - 1:3
Hinsdale  [3] - 1:10, 

1:11, 7:3
historic  [3] - 6:16, 

7:3, 10:10
hoping  [1] - 10:10
hour  [1] - 1:12
Hull  [3] - 3:19, 4:1, 

4:8
HULL  [14] - 2:4, 3:22, 

4:7, 5:14, 7:17, 8:15, 
9:8, 10:4, 11:5, 11:13, 
11:19, 12:12, 14:5, 
14:8

HURLEY  [9] - 1:16, 
2:16, 3:3, 9:4, 9:10, 
9:13, 16:5, 16:15, 
18:2

Hurley  [3] - 3:2, 
16:14, 18:1

I

idea  [1] - 15:8
ILLINOIS  [2] - 1:1, 

19:1
Illinois  [2] - 1:11, 

19:5
illuminated  [1] - 11:1
illuminates  [1] - 11:9
illumination  [1] - 

16:4
important  [2] - 7:10, 

8:9
IN [1] - 19:16
inaudible  [2] - 9:16, 

10:17
inaudible ) [1] - 12:7
inches  [4] - 10:3, 

10:5, 10:8, 15:2
include  [1] - 11:6
including  [1] - 5:22
inclusive  [1] - 9:10
indicating  [1] - 5:7
inside  [1] - 8:7

installation  [1] - 2:9
institute  [1] - 5:13
INSTITUTE  [1] - 1:6
Institute  [4] - 2:11, 

4:10, 4:12, 12:21
involved  [1] - 9:20
itself  [1] - 13:5

J

JABLONSKI  [7] - 
1:18, 3:5, 9:19, 16:6, 
16:17, 17:15, 18:4

Jablonski  [3] - 3:4, 
16:16, 18:3

Jerry  [1] - 9:18
Jim  [1] - 8:11
JIM  [1] - 1:19
job  [3] - 5:20, 12:7, 

15:17
JORDAN  [1] - 2:3
Jordan  [3] - 4:2, 4:9, 

5:15
Julie  [1] - 9:22
JULIE  [1] - 1:21
jumps  [1] - 12:5

K

KATHLEEN  [2] - 
19:3, 19:20

kind  [2] - 8:20, 13:4
Krillenberger  [3] - 

2:22, 16:12, 17:21
KRILLENBERGER  

[9] - 1:19, 3:1, 5:8, 
8:12, 12:10, 16:13, 
17:7, 17:14, 17:22

L

laid  [1] - 4:19
landscaping  [3] - 

10:12, 10:20, 15:18
large  [3] - 8:22, 12:6, 

12:9
Leo  [2] - 5:19, 9:20
Leo's [1] - 5:20
letter  [1] - 15:22
lettering  [2] - 12:8, 

15:2
letters  [3] - 10:2, 

13:19, 14:2
life  [1] - 15:19
limited  [1] - 2:12
lives  [1] - 5:20
located  [2] - 2:11, 

7:4

location  [2] - 4:14, 
4:15

logo  [10] - 5:19, 8:6, 
12:16, 12:21, 13:7, 
13:8, 13:12, 13:14, 
13:15, 15:11

look  [6] - 6:6, 8:18, 
12:22, 13:15, 15:13, 
15:15

looks  [5] - 8:14, 
9:13, 9:21, 13:22, 
14:9

loud  [1] - 7:18

M

manipulation  [1] - 
12:18

Maps  [1] - 4:16
March  [1] - 12:16
mark  [1] - 11:16
MARK  [1] - 1:22
material  [1] - 5:3
Matter  [1] - 1:4
matter  [3] - 1:10, 

3:18, 13:1
matters  [1] - 19:9
McDonald 's [5] - 6:8, 

6:18, 13:4, 13:5, 
14:22

means  [1] - 19:11
measurement  [1] - 

13:19
Member  [8] - 1:15, 

1:16, 1:17, 1:18, 1:19, 
1:20, 1:21, 1:22

MEMBERS  [1] - 1:13
middle  [2] - 8:16, 

10:9
might  [1] - 6:2
Mill  [1] - 6:21
mind  [1] - 15:3
motion  [4] - 2:13, 

16:2, 17:9, 17:12
moved  [3] - 2:15, 

16:5, 17:14
MR  [48] - 1:14, 1:16, 

1:18, 1:19, 1:22, 2:4, 
2:15, 2:16, 3:1, 3:3, 
3:5, 3:9, 3:22, 4:7, 
5:8, 5:14, 7:17, 8:12, 
8:15, 9:4, 9:8, 9:10, 
9:13, 9:19, 10:4, 11:5, 
11:13, 11:17, 11:19, 
12:3, 12:10, 12:12, 
13:21, 14:5, 14:8, 
16:5, 16:6, 16:13, 
16:15, 16:17, 16:21, 
17:7, 17:14, 17:15, 

21

17:22, 18:2, 18:4, 
18:8

MS  [59] - 1:15, 1:17, 
1:20, 1:21, 2:2, 2:19, 
2:20, 2:21, 3:2, 3:4, 
3:6, 3:7, 3:8, 3:10, 
3:11, 3:12, 3:13, 3:14, 
5:11, 6:14, 8:10, 10:1, 
10:9, 10:21, 11:11, 
11:15, 13:17, 14:3, 
14:6, 14:9, 14:13, 
14:15, 16:9, 16:10, 
16:11, 16:14, 16:16, 
16:18, 16:19, 16:20, 
16:22, 17:1, 17:2, 
17:3, 17:4, 17:11, 
17:18, 17:19, 17:20, 
18:1, 18:3, 18:5, 18:6, 
18:7, 18:9, 18:10, 
18:11, 18:12, 18:13

N

name  [1] - 4:7
need  [2] - 3:18, 17:9
new  [1] - 2:9
nice  [4] - 9:13, 9:21, 

15:17, 15:18
night  [7] - 4:21, 4:22, 

5:5, 6:16, 11:1, 11:7, 
11:10

nighttime  [1] - 9:16
nine  [1] - 7:20
non  [1] - 6:10
North  [3] - 1:7, 2:8, 

2:11
north  [1] - 6:20
Notary  [2] - 19:4, 

19:21
notes  [1] - 19:15
Ns  [1] - 10:6

O

O-2 [1] - 2:12
oath  [1] - 3:21
obnoxiously  [1] - 

8:22
obviously  [2] - 7:9, 

10:6
October  [2] - 1:12, 

19:18
OF  [6] - 1:1, 1:2, 1:6, 

1:8, 19:1, 19:2
offensive  [1] - 6:11
offered  [1] - 18:17
office  [4] - 2:12, 7:9, 

8:8, 14:12
one  [4] - 8:2, 10:14, 



9 of 10 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

11:14, 14:21
opaque  [2] - 5:5, 

11:9
open  [1] - 2:13
opened  [1] - 10:14
organization  [1] - 

7:21
originally  [1] - 5:17
overall  [3] - 9:8, 

10:7, 13:21
overbearing  [1] - 

12:22
overlay  [1] - 10:10
owner  [1] - 4:9

P

p.m [1] - 1:12
packaging  [1] - 

13:18
PAGE  [2] - 1:2, 19:2
paper  [1] - 11:5
passed  [2] - 4:13, 

11:5
past  [1] - 7:15
Pat  [1] - 9:3
PATRICK  [1] - 1:16
people  [2] - 7:9, 7:10
permit  [2] - 2:8, 2:9
pertaining  [1] - 

19:10
Petitioner  [1] - 2:3
Petitioner 's [1] - 2:4
phone  [1] - 12:20
picked  [1] - 6:5
picture  [1] - 12:10
pinch  [2] - 12:19, 

12:20
PLAN  [1] - 1:3
Plan  [1] - 1:10
Planner  [1] - 2:2
plans  [5] - 8:19, 

10:12, 11:6, 11:7, 
12:13

point  [1] - 8:15
portion  [2] - 8:18, 

11:4
positioned  [1] - 7:2
positive  [1] - 7:6
possible  [1] - 11:14
PRESENT  [2] - 1:13, 

2:1
pretty  [3] - 9:2, 

14:16, 15:19
previous  [1] - 19:6
pride  [2] - 15:2
proceedings  [1] - 

18:16
PROCEEDINGS  [1] - 

1:8
process  [1] - 12:15
professional  [2] - 

6:19, 6:21
propose  [1] - 4:11
proposed  [1] - 4:22
proposing  [1] - 4:5
proud  [1] - 8:2
Public  [4] - 2:14, 

17:13, 19:4, 19:21
put  [2] - 11:14, 13:2

Q

questions  [2] - 4:6, 
5:10

R

read  [1] - 12:6
really  [4] - 5:21, 6:5, 

9:1, 12:12
reason  [2] - 5:16, 

14:6
reassurance  [1] - 

7:16
received  [2] - 7:15, 

18:17
rectangle  [1] - 13:2
red  [4] - 6:6, 6:7, 

6:18
redesign  [1] - 14:19
reduced  [1] - 19:11
regret  [1] - 7:13
relation  [1] - 19:9
render  [2] - 4:21, 

11:7
REPORT  [1] - 1:8
Reporter  [1] - 19:4
representation  [1] - 

5:2
Representative  [1] - 

2:4
representative  [1] - 

5:12
representing  [2] - 

3:16, 4:8
request  [1] - 16:3
requirements  [1] - 

10:15
researched  [1] - 

10:15
response  [1] - 16:1
review  [3] - 2:8, 2:9, 

4:5
revision  [1] - 13:17
revisions  [1] - 12:15
Road  [3] - 1:7, 2:8, 

2:12
roll  [3] - 2:17, 16:7, 

17:16
room  [1] - 12:17

S

SALMAN  [1] - 2:2
SALMON  [28] - 2:19, 

2:21, 3:2, 3:4, 3:6, 
3:8, 3:10, 3:12, 3:14, 
16:9, 16:11, 16:14, 
16:16, 16:18, 16:20, 
16:22, 17:2, 17:4, 
17:11, 17:18, 17:20, 
18:1, 18:3, 18:5, 18:7, 
18:9, 18:11, 18:13

sat  [1] - 10:15
saw  [3] - 15:7, 15:15, 

15:16
scale  [3] - 8:17, 8:19, 

11:18
second  [2] - 16:6, 

17:15
Second  [1] - 2:16
see  [3] - 4:6, 4:17, 

5:6
selling  [1] - 7:19
set  [1] - 19:17
shape  [1] - 13:2
SHELLEY  [1] - 1:15
shelley  [1] - 14:14
Shorthand  [1] - 19:4
shorthand  [2] - 

19:12, 19:15
showcase  [1] - 8:21
shown  [2] - 4:20, 

12:13
sign  [26] - 2:8, 2:10, 

4:11, 4:15, 4:17, 5:2, 
6:18, 6:22, 7:1, 7:3, 
7:6, 7:8, 8:16, 8:17, 
10:21, 11:17, 11:22, 
12:5, 12:11, 12:19, 
13:4, 13:5, 13:15, 
14:10, 14:19

signature  [1] - 19:18
significant  [1] - 6:15
signs  [3] - 7:20, 8:1, 

11:20
Signs  [1] - 4:8
similar  [1] - 12:4
similarly  [1] - 12:3
simple  [1] - 14:16
simplicity  [1] - 8:13
simplify  [1] - 6:4
six  [2] - 7:15, 10:14
size  [7] - 10:2, 12:21, 

14:1, 14:7, 14:19, 

14:22, 15:22
skin  [2] - 5:22, 17:8
slightly  [1] - 12:1
smaller  [3] - 10:11, 

12:2
smooth  [1] - 7:19
someone  [1] - 3:16
space  [4] - 13:6, 

13:7, 13:13, 14:4
speaking  [1] - 13:12
square  [2] - 11:21, 

13:6
ss  [2] - 1:1, 19:1
start  [1] - 10:1
started  [1] - 12:15
State  [1] - 19:5
STATE  [2] - 1:1, 19:1
Stephen  [1] - 3:22
STEPHEN  [3] - 1:14, 

2:4, 3:22
Steve  [2] - 4:7, 6:1
still  [2] - 12:22, 14:10
street  [1] - 4:16
stretch  [1] - 9:14
strongly  [1] - 14:18
style  [1] - 5:3
submitted  [2] - 

13:18, 16:3
super  [1] - 8:21
surprised  [1] - 7:8
swear  [1] - 3:18
switch  [2] - 11:12, 

14:1
switching  [1] - 7:13
sworn  [1] - 19:8

T

tall  [4] - 9:9, 10:3, 
10:5, 15:3

taper  [1] - 7:17
tastefully  [2] - 7:12, 

15:17
teal  [5] - 4:22, 5:4, 

5:12, 5:16, 11:8
temporary  [6] - 7:6, 

11:17, 11:20, 11:22, 
12:5, 12:11

testify  [1] - 19:9
testimony  [3] - 1:8, 

19:7, 19:10
TESTIMONY  [1] - 

19:16
THE  [2] - 1:3, 1:6
thereafter  [1] - 19:12
thoughts  [1] - 15:21
three  [1] - 15:1
tied  [2] - 5:11, 8:8
took  [1] - 5:19

22

total  [2] - 9:4, 9:10
transcribed  [1] - 

19:12
transcript  [1] - 19:14
translucent  [2] - 5:4, 

11:8
true  [1] - 19:14
truth  [1] - 19:9
twice  [1] - 12:4
two  [1] - 10:18
types  [1] - 5:22
typewritten  [1] - 

19:13

U

up  [2] - 7:7, 17:8
upset  [1] - 15:10

V

vacant  [2] - 10:16, 
10:18

variation  [2] - 7:14, 
15:9

various  [1] - 19:7
version  [2] - 12:14, 

13:9
view  [2] - 4:22, 6:17
village  [1] - 7:2
Village  [1] - 2:2
visibility  [2] - 4:14, 

4:18
visually  [1] - 13:12

W

wall  [1] - 14:10
wants  [1] - 3:17
washed  [1] - 10:19
website  [1] - 15:7
weeks  [2] - 7:16, 

10:14
well -received  [1] - 

7:15
whereas  [1] - 7:1
WHEREOF  [1] - 

19:16
WHEREUPON  [1] - 

3:19
WHICH  [1] - 18:15
white  [7] - 5:4, 9:1, 

11:3, 11:10, 13:6, 
13:7, 13:13

whole  [2] - 8:6, 8:8
wide  [1] - 9:9
WILLOBEE  [8] - 

1:22, 2:15, 3:9, 11:17, 



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 10 of 10 sheets 

23

12:3, 13:21, 16:21, 
18:8

Willobee  [3] - 3:8, 
16:20, 18:7

witnesses  [2] - 19:8, 
19:11

wooden  [1] - 6:22
writing  [1] - 19:11

Y

years  [5] - 7:20, 
7:22, 8:1, 10:18, 15:8

York  [3] - 1:7, 2:8, 
2:11

Z

zoom  [2] - 12:19, 
12:20



 
1 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION  
OF THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 

TO THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
APPLICATION:   Case A-23-2021 – 920 N. York Road – Design Review Permit and Sign Permit 

Review to allow for the installation of a new sign cabinet on the existing ground 
sign base for The Derm Institute located at 920 N. York Road in the O-2 Limited 
Office District 

 
PROPERTY:  920 N. York Road, Hinsdale, Illinois (PIN: 09-01-201-010) 
 
APPLICANT:   Doyle Signs, Inc. 
 
REQUEST:   Design Review Permit, Sign Permit Review 
 
PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW:   October 13, 2021 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1ST READING:   November 2, 2021 
 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The Village of Hinsdale received an application request from Doyle Signs, 
Inc. requesting approval of a Design Review Permit and Sign Permit Review to allow for the installation 
of a new internally-illuminated sign cabinet on the existing ground sign located at 920 N. York Road in 
the O-2 Limited Office District. The new sign cabinet will be utilized for The Derm Institute, a 
dermatologist office, which is occupying the first floor of the multi-tenant office building.  
 
The public hearing notice and transcript are attached in Exhibit A. The application and exhibits are 
included in Exhibit B.  
 
On October 13, 2021, following the conclusion of the public hearing on this matter, the Plan 
Commission recommended approval of the Design Review Permit and Sign Permit by a vote of nine (9) 
in favor and zero (0) opposed. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SUMMARY AND FINDINGS: At the public hearing held on October 13, 2021, 
Steve Hull from Doyle Signs, Inc., the sign contractor, and Dr. Jordan Carqueville with the Derm 
Institute were present at the meeting. Mr. Hull provided a brief overview of the proposed sign, handed 
out a visibility chart to the Commissioners, and presented samples of the sign materials and size. The 
applicant is proposing to install a double-sided, internally-illuminated sign cabinet on top of the existing 
brick base. 
 
There was a discussion on the teal sign color. Commissioner Curry, in addition to several other 
Commissioners, noted that the color did not seem to match the character of the historic Graue Mill 
area. Dr. Carqueville noted that the business was unable to use their original color scheme and logo, 
which includes different skin tone shades. The number of colors exceeded the Village’s three color limit 
required by the code, so they chose a cooling and calming shade of blue. It was noted that the 
temporary sign currently posted uses the same blue color and the business has gotten positive 
feedback from customers.  
 
There was a discussion on the height of the sign, which was confirmed to be 7’ 8-½” tall overall with a 5 
foot tall and 8 foot wide sign cabinet. The tallest letters will be 14-1/4” tall. Several Commissioners 
noted that the size of the letters may be too large and recommended that the letters could be smaller.  
 
A Commissioner asked if there were any landscaping improvements proposed at the base of the sign. 
Dr. Carqueville stated that, prior to opening, the business cleaned up a lot of the landscaping on site 



 
2 

and have already installed new plant material at the base of the sign. The tenant space had been 
vacant for some time and so the area needed to be cleaned up. 
 
There was also a discussion on the illumination. The applicant confirmed that only the white text will be 
illuminated and the teal background is opaque, which meets code requirements. There was a 
discussion on potentially installing a dimmer switch, which Mr. Hull said was an option that could be 
looked at further. Several Commissioners stated that the applicant should consider using a dimmer 
switch for the lighting.  
 
Commissioner Willobee asked for clarification if the temporary sign is the same size and scale as the 
proposed permanent monument sign cabinet. Mr. Hull stated that the temporary sign was slightly 
smaller in size.  
 
Several Commissioners noted that the proposed lettering is too large, while others expressed support 
for the sign and stated the design was attractive. Mr. Hull stated that resizing the sign and lettering 
would be an issue due to the logo and they have gone through seventeen different versions of the sign 
design. Chairman Cashman stated that the proposed letters are of a similar size to the lettering recently 
recommended for approval by the Plan Commission as part of a sign permit for the monument sign on 
an adjacent property. There was a brief discussion on the sign code limitations on the number of colors.  
 
In recommending approval of the Design Review Permit and Sign Permit, the Plan Commission 
determined the standards set forth in Section 11-604(F), Section 11-605(E), Section 11-606(F), and 
Section 11-607(E) of the Village’s Zoning Code have been met. Overall, the Commission expressed 
overall support for the project, noting that the proposed changes would be an improvement to the 
existing conditions and are visually compatible with the building and the surrounding area.   
 
No members of the public provided comment at the meeting. Staff did not received complaints or 
negative feedback from members of the public prior to the meeting.  
 
A motion to approve the Design Review Permit and Sign Permit was made by Commissioner Hurley 
and seconded by Commissioner Jablonski. The vote carried by a roll call vote as follows: 
  

AYES: Commissioners Carter, Crnovich, Curry, Fiascone, Hurley, Jablonski, Krillenberger, 
Willobee and Chairman Cashman  

NAYS: None  
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: Based on the findings set forth above, the Village of Hinsdale Plan 
Commission, by a vote of nine (9) ayes and zero (0) nays, recommended to the President and Board of 
Trustees approval of Case A-23-2021, for 920 N. York Road for a Design Review Permit and Sign 
Permit Review to allow for the installation of a new sign cabinet on the existing ground sign base for 
The Derm Institute located at 920 N. York Road in the O-2 Limited Office District, as submitted. 
 
 

Signed: ___________________________________ 
Steve Cashman, Chair 
Plan Commission 
Village of Hinsdale 

 
 
Date: ______________________________________ 

 



 
1 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION  
OF THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 

TO THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
APPLICATION:   Case A-18-2021 – 33 E. First Street – Frederick Lynn Haberdasshere – Exterior 

Appearance and Site Plan Review to allow for façade improvements to the existing 
building located at 33 E. First Street in the B-2 Central Business District 

 
PROPERTY:  33 E. First Street, Hinsdale, IL (PIN: 09-12-129-011) 
 
APPLICANT:   TTS Granite, Inc. on behalf of Aaron Comes, owner of Frederick Lynn 

Haberdasshere 
 
REQUEST:   Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review 
 
PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW:   October 13, 2021 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1ST READING:   November 2, 2021 
 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The Village of Hinsdale received an application request from TTS Granite, 
Inc. on behalf of Aaron Comes, owner of Frederick Lynn Haberdasshere, requesting approval of an 
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review to allow for changes to exterior façade of the existing two-
story building located at 33 E. First Street in the B-2 Central Business District. Frederick Lynn 
Haberdasshere will offer custom apparel, accessories, home décor and lifestyle merchandise to 
customers and intends to occupy the second floor of the building. The first floor will be occupied by a 
separate tenant, which has not been determined yet.  
 
The building is classified as a Contributing Structure in the Downtown Hinsdale Historic District 
according to the 2006 National Register of Historic Places Nomination and Potentially Significant 
according to the 2003 Architectural Resources in the Downtown Survey Area. The building features 
Two-Part Commercial Block architecture in the International style and was designed by architect Philip 
Duke West in 1950 for use as his office.  
 
The project was reviewed at a public meeting by the Historic Preservation Commission on October 7, 
2021. Items discussed at the meeting include the preservation of the existing red brick, condition of the 
existing pedestrian walkway and future improvements to the building, painting of the trim and sign band 
area, and signage. The Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval of Case A-10-2021, 
the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for 33 E. First Street, by a vote of 6-0 (1 absent), subject 
to the applicant constructing Option B and retaining the original red brick, using a lighter medium gray 
color on the intermediate architectural projection (sign band) to complement the black windows, and 
allowing the block wall on the side elevation to be painted.  
 
The application and exhibits are included in Exhibit B.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SUMMARY AND FINDINGS: On October 13, 2021, the request for approval of an 
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review was reviewed at a public meeting by the Plan Commission. 
Aaron Comes, the property owner and owner of Frederick Lynn Haberdasshere, and David Szalko, the 
project architect from IJM Group Architects, provided an overview of the existing conditions and the 
proposed changes to the building, presented material samples for review, and answered questions 
from the Commissioners.  
 
 



 
2 

Mr. Comes stated that he would like to make improvements to the shared pedestrian walkway on the 
west side of the building. It was noted that the majority of the walkway is owned by the adjacent 
property owner of 29 E. 1st Street, currently occupied by Egg Harbor Cafe and Levato Salon on the first 
floor. Any improvements would require approval by the property owner.  
 
As part of the current submittal, the appearance of the pedestrian walkway will be improved by painting 
the side block wall, which was previously painted. The existing door on the side of the building will be 
relocated to the rear of the building. Mr. Szalko stated that the side door and current egress path does 
not meet code requirements. The changes will help allow the building to meet code requirements. The 
telephone pole at the rear of the property will also be removed. In the future, he will look at addressing 
lighting, trash, cigarettes, and the cracking concrete. The building also has issues with visibility due to 
the front parkway tree and adjacent outdoor dining tent.  
 
Based on the feedback from the Historic Preservation Commission, the applicant is proposing to 
complete Option B, which preserves the existing red brick. Mr. Szalko explained that Historic 
Preservation Commission expressed concerns over the use of dark gray or black on the building, so the 
applicant will be looking into using a lighter shade of gray.  
 
Mr. Comes stated in the future that he would like to replace the large second floor window on the front 
façade with a large picture window. This proposal would have to be submitted under a separate 
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review. There was a brief discussion during the meeting on the 
original design of the second floor windows and what the building may have been originally designed 
with.  
 
Signage will also be brought forward to the Plan Commission for review in the future. It was noted that 
per the sign code, the applicant will not be allowed to locate signage in the second floor window. The 
applicant will work with staff to look at alternative signage options for the future tenant spaces.  
 
Commissioner Fiascone asked what the plans were for the front column. Mr. Szalko confirmed that the 
existing aluminum column will be painted over.  
 
There was a discussion on the proposed rear awning above the new doorway as well as other awning 
styles used in the downtown. During the meeting, Commissioner Willobee noted that the proposed 
dome-shaped black awning added to the rear and is unique compared to other awnings in the 
downtown. Any plans for awnings on the side of the building in the future will require approval from the 
adjacent property owner.   
 
Several Plan Commissioners expressed support for Option B as this would preserve the mid-century 
modern architectural style and unique features of the building. Commissioner Crnovich noted that the 
architect, Phillip Duke West, who constructed this building for his office, was an important architect in 
Hinsdale and designed the Police and Fire Station buildings.  
 
There was a brief discussion over lighting. Chairman Cashman noted that future lighting fixtures could 
use a design that fits better with the style of the building. The applicant can consider switching out the 
gooseneck lighting with a more modern fixture.  
 
Overall, the Commissioners expressed support for the project. In recommending approval of the 
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review, the Plan Commission determined the standards set forth in 
Section 11-604(F) and Section 11-606(F) of the Village’s Zoning Code have been met. Overall, the 
Commission expressed support for the project, noting that the proposed changes would be an 
improvement to the existing conditions.  
 
 



 
3 

No members of the public provided comment at the meeting. Staff did not received complaints or 
negative feedback from members of the public prior to the meeting.  
 
A motion to approve the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review was made by Commissioner Curry 
and seconded by Commissioner Jablonski. The vote carried by a roll call vote as follows: 
  

AYES: Commissioners Carter, Crnovich, Curry, Fiascone, Hurley, Jablonski, Krillenberger, 
Willobee and Chairman Cashman  

NAYS: None  
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: Based on the findings set forth above, the Village of Hinsdale Plan 
Commission, by a vote of nine (9) ayes and zero (0) nays, recommended to the President and Board of 
Trustees approval of Case A-18-2021, an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review to allow for 
façade improvements to the existing building located at 33 E. First Street in the B-2 Central Business 
District, subject to the condition that the applicant construct Option B. 
 
 
 

Signed: ____________________________________ 
Steve Cashman, Chair 
Plan Commission 
Village of Hinsdale 

 
 
Date: ______________________________________ 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 
 
 

DATE:   November 5, 2021 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

SUBJECT:  Case A-27-2021 – 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 – Special Use Permit to allow for a Martial 
Arts Studio (Physical Fitness Facility) for Premier Martial Arts (IJKLM, LLC) at 777 N. York 
Road, Unit 21 in the B-2 Community Business District - Scheduling of a Public Hearing 

FOR:   November 10, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
GENERAL APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Applicant: IJKLM, LLC 

Subject Property: 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 (PINs: 09-01-209-007; 09-01-209-010; 09-01-209-011; 09-01-
209-031; 09-01-209-032 

Site Area: 3.7 acres 

Existing Zoning & Land Use: B-1 Community General Business District – Gateway Square Shopping Center 

Surrounding Zoning & Land Use: 
North:  B-3 General Business District – Gas Station, Convenience Store, Office Building 
South:  O-2 Limited Office District – Office; R-4 Single Family Residential District – Single-Family 

Detached Homes 
East:  R-4 Single Family Residential District – Single-Family Detached Homes 
West:  O-2 Limited Office District – (across York Road) Office, Animal Hospital 
 
APPLICATION SUMMARY 

The applicant requests approval of a Special Use Permit to allow for the operation of a physical fitness 
facility (martial arts studio) at 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 located in the B-1 Community Business District 
for Premier Martial Arts. Martial arts studios are classified as physical fitness facilities, which are 
considered a Special Use in the B-1 Community Business District. 
 
It is requested that the public hearing for this application be scheduled for the next regular Plan 
Commission meeting on December 8, 2021. 
 
REQUEST AND ANALYSIS 

The tenant space is located in the Gateway Square Shopping Center, which consists of two one-story, 
multi-tenant buildings and 246 parking spaces. A mix of businesses currently operate within the shopping 
center including restaurants, retail, educational tutoring services, physical fitness facilities, beauty salons, 
and other services.  
 



 
 
 
 
 

2 

MEMORANDUM 

Premier Martial Arts will provide mixed martial arts and self-defense classes to children and adults. 
According to the applicant, the studio will operate four (4) days a week from 3:00 PM to 9:00 PM. A total 
of two (2) employees will be on site at any one point in time and each class will have five (5) to twenty-
five (25) students. Five (5) to six (6) classes will be held a day. 
 
The proposed tenant space measures 1,742 square feet in size. As shown on the submitted interior floor 
plan, the space includes a lobby and sitting area, instructional classroom area, restrooms, and a small 
office area.  
 
The applicant has provided a parking analysis for review. There are currently 246 spaces provided in the 
shopping center. With the addition of the proposed physical fitness facility a total of 194-201 spaces would 
be required depending if the existing three vacant spaces were utilized as a retail or service use in the 
future. Per Section 9-104, there are an excess of 45-52 spaces per code requirements. It should also be 
noted that the applicant used gross floor area to calculate parking requirements. Per the code, off-street 
parking requirements are calculated using net floor area, which is the gross floor area minus floor space 
devoted to washrooms intended for general public use; elevator shafts and stairwells at each floor; floor 
space and shafts used for mechanical, electrical, and plumbing equipment; public foyers and atria 
intended for general public use; exterior building walls; floor space devoted to off street parking and 
loading; and basement floor space used only for bulk storage. If using net floor area, the required parking 
would result in a lower number.  
 
There are no proposed changes to the exterior of the building, with the exception of signage that will be 
reviewed via a Sign Permit in the future.  
 
REVIEW PROCESS 

Pursuant to Section 11-602, a public hearing shall be set, noticed, and conducted by the Plan Commission 
in accordance with Section 11-303. Within 45 days following the conclusion of the public hearing, the Plan 
Commission shall transmit to the Village Board its recommendation in the form specified by Subsection 
11-103(H). The failure of the Plan Commission to act within 45 days following the conclusion of such 
hearing, or such further time to which the applicant may agree, shall be deemed a recommendation for 
the approval of the proposed amendment as submitted. 

Within 60 days following the receipt of the recommendation of the plan commission, or its failure to act 
as above provided, the board of trustees shall either deny the application or, by ordinance duly adopted, 
shall grant the special use permit, with or without modifications or conditions. The failure of the board of 
trustees to act within 60 days, or such further time to which the applicant may agree, shall be deemed to 
be a decision denying the special use permit. 

No Special Use Permit shall be recommended or granted unless the applicant shall establish that the 
Standards listed in Section 11-602(E) are met.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Aerial View  
3. Birdseye View  
4. Street View  
5. Special Use Permit Applications and Exhibits  



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

777 N. York 
Road 



 
 

Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

 

777 N. York Road 
 



Aerial View – 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 
 

 

 

Unit 21 



Birds Eye View – 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 
 
 

 





























Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts 
Studio Number 1 
 

 

Chairman and Members of  
Hinsdale Plan Commission 
19 E. Chicago Ave. 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 
 
  Re:  Martial Arts Studio – Gateway Square 
   
Dear Chairman and Commissioners: 

Our company has agreed to lease space #21, consisting of 1,675 SF, at Gateway Square Shopping Center, for a 
mixed martial arts studio, offering classes for children and adults, under the Premier Martial Arts system.  

Our Premier Martial Arts studio will provide mixed martial arts and self-defense classes designed to improve 
students’ confidence by being able to defend themselves and their families. Our mixed martial arts system is a 
hybrid style that incorporates the techniques and concepts of Kickboxing, Israeli Krav Maga, Kali, and Submission 
Grappling. 

Students will focus their training on acquiring and perfecting required skill sets. Students will gain confidence from 
a curriculum that teaches skills at which they can easily be proficient. Students will perform daily from skill and 
instinct and not from memorization. Students will be promoted based upon class attendance and skills; students will 
be individually ranked and promoted. 

Students trained in Premier Martial Arts will be part of a positive, like minded, exciting group of people and they 
will feel included in one of the largest martial arts organizations in the world.   

We offer the following specifics about our classes: 

• Target age range for each class and length of each class 
o Tiny Champs Program: Ages 3 to 4 – 30 mins.  
o Little Champs Program: Ages 5 to 7 – 45 mins. 
o Premier Kids Program: Ages 8 to 12 – 60 mins. 
o Teen & Adult Training: Ages: 13+ – 1 hour 30 mins. 
o There are also black belt programs for all ages that are designed to take the students training to the 

next level. This special program is considered in the class time above.  
 

• Minimum and maximum size of each class 
o Min / max students per week - 80 students to 220 students  
o Min / max students per class - 5 students to 25 students per class 
o 5 to 6 classes per day (4 days per week) 

 

 



Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts 
Studio Number 1 
 

• Parent engagement 
o Parents have the option either to drop off their children at the studio and enjoy the shopping center 

(or run errands nearby), or to remain in the studio and observe the class. Our space will have a 
designated seating space for parents who choose to stay and observe. 
 

• Hours of operation 
o 3:00PM to 9:00PM, four (4) days per week 

 
• Goals of the business 

o To emphasize quality of performance and skill acquisition as the main requirements for 
advancement. 

o To focus our curriculum on self-protection and blended martial arts training. 
o To provide a workout that burns off more calories than virtually any other activity, while 

increasing lean muscle mass  
o To provide an exciting class instruction that improves consistency, which is the key to success in 

any activity  
o To encourage students to learn the self-discipline it takes to lose weight and keep it off 
o To provide training in the martial arts that is a fun and exciting part of a student’s life. 

 
• Estimated # of employees  

o Total employees in company:  2-3 Full time staff plus 2 owners of the business 
o Total employees on site at any one time: 2  

Submitted with this letter are photos of actual PMA students and classes. We are excited about bringing Premier 
Martial Arts to Hinsdale and look forward to working with you to bring our dream to fruition.  

IJKLM, LLC 

By: 

 

Kevin McElroy, Manager    James McElroy, Manager 

 



Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts 
Studio Number 1 
 

 

 

 



Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts 
Studio Number 1 
 

 



Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts 
Studio Number 1 
 

 



Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts 
Studio Number 1 
 

 



Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts 
Studio Number 1 
 

 

 



Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts 
Studio Number 1 
 

 





103
PRIVATE INTRO.

102 SQ.FT.

FO
LD

IN
G

 D
ESK

104
45 SQ.FT.

STORAGE

102
HALLW

AY

146 SQ.FT.

106
43 SQ.FT.

HC. RR
105

43 SQ.FT.

HC. RR

5'-0 5/8"
10'-8 7/8"

9'-3 5/8"
25'-1 1/8"

8'-10"4'-11"36'-2 1/8"

25'-3"

36'-2 1/8"

69" LONG DESK

96" RETAIL WALL

101
INSTRUCTIONAL AREA

903 SQ.FT.

FUJI MAT TRANSITING STRIP
(FM-TRANSITIONKIT 34)

SAFEPATH PRODUCTS
REDUCER 1300 MAT FOR
ADA COMPLIANCE

SAFEPATH PRODUCTS
REDUCER 1300 MAT FOR
ADA COMPLIANCE

5'-0"11'-10"11'-2 3/4"

TV

TV

EXISTING
"PANEL A"

3'-7 3/8"6'-5"2'-5"4'-11"

9'-8" 2'-2" 5'-0"

12'-3"
3'-7 3/4"

9'-4 1/4"

100
LOBBY

293 SQ.FT.

67'-3 1/4"

25'-11 7/8"

6' TALL MIRRORS (2'-0" OFF THE FLOOR)

107
39 SQ.FT.

UTILITY

3'-7 3/8"11'-8 1/8"

5'-8 1/4"
5'-8 7/8"

5'-8 1/4"
5'-8 7/8"

11'-5 1/8"

EX'G W
ATER HEATER

ABOVE TO BE REMOVED ?

25'-3"

3'-0"

5'-9"

2'-0"
3'-0"

1'-6"

5 1/2" 8'-0"

SQUARE FOOTAGE ANALYSIS
TOTAL LEASABLE SQUARE FOOTAGE - 1742 SQ.FT.
TOTAL USEABLE SQUARE FOOTAGE -   1640 SQ.FT.

INSTRUCTIONAL AREA(903 SF)
=

55%
LOBBY(293 SF)

=
18%

OTHER SPACE(444 SF)
=

27%

UNDER 2006 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE  -
LIMITED TO 15 TOTAL OCCUPANTS W

ITH A SINGLE
RESTROOM.

OCCUPANCY LOAD = 29

21-179 - Test-Fit Plan - Rev. 03 - 2021-09-03

INSTRUCTIONAL AREA(903 SF / 50)
=

19
LOBBY(293 SF / 60)

=
5

BACK OF HOUSE (444 SF/ 100)
=

5

UNDER 2006 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE  -
LIMITED TO 15 TOTAL OCCUPANTS W

ITH A SINGLE
RESTROOM.

1
S

C
A

LE
: 1/8" =

 1'-0"

P
R

E
LIM

IN
A

R
Y

 FLO
O

R
 P

LA
N

 

21-179PROJECT NUMBER

399 LUCERNE DRIVE
SPARTANBURG, SC 29302

GERALD P. NOE
ARCHITECT

P: 864.583.2215 F: 864.583.2265
www.GPNArchitecture.com

THIS DRAWING IS AN INSTRUMENT OF
SERVICE AND SOLE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT, AND SHALL NOT BE USED
IN ANY WAY. WHATSOEVER, WITHOUT THE
WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ARCHITECT.
IT SHALL BE RETURNED TO THE ARCHITECT
UPON DEMAND.
                                   COPYRIGHT 2021
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

777 NORTH YORK ROAD
UNIT 21
HINSDALE IL, 60521

AutoCAD SHX Text
WH





 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   November 5, 2021 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

RE:  Case A-28-2021 – 6 W. Hinsdale Avenue – Indifference Salon – Installation of One (1) 
Wall Sign and One (1) Permanent Window Sign 

FOR:  November 10, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Summary 
The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign permit application from Indifference Salon requesting approval 
to install one (1) wall sign and one (1) permanent window sign for their business located 6 W. Hinsdale 
Avenue. The existing two-story, multi-tenant building is located in the B-2 Central Business District and 
the Downtown Historic District. 
 
Request and Analysis 
The applicant is requesting to install one (1) new wall sign on the wood panel area over the storefront 
window, which was previously covered by a purple awning that served a former business. The proposed 
wall sign consists of non-illuminated, white vinyl letters attached to a black aluminum panel mounted to 
the white wood. The sign measures 23” tall and 57” wide, with an overall sign face area of 9.1 square feet. 
 
Additionally, a permanent window sign with a semi-translucent, etched glass appearance is proposed on 
the bottom of the storefront window. The sign measures 9” tall and 65” wide, with a sign face area of 4 
square feet. With the wall signage included, a total sign face surface area of 13.1 square feet is proposed.  
 
Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-2 District, two (2) awning valance, canopy valance, wall, or permanent 
window signs are allowed per user. A maximum gross surface area of all awning valance, canopy valance, 
wall, and permanent window signs for the entire building shall not exceed the greater of: 1) one square 
foot per foot of building frontage, up to a maximum of one hundred (100) square feet, or 2) twenty five 
(25) square feet for each business that has a separate ground level principal entrance directly to the 
outside of the building onto a street, alley, courtyard, or parking lot. Overall, the combined sign face area 
of the permanent window signage and the proposed wall sign is under the maximum 25 square feet of 
total sign face area allowed for the tenant space.  
 
Meeting History 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting – November 3, 2021 - At the meeting, a representative from 
the sign contractor company provided an overview of the proposed signage and answered questions from 
the Commissioners. One Commissioner asked for clarification on why the sample material for the 
aluminum backer panel provided in the packet was white, but the plans showed that the background as 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

black. The sign contractor confirmed that the aluminum is white in color, but black vinyl will be installed 
over the white to create a black background, leaving only the cut out letters white.  
 
The sign contractor confirmed during the meeting that the sign panel will be installed over the existing 
white wooden space and no painting is proposed. One Commissioner noted it was important to ensure 
that the window sash and frame not be painted a different color so that it matches the other windows on 
the building and is consistent with the building’s architecture.  
 
There was also a discussion on the proposed permanent window signage. Staff confirmed that the sign 
will use an etched glass look for the background area and the clear glass will show through where the cut 
out letters are located. It is a simulated etched glass look, not true etched glass. The signage meets the 
Village’s code requirements.  
 
The Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval of the sign permit, Case A-28-2021 for 
6 W. Hinsdale Avenue for Indifference Salon to allow for the installation of one (1) wall sign and one 
(1) permanent window sign, as submitted, by a vote of 4-0 (3 absent).  

Process 
Per Section 11-607(D), sign permit applications shall be reviewed and approved by the Plan Commission 
and does not require public notification. Per Village Code Section 14-5-1(B), the Historic Preservation 
Commission shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of the Historic Preservation 
Commission shall be advisory only. The Plan Commission maintains final authority on signage with no 
further action required by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
Attachments 
1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Birds Eye View  
3. Street View  
4. Sign Application and Exhibits 

 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

6 W. Hinsdale 
Avenue 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

 

 

6 W. Hinsdale 
Avenue 

 



Birds Eye View – 6 W. Hinsdale Avenue 
 

 

 



Street View – 6 W. Hinsdale Avenue  
 

 

  

Please note the purple awning for the former business has been removed since this photo was taken 

6 W. Hinsdale 
Avenue 













 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 5, 2021 

TO:  Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
 Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

RE:  Case A-26-2021 – 600 W. Ogden Avenue – ProMedica Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation – 
Installation of a New Sign Face on an Existing Non-Conforming Ground Sign  

FOR:  November 10, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Summary 
The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign permit application from Gardner Signs, Inc. seeking approval 
to install a new sign face on the existing ground sign located at 600 W. Ogden Avenue in the R-5 Multiple 
Family Residential District. The sign will be utilized by ProMedica Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation, a 
nursing home facility (formerly ManorCare). 
 
Request and Analysis 
Per Section 9-106, ground signs are not permitted in any residential district, including the R-5 Multiple 
Family Residential District. As a result, the existing sign is considered non-conforming and is subject to the 
regulations listed in Section 10-106 of the Zoning Code. No non-conforming sign shall be changed or 
altered in any manner that would increase the degree of its non-conformity, be enlarged or expanded, be 
structurally altered to prolong its useful life, or be moved in whole or in part to any other location where 
it would remain non-conforming. A change in sign message which does not otherwise violate the 
provisions of the Zoning Code is allowed.  
 
The applicant is requesting approval to install a new sign face on each side of the existing ground sign 
along Ogden Avenue. As shown on the signage plans, there are no proposed changes to the existing brick 
structure, which measures 18’ 2” wide and 3’ 1-½” tall. The proposed sign will consist of non-illuminated, 
flat cut-out aluminum letters and a logo, which will be stud mounted onto the existing brick base. The 
logo consists of three shades of green and the letters will be white.  
 
The proposed sign face area will be smaller in size than the existing sign face. The existing sign face 
measures 14’ 9” wide and 1’ 7-½” tall, with a sign face area of 23.9 square feet. The proposed sign face 
measures 9’ 11-½” wide and 1’ 6-½” tall with a sign face area of 15.3 square feet.  
 
Per the applicant, there are no changes to the existing external spot lights. The illumination of any sign, 
resulting from any internal or external artificial light source, may not exceed 50 foot-candles when 
measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to the sign face at a distance equal to the 
narrowest dimension of such sign face. All artificial illumination shall be so designed, located, shielded, 
and directed as to illuminate only the sign face or faces and to prevent the casting of glare or direct light 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

upon adjacent property or streets. Any illuminated sign located on a lot abutting or across a street from, 
and visible from, any residentially zoned area shall not be illuminated between the hours of 10:00 P.M. 
and 7:00 A.M. except that such sign may remain illuminated during such time as the activity to which the 
sign pertains is open for business so long as such sign is not a public or private nuisance. 
 
The applicant has not provided additional details on changes to the landscaping around the base of the 
signs, however, the plans include a note stating “Landscaping during growing season will require lower 
plantings for sign visibility.”  
 
It should be noted that the former sign for ManorCare was recently removed from the existing brick base 
and the applicant installed a new sign face for ProMedica without prior approval of a Sign Permit. A notice 
of violation was sent to the applicant requiring that approval of a Sign Permit by the Plan Commission.  
 
Process 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Plan Commission and does not require public notification. Plan Commission maintains final authority 
on signage with no further action required by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
Attachments 
1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Aerial View  
3. Street View  
4. Sign Application and Exhibits 

 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

600 W. Ogden 
Avenue 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

  

 

600 W. Ogden 



Aerial View – 600 W. Ogden Avenue 
 

 

  

600 W. Ogden 



Street View – 600 W. Ogden Avenue 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 





















 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

 
              MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 

DATE:   November 5, 2021 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

SUBJECT:  Case A-25-2021 – 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue – Performance Wealth Management – Exterior 
Appearance Review, Site Plan Review, and Sign Permit Review to allow for the installation 
of one (1) new wall sign and exterior changes to the façade of the building located at 36 
E. Hinsdale Avenue in the B-2 Central Business District 

FOR:  November 10, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
GENERAL APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Applicant: Courtland, LLC 

Subject Property: 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue (PIN: 09-12-129-005) 

Existing Zoning & Land Use: B-2 Central Business District – Beauty Salon (Salon Lofts) on the First Floor / 
Vacant on the Second Floor   

Surrounding Zoning & Land Use: 
North:  OS Open Space District – (across Burlington Northern Railroad) Burlington Park 
South:  IB Institutional Buildings District – Village-Owned Parking Lot  
East:  B-2 Central Business District – Restaurant / Offices 
West:  B-2 Central Business District – Restaurant / Barbershop  
 
APPLICATION SUMMARY 

The applicant requests approval of an Exterior Appearance Review, Site Plan Review, and Sign Permit 
Review to allow for the installation of one (1) new wall sign and changes to front and rear façade of the 
existing two-story building for Performance Wealth Management located at 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue in the 
B-2 Central Business District.  
 
BACKGROUND 

The first floor tenant space is occupied by Salon Lofts, a beauty salon, and the second floor is occupied by 
Performance Wealth, which operates an office specializing in financial planning and wealth management. 
 
The subject property is located in the Downtown Historic District. According to the 2006 National Register 
of Historic Places Nomination and the 2003 Architectural Resources in the Downtown Survey Area, the 
building is classified as a Contributing Structure in the Historic District. The building was constructed in 
1924 and features Two-Part Commercial Block architecture. According to the 2003 Downtown Survey, the 
building was formerly used as a garage for a Ford Motor Dealership once located in the adjacent building 
at 40 E. Hinsdale Avenue and was later converted into a toy store.  



 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

MEMORANDUM 

The building has been altered over time. According to the 2003 Downtown Survey, the transom areas 
above the storefront windows have been bricked over. Additionally, on March 20, 2018, the Village Board 
approved an Exterior Appearance Plan to modify the front and rear façade of the two-story building 
(Ordinance No. O2018-12). On the front façade facing Hinsdale Avenue, a new alcove and entrance way 
were constructed for the second floor tenant space and modifications were made to the existing first floor 
storefront. At the rear of the building, an overhead door and awning were removed and replaced with 
new entrance doors and awnings. A new brick clad elevator tower was also constructed on the roof.  
 
REQUEST AND ANALYSIS 

The applicant is requesting several changes to the front and rear façade of the building and approval to 
install a new wall sign for Performance Wealth Management located on the second floor of the building. 
The proposed changes are summarized below.  
 
Exterior Changes to the Front Façade 

• Door Surround for the Second Floor Tenant Space – A new surround / trim constructed of wood to be 
painted white will be installed around the alcove and entrance door to the second floor tenant space.  

• Lighting – Three black gooseneck lights will be installed above the new door surround to illuminate 
the signage area. The light fixtures have an overall height of 15.5” and would extend a total of 17” 
from the building. The applicant has submitted light fixture information for review.  

The illumination of any sign, resulting from any internal or external artificial light source, may not 
exceed 50 foot-candles when measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to the sign 
face at a distance equal to the narrowest dimension of such sign face. All artificial illumination shall 
be so designed, located, shielded, and directed as to illuminate only the sign face or faces and to 
prevent the casting of glare or direct light upon adjacent property or streets. 

• Shutters – Shutters are proposed on both sides of the three existing second floor windows. The 
shutters will be constructed of a PVC composite material that is painted a dark navy color (“Hale 
Navy”), feature a raised panel design. As shown on the plans, the shutters measure 5.8’ tall and 2’ 
wide. The existing windows measure 6’ tall and 7.5’ wide.  

• Wall Sign – One (1) new wall sign is proposed in the frieze / upper trim area of the door surround. The 
proposed wall sign measures 1’ 6-3/8” tall and 5’ 6” wide, with an overall sign face area of 8.42 square 
feet. The wall sign consists of non-illuminated, flat cut out letters and a logo constructed of aluminum 
in gold and a dark navy blue color that will be pin-mounted to the wood surround. 

Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-2 District, two (2) awning valance, canopy valance, wall, or permanent 
window signs are allowed per user. A maximum gross surface area of all awning valance, canopy 
valance, wall, and permanent window signs for the entire building shall not exceed the greater of: 1) 
one square foot per foot of building frontage, up to a maximum of one hundred (100) square feet, or 
2) twenty five (25) square feet for each business that has a separate ground level principal entrance 
directly to the outside of the building onto a street, alley, courtyard, or parking lot.  

It should be noted that Performance Wealth Management is allowed less signage area than the 
standard 25 square feet allowed for each business in a multi-tenant building with a separate 
storefront entrance.  



 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

MEMORANDUM 

Per Section 9-106(E)(11), when more than one user occupies a zoning lot, the owner of the lot shall 
be responsible for allocating permitted signage among its tenants. On May 9, 2018, the Plan 
Commission approved 40.5 square feet of signage for Salon Lofts out of the maximum 50 square feet 
of signage for the two tenant spaces in the building as allowed by the owner. Therefore, Performance 
Wealth would be allowed a maximum of 9.5 square feet of signage. As proposed, the signage complies 
with the Village’s code requirements. 

 
Exterior Changes to the Rear Facade 

• Awning Fabric – Two black awnings with a matching design are currently located above the two 
entrance doors at the rear of the building. The applicant is proposed to remove the black awning 
fabric on the left side of the rear elevation and reskin it with a dark navy blue fabric to match 
Performance Wealth Management’s branding colors. The awning measures 9’ 4” wide and 3’ tall and 
will have a covered side similar to the current design. No signage is proposed on the awning. 
 

MEETING HISTORY 

Historic Preservation Commission Meeting – November 3, 2021 – Mike Zalud, representing Courtland, 
LLC, the general contractor for the project, provided an overview of the proposed changes to the building 
and answered questions from the Commissioners. No public comment was made at the meeting.  
 
A summary of the items discussed is provided below: 

• Shutters – The Commission expressed concern over the proposed second floor shutters, which will be 
less than half of the width of the windows and would be an inappropriate change to the historic 
building. The building would be better left without shutters and if the applicant really wanted to dress 
up the second floor windows, planter boxes or iron work could be explored as an alternative.  

• Door Surround for the Second Floor Tenant Space – The entrance and alcove for the second floor was 
added in 2018 and was intended to be a secondary entrance, with the central primary entrance 
serving Salon Lofts.  The Commission expressed concern that the new entrance header would be taller 
than the existing main entrance for Salon Lofts and the adjacent storefront windows, making it visually 
more prominent than the primary entrance. It was recommended that the secondary entrance should 
be designed to look like a secondary entrance. This could be achieved by reducing the height of the 
top header / pediment to be shorter than the existing header for Salon Lofts or roughly align with the 
top of the storefront windows. 

As proposed, the proposed rectangular pediment cap and pilasters for the new entrance surround 
also would conflict with the existing brick pilaster and limestone courses at the corner of the building 
and the adjacent storefront window. It was recommended that the pilasters for the new entrance be 
made narrower so that the trim doesn’t extend into the storefront windows of Salon Lofts or the 
decorative limestone and brick work. 
 
With the reduction to the height of the pediment / top header, the Commission was okay with the 
proposed gooseneck lighting and signage area also being lowered in height.  
 



 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

MEMORANDUM 

The Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval of Case A-25-2021, an Exterior Appearance 
and Site Plan Review for 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue – Performance Wealth Management, by a vote of 4-0 (3 
absent), subject to the following conditions: 

• The second-floor shutters are eliminated 

• The height of the pediment is reduced to the point where the top of the cap aligns with either the 
bottom of the limestone to the east or the top of the window to the west.  

• The pilasters are narrowed in width to reflect the new pediment height and so that the pediment 
will not encroach the adjacent window 

 
REVIEW PROCESS 

Exterior Appearance & Site Plan Review - Pursuant to Section 11-604 and Section 11-606, the Chairman 
of the Plan Commission shall at the public meeting on the application for an Exterior Appearance Review 
or Site Plan Review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, material and nonrepetitive 
comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the public meeting, the Plan 
Commission shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the form specified in 
Subsection 11-103(H), recommending either approval or disapproval of the Exterior Appearance and Site 
Plan based on the standards set forth in Section 11-604 and Section 11-606. 
 
Within 90 days following the receipt of the recommendation of the Plan Commission, or its failure to act 
as above provided, the Board of Trustees, by ordinance duly adopted, shall approve the site plan as 
submitted, or shall make modifications acceptable to the applicant and approve such modified site plan, 
or shall disapprove it either with or without a remand to the plan commission for further consideration. 
The failure of the board of trustees to act within ninety (90) days, or such further time to which the 
applicant may agree, shall be deemed to be a decision denying site plan approval.  
 
The subject property is not located within 250 feet from a single-family zoning district, therefore, public 
notice via the newspaper, certified mail, or signage is not required for this project. 
 
Sign Permit Review - Per Section 11-607(D), sign permit applications shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Plan Commission and does not require public notification. Per Village Code Section 14-5-1(B), the 
Historic Preservation Commission shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of the 
Historic Preservation Commission shall be advisory only. The Plan Commission maintains final authority 
on signage with no further action required by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 



 
 
 
 
 

5 
 

MEMORANDUM 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Birdseye View  
3. Street View  
4. Certificate of Appropriateness Review Criteria - Village Code Title 14, Section 14-5-2  
5. Downtown Historic District Map 
6. National Register of Historic Places Nomination Sheet (2006) 
7. Architectural Resources in the Downtown Survey Area Survey Sheet (2003) 
8. Exterior Appearance Review, Site Plan Review, Sign Permit Review Applications and Exhibits  



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

36 E. Hinsdale 
Avenue 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

 

 

36 E. Hinsdale 
Avenue 

 



Birds Eye View – 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue 
 

 

 

 

 

 

36 E. Hinsdale 



 

Birds Eye View – 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue 
 

 

 

36 E. Hinsdale 
Avenue 



Street View – 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue  
 

 
 

 



CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW CRITERIA  
VILLAGE CODE TITLE 14, SECTION 14-5-2 
 
14-5-2: CRITERIA: 

All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 
 
A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or 
building as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its 
environment should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or 
distinctive architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an 
economically viable use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the 
true age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have 
acquired significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and 
respected when dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. 
In the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being 
replaced in composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement 
of missing architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, 
substantiated by historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the 
availability of different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and 
buildings should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such 
structures or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are 
compatible with the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or 
environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed 
in the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area 
would be unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general 
welfare of the Village and its residents. 

11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, 
even if demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

 

 



2 
 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the 
original landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any 
proposed alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style 
and character of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an 
historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and 
adjacent open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to 
such alteration. The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after 
alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the relationship between 
surrounding structures, buildings and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and 
scale of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such 
alteration. The relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an 
alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, 
width, and scale of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its 
vertical or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the 
original landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures 
and buildings within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof 
shape of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration 
within an historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and 
buildings within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural 
details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be 
compatible with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the 
original landmark. The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a 
structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures 
and buildings within such historic district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be 
compatible with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and 
appurtenances of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be 
compatible with the landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 

 

C. Additional Standards: In addition to the foregoing standards, the commission may consider the 
secretary of the interior's standards for rehabilitation guidelines for rehabilitating historic buildings 
(revised 1983), and any amendments thereto, in reviewing any application under this section.  

 





Bsalmon
Text Box



























































 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

 
              MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 
DATE:   November 5, 2021 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

SUBJECT:  Case A-26-2021 – 4 N. Washington Street – Chase Bank Parking Lot Lighting – Exterior 
Appearance and Site Plan Review to allow for the installation of two (2) parking lot light 
poles and one (1) wall-mounted light for Chase Bank located at 4 N. Washington Street in 
the B-1 Community Business District 

FOR:  November 10, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
GENERAL APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Applicant: Terron Wright 

Subject Property: 4 N. Washington Street (PIN: 09-01-331-010) 

Existing Zoning & Land Use: B-1 Community Business District – Bank   

Surrounding Zoning & Land Use: 
North:  R-5 Multiple Family Residential District – Eve Assisted Living and Memory Care 
South:  B-1 Community Business District – (across Chicago Avenue) Gas Station and Convenience Store, 

Office Building  
East:  IB Institutional Buildings District – (across Washington Street) Memorial Building – Hinsdale Public 

Library / Village Hall 
West:  B-1 Community Business District – Multi-tenant Office Building  
 
APPLICATION SUMMARY 
The applicant requests approval of an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review to allow for the 
installation of two (2) parking lot light poles and one (1) wall-mounted light in the parking lot of Chase 
Bank located at 4 N. Washington Street in the B-1 Community Business District.  
 
The existing two-story building is occupied by Chase Bank and the site contains two parking lot areas 
located on the east and west sides of the building. The north side of the subject property is directly 
adjacent to Eve Assisted Living located in the R-5 Multiple Family Residential District. The subject property 
is not located in the Downtown Historic District and therefore the project does not require a review by 
the Historic Preservation Commission.   
 
REQUEST AND ANALYSIS 
The applicant is requesting to install two (2) parking lot light poles and one (1) wall-mounted light. 
According to the applicant, the proposed lighting will provide customers and employees safety and 
comfort. Details on the proposed changes are provided below: 



 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

MEMORANDUM 

• Parking Lot Light Poles - One light pole is proposed in the landscape bufferyard along the west 
property line adjacent to the rear alley and the other light is proposed in the landscape area adjacent 
to the driveway and a parking space on the east side of the building. The Viper S Small Viper Luminaire 
fixture manufactured by Beacon Products has a 55W LED array with a color temperature of 3000K. 
The aluminum fixture and the pole will utilize a black matte textured finish. A 90° shield will be 
installed on the right side of the fixture along the rear alley on the west property line to reduce light 
spilling onto the Eve Assisted Living and Memory Care property to the north. A fixture with a wider 
distribution is proposed for the light near the front parking lot area near Washington Avenue. The 
fixture, light pole, and concrete based will have a combined height of twelve (12) feet.  
 

• Wall-Mounted Light - One (1) wall-mounted light is proposed on the west façade, which will be 
mounted 12’ from grade. The proposed light fixture, LNC2 Small LitePak manufactured by Hubbell 
Outdoor Lighting, Inc., will consists of 18 LEDs with a color temperature of 3000K. The aluminum 
fixture will have a matte black textured finish.  

 
Per Section 9-104(H)(2)(h), “Fixed lighting shall be provided for all parking lots and garages 
accommodating more than ten (10) vehicles. Such lighting shall be so arranged as to prevent direct glare 
of beams onto any public or private property or streets by the use of luminaire cutoffs. All lighting shall 
be reduced to security levels at all times of nonuse.”  
 
Per Section 9-101(D)(9), “Any permitted accessory lighting fixtures shall be so designed, arranged, and 
operated as to prevent glare and direct rays of light from being cast onto any adjacent public or private 
property or street and so as not to produce excessive sky reflected glare. Except for streetlights, no 
exterior light in or adjacent to any residential district shall be so designed, arranged, or operated to 
produce an intensity of light exceeding one-half (1/2) foot-candle at any residential lot line.” As shown on 
the proposed photometric plan, the lighting levels will less than 0.5 footcandles along the north lot line 
abutting the assisted living facility.  

 
REVIEW PROCESS 

Exterior Appearance & Site Plan Review - Pursuant to Section 11-604 and Section 11-606, the Chairman 
of the Plan Commission shall at the public meeting on the application for an Exterior Appearance Review 
or Site Plan Review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, material and nonrepetitive 
comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the public meeting, the Plan 
Commission shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the form specified in 
Subsection 11-103(H), recommending either approval or disapproval of the Exterior Appearance and Site 
Plan based on the standards set forth in Section 11-604 and Section 11-606. 
 
Within 90 days following the receipt of the recommendation of the Plan Commission, or its failure to act 
as above provided, the Board of Trustees, by ordinance duly adopted, shall approve the site plan as 
submitted, or shall make modifications acceptable to the applicant and approve such modified site plan, 
or shall disapprove it either with or without a remand to the plan commission for further consideration. 
The failure of the board of trustees to act within ninety (90) days, or such further time to which the 
applicant may agree, shall be deemed to be a decision denying site plan approval.  
 



 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

MEMORANDUM 

The subject property is not located within 250 feet from a single-family zoning district, therefore, the 
applicant is not required to provide public notice via the newspaper, certified mail, or signage for this 
project. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Aerial View 
3. Birdseye View  
4. Street View  
5. Exterior Appearance / Site Plan Review Applications and Exhibits  



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

4 N. Washington 
Street 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

  

 

4 N. Washington 
Street 

 



Aerial View – 4 N. Washington 
 

 

 

4 N. Washington 



Birds Eye View – 4 N. Washington Street 
 

 

 

 

 



Street View – 4 N. Washington 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



Street View – 4 N. Washington 
 

 

 



1 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

DEPARTMENT 

PLAN COMMISSION APPLICATION

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

Applicant 
Name: ___________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

Owner 

Others, if any, involved in the project (i.e. Architect, Attorney, Engineer) 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

Disclosure of Village Personnel:  (List the name, address and Village position of any officer or employee 
of the Village with an interest in the owner of record, the Applicant or the property that is the subject of this 
application, and the nature and extent of that interest) 

1) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

2) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

3) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 



2 

II. SITE INFORMATION

Address of subject property: _____________________________________________________ 

Property identification number (P.I.N. or tax number): ____ - ____ - ______ - _______  

Brief description of proposed project: ________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

General description or characteristics of the site: ________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Existing zoning and land use: _________________ 

Surrounding zoning and existing land uses: 

North: _______________________________     South: ______________________________ 

East: ________________________________     West: _______________________________ 

Proposed zoning and land use: _____________________________ 

E i i f f f

Please mark the approval(s) you are seeking and attach all applicable applications and 
standards for each approval requested: 

Site Plan Approval 11-604

Design Review Permit 11-605E

Exterior Appearance 11-606E 

Special Use Permit 11-602E
Special Use Requested: _______________ 
___________________________________ 

 Map and Text Amendments 11-601E
Amendment Requested: ______________ 
__________________________________ 

      ______________________________________ 

 Planned Development 11-603E

 Development in the B-2 Central Business 
District Questionnaire



3 

TABLE OF COMPLIANCE 

Address of subject property: ________________________________________________________ 

The following table is based on the __________ Zoning District.   

Minimum Code 
Requirements 

Proposed/Existing  
Development 

Minimum Lot Area (s.f.) 
Minimum Lot Depth 
Minimum Lot Width 
Building Height 

Number of Stories 
Front Yard Setback 
Corner Side Yard Setback 
Interior Side Yard Setback 
Rear Yard Setback  
Maximum Floor Area Ratio 
(F.A.R.)* 
Maximum Total Building 
Coverage* 
Maximum Total Lot Coverage* 
Parking Requirements   

Parking front yard setback 
Parking corner side yard 
setback 
Parking interior side yard 
setback 
Parking rear yard setback 
Loading Requirements 
Accessory Structure 
Information 
* Must provide actual square footage number and percentage.

application despite such lack of compliance: _____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



4 

CERTIFICATION
The Applicant certifies and acknowledges and agrees that:
A. The statements contained in this application are true and correct to the best of the Applicant's knowledge and 

belief.  The owner of the subject property, if different from the applicant, states that he or she consents to the filing 
of this application and that all information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of his or her 
knowledge. 

B. The applicant understands that an incomplete or nonconforming application will not be considered.  In addition, 
the applicant understands that the Village may require additional information prior to the consideration of this 
application which may include, but is not limited to, the following items:    

1. Minimum yard and setback dimensions and, where relevant, relation of yard and setback dimensions 
to the height, width, and depth of any structure. 

2. A vehicular and pedestrian circulation plan showing the location, dimensions, gradient, and number of 
all vehicular and pedestrian circulation elements including rights-of-way and streets; driveway 
entrances, curbs, and curb cuts; parking spaces, loading spaces, and circulation aisles; sidewalks, 
walkways, and pathways; and total lot coverage of all circulation elements divided as between 
vehicular and pedestrian ways. 

3. All existing and proposed surface and subsurface drainage and retention and detention facilities and 
all existing and proposed water, sewer, gas, electric, telephone, and cable communications lines and 
easements and all other utility facilities. 

4. Location, size, and arrangement of all outdoor signs and lighting. 

5. Location and height of fences or screen plantings and the type or kink of building materials or 
plantings used for fencing or screening. 

6. A detailed landscaping plan, showing location, size, and species of all trees, shrubs, and other plant 
material. 

7. A traffic study if required by the Village Manager or the Board or Commission hearing the application. 

C. The Applicants shall make the property that is the subject of this application available for inspection by the Village 
at reasonable times;  

D. If any information provided in this application changes or becomes incomplete or inapplicable for any reason 
following submission of this application, the Applicants shall submit a supplemental application or other 
acceptable written statement containing the new or corrected information as soon as practicable but not less than 
ten days following the change, and that failure to do so shall be grounds for denial of the application; and 

E. The Applicant understands that he/she is responsible for all application fees and any other fees, which the Village 
assesses under the provisions of Subsection 11-301D of the Village of Hinsdale Zoning Code as amended April 
25, 1989. 

F. THE OWNER OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AND, IF DIFFERENT, THE APPLICANT ARE JOINTLY AND 
SEVERALLY LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE APPLICABLE APPLICATION FEE.  BY SIGNING THE 
APPLICATION, THE OWNER HAS AGREED TO PAY SAID FEE, AND TO CONSENT TO THE FILING AND 
FORECLOSURE OF A LIEN AGAINST SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE FEE PLUS COSTS OF COLLECTION, 
IF THE ACCOUNT IS NOT SETTLED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER THE MAILING OF A DEMAND FOR 
PAYMENT. 

On the ____________, day of ______________, 2_____, I/We have read the above certification, understand it, and agree 
to abide by its conditions. 

_________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Signature of applicant or authorized agent Signature of applicant or authorized agent 

_________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Name of applicant or authorized agent  Name of applicant or authorized agent 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
to before me this ______ day of 
_______________, _________.   ______________________________ 

Notary Public  





-1-

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

19 East Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois  60521-3489 

630.789.7030 

Application for Certificate of Zoning Compliance 

You must complete all portions of this application.  If you think certain 
information 
space, then attach separate sheets to this form. 

______________________________________________ 

______________________________________________ 

Property address: ______________________________________________ 

Property legal description: [attach to this form] 

Present zoning classification:
Square footage of property: ______________________________________________ 

Lot area per dwelling: ______________________________________________ 

Lot dimensions: ____ x ____

Current use of property: ______________________________________________ 
Proposed use: Single-family detached dwelling

Other: ________________________________________

Approval sought: Building Permit Variation
Special Use Permit Planned Development
Site Plan Exterior Appearance
Design Review
Other: ________________________________________ 

Brief description of request and proposal:
_____________________________________________________________________ 

Plans & Specifications: [submit with this form] 

Provided: Required by Code: 
Yards: 

front: _________ _________
interior side(s) ____ /____ ____ /____





                         - 1 - 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
DEPARTMENT 

EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND 
SITE PLAN REVIEW CRITERIA 

Address of proposed request:  __________________________________________________ 

REVIEW CRITERIA 

Section 11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Exterior appearance review.  The exterior appearance 
review process is intended to protect, preserve, and enhance the character and architectural heritage and 
quality of the Village, to protect, preserve, and enhance property values, and to promote the health, safety, and 
welfare of the Village and its residents.  Please note that Subsection Standards for building permits refers to 
Subsection 11-605E Standards and considerations for design permit review.   
***PLEASE NOTE***   If this is a non-residential property within 250 feet of a single-family 
residential district, additional notification requirements are necessary.  Please contact the Village 
Planner for a description of the additional requirements.  

FEES for Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review: 
Standard Application: $600.00 

Within 250 feet of a Single-Family Residential District: $800 

Below are the criteria that will be used by the Plan Commission, Zoning and Public Safety 
Committee and Board of Trustees in reviewing Exterior Appearance Review requests.  Please 
respond to each criterion as it relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper 
to respond to questions if needed. 

1. Open spaces.  The quality of the open space between buildings and in setback spaces 
between street and facades.   

2. Materials.  The quality of materials and their relationship to those in existing adjacent 
structures.  

3. General design.  The quality of the design in general and its relationship to the overall 
character of neighborhood.  



                         - 2 - 

4. General site development.  The quality of the site development in terms of landscaping, 
recreation, pedestrian access, auto access, parking, servicing of the property, and impact on 
vehicular traffic patterns and conditions on-site and in the vicinity of the site, and the retention 
of trees and shrubs to the maximum extent possible.   

5. Height.  The height of the proposed buildings and structures shall be visually compatible with 
adjacent buildings.  

6. Proportion of front façade.  The relationship of the width to the height of the front elevation 
shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually 
related.   

7. Proportion of openings.  The relationship of the width to the height of windows shall be visually 
compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which the building is visually related.  

8. Rhythm of solids to voids in front facades.  The relationship of solids to voids in the front 
façade of a building shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to 
which it is visually related.   

9. Rhythm of spacing and buildings on streets.  The relationship of a building or structure to the 
open space between it and adjoining buildings or structures shall be visually compatible with 
the buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related.   

10. Rhythm of entrance porch and other projections.  The relationship of entrances and other 
projections to sidewalks shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and 
places to which it is visually related.   

11. Relationship of materials and texture.  The relationship of the materials and texture of the 
façade shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials to be used in the buildings 
and structures to which it is visually related.   



                         - 3 - 

12. Roof shapes.  The roof shape of a building shall be visually compatible with the buildings to 
which it is visually related.  

13. Walls of continuity.  Building facades and appurtenances such as walls, fences, and landscape 
masses shall, when it is a characteristic of the area, form cohesive walls of enclosure along a 
street to ensure visual compatibility with the buildings, public ways, and places to which such 
elements are visually related.   

14. Scale of building.  The size and mass of buildings and structures in relation to open spaces, 
windows, door openings, porches, and balconies shall be visually compatible with the 
buildings, public ways, and places to which they are visually related.   

15. Directional expression of front elevation.  The buildings shall be visually compatible with the 
buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related in its directional character, 
whether this be vertical character, horizontal character, or nondirectional character.   

16. Special consideration for existing buildings.  For existing buildings, the Plan Commission and 
the Board of Trustees shall consider the availability of materials, technology, and 
craftsmanship to duplicate existing styles, patterns, textures, and overall detailing.  

REVIEW CRITERIA  Site Plan Review 
Below are the criteria that will be used by the Plan Commission and Board of Trustees in 
determining is the application does not meet the requirements for Site Plan Approval.  Briefly 
describe how this application will not do the below criteria.  Please respond to each criterion as it 
relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper to respond to questions if 
needed. 

Section 11-604 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Site Plan Review.  The site plan review 
process recognizes that even those uses and developments that have been determined to be 
generally suitable for location in a particular district are capable of adversely affecting the 
purposes for which this code was enacted unless careful consideration is given to critical design 
elements.   



- 4 -

1. The site plan fails to adequately meet specified standards required by the Zoning Code with
respect to the proposed use or development, including special use standards where
applicable.

2. The proposed site plan interferes with easements and rights-of-way.

3. The proposed site plan unreasonably destroys, damages, detrimentally modifies, or interferes
with the enjoyment of significant natural, topographical, or physical features of the site.

4. The proposed site plan is unreasonably injurious or detrimental to the use and enjoyment of
surrounding property.

5. The proposed site plan creates undue traffic congestion or hazards in the public streets, or the
circulation elements of the proposed site plan unreasonably creates hazards to safety on or off
site or disjointed, inefficient pedestrian or vehicular circulation paths on or off the site.

6. The screening of the site does not provide adequate shielding from or for nearby uses.

7. The proposed structures or landscaping are unreasonably lacking amenity in relation to, or are
incompatible with, nearby structures and uses.

8. In the case of site plans submitted in connection with an application for a special use permit,
the proposed site plan makes inadequate provision for the creation or preservation of open
space or for its continued maintenance.

9. The proposed site plan creates unreasonable drainage or erosion problems or fails to fully and
satisfactorily integrate the site into the overall existing and planned ordinance system serving
the community.



                         - 5 - 

10.The proposed site plan places unwarranted or unreasonable burdens on specified utility 

the overall existing and planned utility system serving the Village.   

11. The proposed site plan does not provide for required public uses designated on the Official 
Map.  

12. The proposed site plan otherwise adversely affects the public health, safety, or general 
welfare.   



0.314 ACRE

ME
TR

O  
CO

NS
UL

TIN
G  

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S
Re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
   

| 
  R

ep
ut

at
io

n 
  |

   
Re

su
lts

80
0.

52
5.

60
16

   
 w

w
w

.m
et

ro
ca

.n
et

R

Know what's below.
       Call before you dig.

N

SITE

DESCRIPTION:

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

SURVEYORS NOTES:

SCHEDULE B II EXCEPTIONS:

ENCROACHMENTS:

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE:



XXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK  TO REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EX
IS

TI
NG

 B
RI

CK
 S

ID
EW

AL
K

TO
 R

EM
AI

N 
(N

.I.
C.

)

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

TWO-STORY BRICK BUILDING

EXISTING
TRASH
ENCLOSURE
TO REMAIN
(N.I.C.)

EXISTING
MONUMENT SIGN
TO REMAIN (N.I.C.)

EXISTING STRIPING TO
REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EXISTING WOOD PRIVACY
FENCE TO REMAIN

10'-0"

SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

EXISTING PATIO ADJACENT PROPERTY

EXISTING PROPERTY LANDSCAPING

EXISTING OUTBULDING

EXISTING OUTBULDING

EXISTING MASONRY BUILDING

10'-0"
SID

E YAR
D

 SETBAC
K

 EXISTING PATIO AND STONE
RETAINING WALL TO REMAIN (N.I.C.)

EXISTING STRIPING TO
REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EXISTING LANDSCAPING  TO REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EXISTING PARKING LOT
TO REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EXISTING PARKING LOT
TO REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EXISTING LANDSCAPING  TO REMAIN. (N.I.C.)
EXISTING LANDSCAPING  TO REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EXISTING STRIPING TO
REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EXISTING STRIPING TO
REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

EXISTING
LANDSCAPING  TO
REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

2'-0"
2'-

0"

43
'-1

0 1
/8"

2'-
0"

46
'-3

 3/
4"

31'-4 5/8"

21
'-0

 7/
8"

2'-
0"

22
'-4

 3/
8"

2'-0"

EXISTING STRIPING TO
REMAIN. (N.I.C.)

S2
MOUNTING
HEIGHT: 12'

10'-9 1/2"

W1
MOUNTING
HEIGHT: 12'

S1
MOUNTING
HEIGHT: 12'

SEE LIGHT POLE
BASE DETAIL IN
SHEET A1.0

PREFERRED FINISH GRADE POSITION 4 1
/2"

3'-
0"

 M
IN

.

CONDUITS FOR ELECTRICAL
CIRCUITING AND GROUND ROD-
REFER TO ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS AND FIXTURE
SPECIFICATIONS FOR SIZES
AND POSITIONS

SE
E 

CH
AR

T 
FO

R 
DE

PT
H 

OF
 F

OU
ND

AT
IO

N 
BE

LO
W

 G
RA

DE

VE
RI

FY
 W

/ L
OC

AL
 C

OD
E

R1/2"

#3 CIRCULAR TIES @ 9" O.C.

AREA LIGHT FIXTURE POLE AND BASE
SHROUD ASSEMBLY- REFER TO LIGHT
FIXTURE SCHEDULE

2'-
0"

 M
IN

.- 
VE

RI
FY

 W
IT

H
CO

NC
RE

TE
 C

OV
ER

 R
EQ

UI
RE

ME
NT

S

R5 1
/2"

SECTION

PLAN

UNDISTURBED SOIL OR
ENGINEERED COMPACTED FILL
AS REQUIRED

CONDUITS FOR ELECTRICAL
CIRCUITING AND GROUND ROD-
REFER TO ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS AND FIXTURE
SPECIFICATIONS FOR SIZES
AND POSITIONS

HAND HOLE

3"

(4) 3/4" ASTM A36 GALVANIZED
BOLTSX24" LONG WITH 3" HOOK

3" MIN

1 12" CHAMFERED EDGE

(6) #5 VERTICAL BARS EVENLY
ARRAYED

CONCRETE POST BASE

ANCHOR BOLT POSITIONS

AREA LIGHT FIXTURE POLE AND
BASE SHROUD ASSEMBLY-
REFER TO LIGHT FIXTURE
SCHEDULE

VERIFY WITH LIGHT POLE
 MFG

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
1/8" = 1'-0"

1
A1.0

ARCHITECTURAL
 SITE PLAN

A1.0
N

DO
W

NT
OW

N 
HI

NS
DA

LE
R

ET
AI

L 
BA

N
KI

N
G

 C
EN

TE
R

4 
N

O
R

TH
 W

AS
H

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TR

EE
T

H
IN

SD
AL

E,
 IL

LI
N

O
IS

  6
05

21

09.17.2021
19147

PROJECT INFORMATION BLOCK
JOB #
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

ISSUE DATE DESCRIPTION

ARCHITECT/ ENGINEER OF RECORD

GP & KD
TW

09 - 17 - 2021 ISSUE FOR PERMIT

SEALSEAL

LIGHT POLE BASE DETAIL
1-1/2" = 1'-0"

2
A1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
h

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
r

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
h

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
r

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
r

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
h

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
p



 

Page 1 of 2

Lig
ht

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

d
ra

w
in

gs
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 to

 th
e 

re
ci

pi
en

t o
f t

hi
s d

isc
la

im
er

.
W

e 
m

ak
e 

no
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

as
 to

 it
s c

om
pl

et
en

es
s, 

cu
rre

nc
y 

or
 a

cc
ur

a
cy

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f

re
as

on
s i

nh
er

en
t t

o 
C

A
D

 a
nd

 th
e 

ad
d

iti
on

al
 d

ig
ita

l d
at

a 
us

ed
 to

 p
ro

d
uc

e 
a 

lig
ht

in
g

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

  A
ll d

ig
ita

l C
A

D
 d

at
a 

ap
pe

ar
 to

 b
e 

ex
tre

m
el

y 
a

cc
ur

at
e,

 h
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s
ap

pa
re

nt
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

is 
an

 a
rti

fa
ct

 o
f t

he
 te

ch
ni

qu
es

 u
se

d
 to

 g
en

er
a

te
 it

, a
nd

 is
 in

 n
o

w
ay

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 im

pl
y 

a
ct

ua
l a

cc
ur

ac
y.

 T
he

 u
se

r o
f t

hi
s d

at
a 

ta
ke

s f
ul

l r
es

po
ns

ib
ilit

y
fo

r t
he

 a
cc

ur
ac

y 
a

nd
 c

or
re

ct
ne

ss
 o

f a
ll m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

, a
re

a,
 in

ve
nt

or
ie

s o
r o

th
er

 d
a

ta
ex

tra
ct

ed
 fr

om
 th

is,
 e

ith
er

 m
an

ua
lly

 o
r w

ith
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
 c

om
pu

te
r. 

Th
is 

lig
ht

 le
ve

l a
na

ly
sis

is 
a

n 
es

tim
at

e 
on

ly
, a

nd
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 re

fle
ct

an
ce

 v
al

ue
s f

or
 in

te
rio

r a
p

pl
ic

at
io

ns
or

 e
st

im
at

ed
 p

ol
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 b
a

se
d

 o
n 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 lig
ht

 le
ve

ls 
fo

r e
xt

er
io

r a
p

pl
ic

at
io

ns
.

A
ny

 v
ar

ia
nc

e 
fro

m
 re

fle
ct

an
ce

 v
al

ue
s, 

ob
st

ru
ct

io
ns

, l
ig

ht
 lo

ss
 fa

ct
or

s o
r d

im
en

sio
na

l d
a

ta
w

ill 
af

fe
ct

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 lig

ht
 le

ve
ls 

ob
ta

in
ed

. T
hi

s a
na

ly
sis

 is
 a

 m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
 m

od
el

 a
nd

ca
n 

b
e 

on
ly

 a
s a

cc
ur

at
e 

a
s i

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 so
ftw

ar
e 

an
d

 th
e 

IE
S 

st
an

d
a

rd
s

us
ed

. I
n 

ad
d

iti
on

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 v

al
ue

s m
ay

 v
ar

y 
fro

m
 a

ct
ua

l m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 in

 c
er

ta
in

sit
ua

tio
ns

 d
ue

 to
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

, s
uc

h 
as

 b
ut

 n
ot

 lim
ite

d
 to

, l
am

p 
ou

tp
ut

, i
np

ut
 v

ol
ta

ge
,

ba
lla

st
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

, m
an

uf
a

ct
ur

in
g 

to
le

ra
nc

es
 a

nd
 a

p
pl

ic
at

io
n 

va
ria

nc
es

. T
he

 p
re

se
nc

e
of

 o
bj

ec
ts

 w
ill 

d
ec

re
as

e 
lig

ht
 le

ve
ls 

an
d

 m
ay

 c
a

us
e 

so
m

e 
sh

a
d

ow
in

g.

Revisions

#
D

at
e

C
om

m
en

ts
D

ra
w

n 
By

:
Pr

oj
ec

t N
am

e:

D
at

e:
5/

19
/2

02
1

Lo
ca

tio
n:

PG-Enlighten is neither licensed nor insured to determine code compliance. Code compliance review by others.

D
ra

w
n 

By
:Jo

el
i C

ol
lin

s
 jo

el
i.c

ol
lin

s@
pg

-e
nl

ig
ht

en
.c

om

Parking Lot Design Guide Basic
(for typical conditions)

Maximum - to - Minimum 20:1 15:1

Basic Enhanced Security
(in consideration of personal

security or vandalism)

Security
(security lighting for public

spaces)

High Security
(security lighting for public

spaces)
lux/fc lux/fc lux/fc lux/fc

Minimum Horizontal Illuminance (Measured on parking surface
without any shadowing from any object) 2.0/0.2 5.0/0.5 10.0/1.0 30.0-60.0/3.0-6.0

Uniformity Ratio 15:1 *4:1
*Avg-Min

Minimum Vertical Illuminance (for facial recognition measured at
5' above the parking surface at the point of lowest horizontal
illuminance)

1.0/0.1 2.5/0.25 5.0-8.0/0.5-0.8 12-60/1.2-6.0

Recommendations based on RP-33-99, RP-20-98, 9th Edition IESNA Lighting Handbook C
H

A
S
E
 B

A
N

K
 H

IN
S
D

A
LE

 D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

4 
N

 W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

T,
 H

IN
SD

A
LE

, I
L

Sc
al

e:
 1

" =
 8

'

Calculation Summary
Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min Description

Luminaire Location Summary
LumNo Label X Y

PROPERTY LINE Illuminance Fc 0.00 0.1 0.0 N.A. N.A. READINGS @ GRADE
SITE_Planar

Z

Luminaire Schedule
Symbol Qty Tag Label

Illuminance Fc 0.84

Arrangement Lum. Watts Lum. Lumens LLF Manufacturer

Orient Tilt
1 LNC2-18L-4K-070-4 1444.601 -2669.79 12

5.1 0.0 N.A. N.A.

Description

182 0
3 VP-S-24L-55-4K7-4-HSS-90 1378.105

READINGS @ GRADE

-2656.98 12 1.781 0

EAST PARKING LOT Illuminance

1 S1 VP-S-24L-55-4K7-4-HSS-90 SINGLE 55

4 VP-S-24L-55-4K7-4W 1512

Fc 1.52 3.2 0.1 15.20

1 S2 VP-S-24L-55-4K7-4W SINGLE 53.68 5909 0.900 Hubbell Lighting Inc VP-S-24L-55-4K7-4W
1 W1 LNC2-18L-4K-070-4 SINGLE 43.227

32.00 READINGS @ GRADE
WEST PARKING LOT Illuminance Fc

4870 0.900 BEACON VP-S-24L-55-4K7-4-HSS-90-LR -Right side shield

-2669

1.67 5.1 0.1 16.70

4270 0.900 HUBBELL OUTDOOR LNC2-18L-4K-070-4

51.00 READINGS @ GRADE

12 0 0

EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK (N.I.C.)

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
BR

IC
K 

SI
DE

W
AL

K

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

TWO-STORY BRICK BUILDINGEXISTING
PARKING AREA

EXISTING

PARKING AREA
EXISTING

MH: 12
S2
4

.5

.5

1

MH: 12
W1

.5

.5

MH: 12

3
S1

.5

.5

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.4

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.6 0.7 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.6 1.4 1.2 0.7

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 1.2 2.1 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 1.0 2.5 1.8 1.0

2.5 2.1 2.1 1.3 1.4 3.2 2.3 1.6 3.2 1.9 1.1

3.7 3.3 2.9 1.5 1.5 2.9 3.5 1.7 3.2 1.9 1.1

5.1 4.2 3.3 1.4 1.5 2.7 1.6 1.2 3.0 1.9 1.1

0.9 1.6 2.0 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.7 1.8 1.4 0.9

0.0 0.5 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.9 0.8 0.5

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.2

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

wright
Text Box
3K7-

wright
Text Box
-3K7

wright
Polygon

wright
Text Box
-3K



 

Page 2 of 2

Lig
ht

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

d
ra

w
in

gs
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 to

 th
e 

re
ci

pi
en

t o
f t

hi
s d

isc
la

im
er

.
W

e 
m

ak
e 

no
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

as
 to

 it
s c

om
pl

et
en

es
s, 

cu
rre

nc
y 

or
 a

cc
ur

a
cy

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f

re
as

on
s i

nh
er

en
t t

o 
C

A
D

 a
nd

 th
e 

ad
d

iti
on

al
 d

ig
ita

l d
at

a 
us

ed
 to

 p
ro

d
uc

e 
a 

lig
ht

in
g

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

  A
ll d

ig
ita

l C
A

D
 d

at
a 

ap
pe

ar
 to

 b
e 

ex
tre

m
el

y 
a

cc
ur

at
e,

 h
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s
ap

pa
re

nt
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

is 
an

 a
rti

fa
ct

 o
f t

he
 te

ch
ni

qu
es

 u
se

d
 to

 g
en

er
a

te
 it

, a
nd

 is
 in

 n
o

w
ay

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 im

pl
y 

a
ct

ua
l a

cc
ur

ac
y.

 T
he

 u
se

r o
f t

hi
s d

at
a 

ta
ke

s f
ul

l r
es

po
ns

ib
ilit

y
fo

r t
he

 a
cc

ur
ac

y 
a

nd
 c

or
re

ct
ne

ss
 o

f a
ll m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

, a
re

a,
 in

ve
nt

or
ie

s o
r o

th
er

 d
a

ta
ex

tra
ct

ed
 fr

om
 th

is,
 e

ith
er

 m
an

ua
lly

 o
r w

ith
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
 c

om
pu

te
r. 

Th
is 

lig
ht

 le
ve

l a
na

ly
sis

is 
a

n 
es

tim
at

e 
on

ly
, a

nd
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 re

fle
ct

an
ce

 v
al

ue
s f

or
 in

te
rio

r a
p

pl
ic

at
io

ns
or

 e
st

im
at

ed
 p

ol
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 b
a

se
d

 o
n 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 lig
ht

 le
ve

ls 
fo

r e
xt

er
io

r a
p

pl
ic

at
io

ns
.

A
ny

 v
ar

ia
nc

e 
fro

m
 re

fle
ct

an
ce

 v
al

ue
s, 

ob
st

ru
ct

io
ns

, l
ig

ht
 lo

ss
 fa

ct
or

s o
r d

im
en

sio
na

l d
a

ta
w

ill 
af

fe
ct

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 lig

ht
 le

ve
ls 

ob
ta

in
ed

. T
hi

s a
na

ly
sis

 is
 a

 m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
 m

od
el

 a
nd

ca
n 

b
e 

on
ly

 a
s a

cc
ur

at
e 

a
s i

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 so
ftw

ar
e 

an
d

 th
e 

IE
S 

st
an

d
a

rd
s

us
ed

. I
n 

ad
d

iti
on

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 v

al
ue

s m
ay

 v
ar

y 
fro

m
 a

ct
ua

l m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 in

 c
er

ta
in

sit
ua

tio
ns

 d
ue

 to
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

, s
uc

h 
as

 b
ut

 n
ot

 lim
ite

d
 to

, l
am

p 
ou

tp
ut

, i
np

ut
 v

ol
ta

ge
,

ba
lla

st
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

, m
an

uf
a

ct
ur

in
g 

to
le

ra
nc

es
 a

nd
 a

p
pl

ic
at

io
n 

va
ria

nc
es

. T
he

 p
re

se
nc

e
of

 o
bj

ec
ts

 w
ill 

d
ec

re
as

e 
lig

ht
 le

ve
ls 

an
d

 m
ay

 c
a

us
e 

so
m

e 
sh

a
d

ow
in

g.

Revisions

#
D

at
e

C
om

m
en

ts
D

ra
w

n 
By

:
Pr

oj
ec

t N
am

e:

D
at

e:
5/

19
/2

02
1

Lo
ca

tio
n:

PG-Enlighten is neither licensed nor insured to determine code compliance. Code compliance review by others.

D
ra

w
n 

By
:Jo

el
i C

ol
lin

s
 jo

el
i.c

ol
lin

s@
pg

-e
nl

ig
ht

en
.c

om
C

H
A

S
E
 B

A
N

K
 H

IN
S
D

A
LE

 D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

4 
N

 W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

T,
 H

IN
SD

A
LE

, I
L

Sc
al

e:
 1

" =
 8

'

Render images are not to scale and are provided solely to illustrate contrast.

Render images are not to scale and are provided solely to illustrate contrast.



© 2020 Hubbell Outdoor Lighting, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Blvd • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.hubbelloutdoor.com

Page 1/5 Rev. 10/14/20
LNC2LED-SPEC

FEATURES

• 60% more lumens and increased performance than smaller LNC models

• 3000K, 4000K and 5000K as well as Amber 

• Type II, III and IV distributions available for a variety of application needs

• Quick-mount adapter allows easy installation/maintance

• 347V and 480V versions for industrial applications and Canada

• Stock versions available for fast service

• Full cut-off, neighbor friendly, IDA approved

• Optional photocontrol for additional energy savings


 LN

C2 PSG
 PAG

E


 LN
C2 BRO

CH
U

RE


 LED
 BU

ILD
IN

G
 G

U
ID

E

 


 IN

STALLATIO
N

 IN
STRU

CTIO
N

S

LNC2
SMALL LED LITEPAK

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CONSTRUCTION
• Rugged die-cast aluminum housing        

protects components and provides an 
architectural appearance

• Casting thermally conducts LED heat to 
optimize performance and long life 

• Powder paint finish provides durability in 
outdoor environments

OPTICS
• Zero uplight distributions using             

individual acrylic

• LED optics provide IES type II, III and IV 
distributions. Optional (CS) acrylic diffuser 
available for reduced glare 

• Prismatic refractor lens provides ~10% uplight 
for increased vertical footcandles and forward 
light projection ideal for security lighting 

• L96 at 60,000hrs (Projected per IESNA      
TM-21-11), see table on page 3 for all values

INSTALLATION
• Quick-mount adapter provides easy 

installation to wall or to recessed junction 
boxes (4" square junction box)

• Designed for direct j-box mount. 

• Optional 1/2” conduit hubs available 
(standard for sensor, SiteSync and       
battery versions)

CERTIFICATIONS
• DLC® DesignLights Consortium Qualified, 

with some Premium Qualified configurations. 
Please refer to the DLC website for specific 
product qualifications at www.designlights.org

• Listed to UL1598 and CSAC22.2#250.0-24 
for wet locations 

• Made-to-order versions are IP-65 rated

• This product qualifies as a “designated 
country construction material” per FAR 
52.225-11 Buy American-Construction 
Materials under Trade Agreements effective 
04/23/2020. See Buy American Solutions

WARRANTY
• 5 year limited warranty

• See HLI Standard Warranty for          
additional information

SPECIFICATIONS

ELECTRICAL
• 120V-277V universal voltage 50/60Hz 0-10V 

dimming drivers

• 347V and 480V dimmable driver option in  
 12L-070 configuration

• Minimum operating temperature is -40˚C/-40˚F 
(excludes 12L-035 and P15 configurations)

• Drivers have greater than .90 power factor 
and less than 20% Total Harmonic Distortion

•  Driver RoHS and IP66 

• 10kA surge protector

• 3000K CCT nominal, 4000K CCT nominal,   
 5000K CCT nominal (70 CRI) 

• 9, 12 and 18 LED configurations available      
see pages 2 and 3 for electrical and 
photometric details

CONTROLS
• Universal button photocontrol

• Occupancy sensor options available for 
complete on/off and dimming control

• SiteSync pre-commissioned wireless   
controls  (with or without sensor)

• Integral Battery Backup provides      
emergency lighting for the required 90 
minute path of egress

• Dual Driver and Dual Power Feed option      
for 18L-070 versions  

CATALOG #:

 LNC  lNC3  LNC4

RELATED PRODUCTS

KEY DATA

Lumen Range 2600–4100

Wattage Range 29–42

Efficacy Range (LPW) 85–112

Fixture Projected Life (Hours)  L96>60K

Weights lbs. (kg) 9.6 (24.5)

CONTROL TECHNOLOGY

Surface Conduit Hubs, Sensor 
& SiteSync Version

Prismatic Version

Battery Backup Version

Standard 9, 12, and 18L Version*

*Shown with CS acrylic diffuser

*3000K and warmer CCTs only
See Certification
 Specifications

BUY 
AMERICAN
SOLUTIONS

See Certification
 Specifications

BUY 
AMERICAN
SOLUTIONS

https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelloutdoorlighting/en
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/RAR1-Ratio/p/3233201
https://hubbellcdn.com/catalogpage/hol_lnc2(redesign)_psg.pdf
https://hubbellcdn.com/brochure/lnc_trifold_hol0031.pdf
https://hubbellcdn.com/brochure/led_building_mnt_selection_guide_hol0017_lr.pdf
https://hubbellcdn.com/installationmanuals/wgh250_400_install.pdf
https://hubbellcdn.com/installationmanuals/lnc_lnc2_instruction_sheet.pdf
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbell/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Wall-Mount/LNC2-Litepak/p/248677
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/buyamerican
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/warranty
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Wall-Mount/LNC-Litepak/p/248676
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Wall-Mount/LNC3-Litepak/p/2029704
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Wall-Mount/LNC4-Litepak/p/1958417
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/p/2056434
wright
Text Box
W1



LNC2
SMALL LED LITEPAK

© 2020 Hubbell Outdoor Lighting, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Blvd • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.hubbelloutdoor.com

Page 2/5 Rev. 10/14/20
LNC2LED-SPEC

ORDERING GUIDE

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

ORDERING INFORMATION

– – – – – – –
Series # LEDs CCT/CRI Drive Current IES Distribution Voltage Mounting

LNC2 Small LitePak LNC2 9L 9 LEDs

12L 12 LEDs

18L 18 LEDs

P15 15w Prismatic 
Refractor

P25 25w Prismatic 
Refractor

P35 35w Prismatic 
Refractor

3K 3000K nominal, 
70 CRI

4K 4000K nominal, 
70 CRI

5K 5000K nominal, 
70 CRI

AM Amber9

070 700mA

035 350mA (12L & 18L only)

2 Type II1

3 Type III1

4 Type IV1

FT Forward Throw 
(Prismatic 
Refractor only)

U 120-277V

1 120V

2 208V

3 240V

4 277V

5 480V8

F 347V8

Leave blank for 
down position

NV Inverted2

– –
Finish Control Options Options

SCP Occupancy Sensor 
Programmable (Dim)4,5

PCU Universal Button Photocontrol

SWP SiteSync 
Pre-Commision6

SWPM SiteSync 
Pre-commision w/ OCC Sensor6,7

Specify SCP Height

8F Up to 8ft mount height

20F Up to 20ft mount height

EH Battery Backup Unit with 
Heater (-30˚C)3

E Battery Backup Unit (0˚C)3

F Fuse & Fuse-Holder (not 
availabe with Battery Backup)3

CS Comfort Shield (N/A with 
Prismatic Refractor)

2DR Dual Driver (18L - 700mA only)

2PF Dual Power Feed (18L - 
700mA only)

CH Surface Conduit Hubs)

Example: LNC2-9L-3K-2-U-DBT-PCU

CATALOG #

Notes:

1 IES distributions only available with 9L, 12L, and 
18L versions

2 Not available with occupancy sensor, battery 
backup or prismatic refractor options

3 Must specify voltage (120 or 277 only for E & EH)

4 Must order minimum of one remote control to 
program dimming settings, 0-10V fully adjustable 
dimming with automatic daylight calibration and 
different time delay settings, 120-277V only

5 PCU option not applicable, included in sensor

6 18L - 700mA versions only.  Not available with 
2DR or 2PF options. Must specify group and 
zone information at time of order

7 Specify time delay; dimming level and mounting 
height

8 12L - 700mA version only

REPLACEMENT PART - MADE TO ORDER 

Catalog Number Description

SCP-Remote  Remote control for SCP option. Order at least one per project to program and control fixtures*

STOCK ORDERING INFORMATION

Catalog Number Lumens Wattage Distribution CCT/CRI Voltage Distribution Weight lbs. (kg) Finish Options

LNC2-12LU-4K-3-DB 2,662 29W 3 4000K/70CRI 120-277V Type 3 7.0 (13.3) Bronze *

LNC2-12LU-5K-3-DB 2,868 29W 3 5000K/70CRI 120-277V Type 3 7.0 (13.3) Bronze *

LNC2-12LU-5K-3-DB-PC-U 2,868 29W 3 5000K/70CRI 120-277V Type 3 7.0 (13.3) Bronze Photocell *

LNC2-18LU-4K-3-DB 3,806 42W 3 4000K/70CRI 120-277V Type 3 7.0 (13.3) Bronze *

LNC2-18LU-5K-3-DB 4,106 42W 3 5000K/70CRI 120-277V Type 3 7.0 (13.3) Bronze *

LNC2-18LU-5K-3-DB-PC-U 4,106 42W 3 5000K/70CRI 120-277V Type 3 7.0 (13.3) Bronze Photocell *

LNC2-P35-4K-PCU 4,025 37W FT 4000K/70CRI 120-277V FT 7.0 (13.3) Bronze Photocell

LNC2-P35-PCU 4,108 37W FT 5000K/70CRI 120-277V FT 7.0 (13.3) Bronze Photocell

Notes:

* IES distributions only available with 9L, 12L and 18L versions

BLT Black Matte Textured

BLS Black Gloss Smooth

DBT Dark Bronze Matte Textured

DBS Dark Brone Gloss Smooth

GTT Graphite Matte Textured

LGS Light Grey Gloss Smooth

PSS Platinum Silver Smooth

WHT White Matte Textured

WHS White Gloss Smooth

VGT Verde Green Textured

Color Option

CC Custom Color

https://www.hubbell.com/hubbell/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Wall-Mount/LNC2-Litepak/p/248677
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelloutdoorlighting/en
wright
Text Box
W1

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Text Box
W1 proposed mounting height: 12' above finished grade 



LNC2
SMALL LED LITEPAK

© 2020 Hubbell Outdoor Lighting, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Blvd • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.hubbelloutdoor.com

Page 3/5 Rev. 10/14/20
LNC2LED-SPEC

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

# Of 
LEDs

Nominal 
Wattage

System 
Watts

Dist. 
Type

5K (5000K NOMINAL 70 CRI) 4K (4000K NOMINAL 70 CRI) 3K (3000K NOMINAL 80 CRI)

Lumens LPW* B U G Lumens LPW* B U G Lumens LPW* B U G

9 700mA 21W

2 2,083 97 1 0 1 2,072 97 1 0 1 1,927 90 1 0 1

3 1,972 92 0 0 1 1,962 92 0 0 1 1,825 85 0 0 1

4 2,097 98 0 0 1 2,087 98 0 0 1 1,941 91 0 0 1

12

350mA 14W

2 1,513 110 0 0 1 1,506 109 0 0 1 1,440 104 0 0 1

3 1,433 104 0 0 1 1,426 103 0 0 1 1,364 99 0 0 1

4 1,524 110 0 0 1 1,543 112 0 0 1 1,476 107 0 0 1

700mA 29W

2 2,777 97 1 0 1 2,763 97 1 0 1 2,570 90 1 0 1

3 2,629 92 1 0 1 2,616 91 1 0 1 2,433 85 1 0 1

4 2,797 98 1 0 1 2,783 97 1 0 1 2,588 90 1 0 1

18

350mA 21W

2 2,270 107 1 0 1 2,259 106 1 0 1 2,074 97 1 0 1

3 2,149 101 0 0 1 2,138 100 0 0 1 1,963 92 0 0 1

4 2,286 107 0 0 1 2,275 107 0 0 1 2,125 100 0 0 1

700mA 43W

2 4,261 99 1 0 1 4,240 98 1 0 1 3,943 91 1 0 1

3 4,033 93 1 0 1 4,014 93 1 0 1 3,733 86 1 0 1

4 4,290 99 1 0 1 4,270 99 1 0 1 3,971 92 1 0 1

# Of 
LEDs

Nominal 
Wattage

Dist. 
Type

5K (5000K NOMINAL 70 CRI) 4K (4000K NOMINAL 70 CRI) 3K (3000K NOMINAL 80 CRI)

Lumens LPW* B U G Lumens LPW* B U G Lumens LPW* B U G

1

15W

FT

1,741 132 0 3 2 1,706 129 0 3 2 1,648 125 0 3 2

25W 2,929 117 1 3 2 2,806 112 1 3 2 2,773 111 1 3 2

35W 4,108 112 1 3 3 4,025 110 1 3 3 3,889 106 1 3 3

PERFORMANCE DATA

* Projected per IESNA TM-21-11 * (Nichia 219B, 700mA, 85°C Ts, 10,000hrs). Data references the extrapolated performance 
projections for the LNC-12LU-5K base model in a 40°C ambient, based on 10,000 hours of LED testing per IESNA LM-80-08.

PROJECTED LUMEN MAINTENANCE

Ambient
Temperature

OPERATING HOURS

0 25,000 50,000 TM-21-11* L96 60,000 100,000 L70 (Hours)

25oC / 77oF 1.00 0.98 0.97 0.96 0.95 >791,000

40oC / 104oF 0.99 0.98 0.96 0.96 0.95 >635,000

Ambient
Temperature

OPERATING HOURS

0 25,000 50,000 TM-21-11* L96 60,000 100,000 L70 (Hours)

25oC / 77oF 1.00 0.94 0.89 0.87 0.80 >160,000

40oC / 104oF 0.99 0.93 0.88 0.86 0.78 >150,000

STANDARD 9, 12 AND 18L VERSIONS

STANDARD 9, 12 AND 18L VERSIONS

PRISMATIC REFRACTOR

PRISMATIC REFRACTOR

Notes:

* Lumen values are from photometric tests performed in accordance with IESNA LM-79-08. Data is considered to be representative of the configurations shown. Actual performance may differ as a result of end-user 
environment and application. LNC2-12L battery mode produces 1,546 initial lumens. Meets UL924 90 minute discharge pattern.

https://www.hubbell.com/hubbell/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Wall-Mount/LNC2-Litepak/p/248677
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelloutdoorlighting/en
wright
Text Box
W1



LNC2
SMALL LED LITEPAK

© 2020 Hubbell Outdoor Lighting, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Blvd • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.hubbelloutdoor.com

Page 4/5 Rev. 10/14/20
LNC2LED-SPEC

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

ELECTRICAL DATA

# OF 
LEDS

Drive Current 
(mA)

Input Voltage
(V)

Oper. Current 
(Amps)

System Power 
(W)

9 700mA 120 0.18 21
277 0.08 21

12

350mA 120 0.12 14
277 0.05 14

700mA

120 0.24 29
277 0.10 29
347 0.08 29
480 0.06 29

18
350mA 120 0.18 21

277 0.08 21

700mA 120 0.36 43
277 0.16 43

# OF 
LEDS

Drive Current 
(mA)

Input Voltage
(V)

Oper. Current 
(Amps)

System Power 
(W)

1

350mA 120 0.11 13
277 0.05 13

600mA 120 0.21 25
277 0.09 25

900mA 120 0.31 37
277 0.13 37

STANDARD 9, 12 AND 18L VERSIONS

PRISMATIC REFRACTOR

Use these factors to determine relative lumen output for 
average ambient temperatures from 0-40°C (32-104°F).

Standard 9. 12, 18L and Prismatic Versions

LUMINAIRE AMBIENT TEMPERATURE FACTOR (LATF)

Ambient Temperature Lumen 
Multiplier

0˚ C 32˚ F 1.02

10˚ C 50˚ F 1.01

20˚ C 68˚ F 1.00

25˚ C 77˚ F 1.00

30˚ C 86˚ F 1.00

40˚ C 104˚ F 0.99

50˚ C 122˚ F 0.98

DIMENSIONS

 A  B  C             D                  E

 5.54" 10.16" 6.33"          7.64"               9.10"
 (141 mm) (258 mm) (161 mm)       (194 mm)         (231 mm)    

8.04
6.666.05

5.54

7.64 9.10

9.10

6.33

Small:       7.0lbs
Medium:   7.5 lbs
Large:       9.5lbs

5.54

10.16

5.54

10.16

5.54

7.64
6.33

8.04
6.666.05

5.54

7.64 9.10

9.10

6.33

Small:       7.0lbs
Medium:   7.5 lbs
Large:       9.5lbs

5.54

10.16

5.54

10.16

5.54

7.64
6.33

A

A

B

B

8.04
6.666.05

5.54

7.64 9.10

9.10

6.33

Small:       7.0lbs
Medium:   7.5 lbs
Large:       9.5lbs

5.54

10.16

5.54

10.16

5.54

7.64
6.33

C

8.04
6.666.05

5.54

7.64 9.10

9.10

6.33

Small:       7.0lbs
Medium:   7.5 lbs
Large:       9.5lbs

5.54

10.16

5.54

10.16

5.54

7.64
6.33

D

8.04
6.666.05

5.54

7.64 9.10

9.10

6.33

Small:       7.0lbs
Medium:   7.5 lbs
Large:       9.5lbs

5.54

10.16

5.54

10.16

5.54

7.64
6.33 D

8.04
6.666.05

5.54

7.64 9.10

9.10

6.33

Small:       7.0lbs
Medium:   7.5 lbs
Large:       9.5lbs

5.54

10.16

5.54

10.16

5.54

7.64
6.33

E

8.04
6.666.05

5.54

7.64 9.10

9.10

6.33

Small:       7.0lbs
Medium:   7.5 lbs
Large:       9.5lbs

5.54

10.16

5.54

10.16

5.54

7.64
6.33

E

A

8.04
6.666.05

5.54

7.64 9.10

9.10

6.33

Small:       7.0lbs
Medium:   7.5 lbs
Large:       9.5lbs

5.54

10.16

5.54

10.16

5.54

7.64
6.33

C

A

Standard Unit With Sensor Option With Battery Backup

https://www.hubbell.com/hubbell/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Wall-Mount/LNC2-Litepak/p/248677
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelloutdoorlighting/en
wright
Text Box
W1



LNC2
SMALL LED LITEPAK

© 2020 Hubbell Outdoor Lighting, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Blvd • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.hubbelloutdoor.com

Page 5/5 Rev. 10/14/20
LNC2LED-SPEC

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SHIPPING INFORMATION

LNC2 - BATTERY BACK UP

E & EH EMERGENCY BATTERY BACKUP

Catalog  
Number

G.W(kg)/
CTN

Carton Dimensions
Carton Qty. per 

Master PackLength  
Inch (cm)

Width  
Inch (cm)

Height  
Inch (cm)

LNC2-12LU 14.3 (6.5) 14.5 (37) 11.4 (29) 8.4 (21.5) 2

LNC2-18LU 14.8 (6.7) 14.9 (38) 11.4 (29) 8.4 (21.5) 2

USE OF TRADEMARKS AND TRADE NAMES

All product and company names, logos and product identifies are trademarks ™ or registered trademarks ® of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. 
or their respective owners. Use of them does not necessarily imply any affiliation with or endorsement by such respective owners. 

NV - INVERTED MOUNTING OPTIONS

*Requires Factory Installed Lens Option

Inverted mounting capabilities for 
uplighting applications. Specially 
designed frosted acrylic diffuser option 
softens output, improves uniformity and 
protects LED lenses.     

SCP - PROGRAMMABLE OCCUPANCY SENSOR

Sensor offers greater control and energy savings 
with SCP programmable sensor with adjustable 
delay and dimming levels (Factory default is 10%) 
Visit: http://www.hubbelllighting.com/solutions/
controls/ for control application information

SWP & SWPM - SITESYNC™

When ordering a fixture with the SiteSync lighting 
control option, additional information will be required 
to complete the order. The SiteSync Commissioning 
Form or alternate schedule information must be 
completed. This form includes Project locations Group 
information, and Operating schedules. For more 
detailed information please visit www.HubbellLighting.
com/proudcts/sitesync or contact Hubbell Lighting tech 
support at (800) 345-4928.

Provides Life Safety Code average illuminance of 1.0 fc. Assumes open 
space with no obstructions and mounting height of 11'.
Diagrams for illustration purposes only, please consult factory for application layout.

Battery backup units consume 6 watts when charging a dead battery and 2 watts during 
maintenance charging. EH (units with a heater) consume up to an additional 8 watts when 
charging if the battery temp is lower than 10°C

11’

11’

22’

33’

44’ 33’ 22’ 11’ 11’ 22’ 33’ 44’

11’

22’

33’

2fc

.1fc
.5fc

1fc

11' Mounting Height

Standard versions utilize 9, 12 or 18 High Power LEDs 
to generate  1,600 - 4,200 lumens in Normal Mode 
and use 4 LEDs for up to 700 lumens in Emergency 
Mode. Prismatic refractor versions utilize 1 COB LED to 
generate approximatly 900 lumens in emergency mode.

https://www.hubbell.com/hubbell/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Wall-Mount/LNC2-Litepak/p/248677
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelloutdoorlighting/en
wright
Text Box
W1



Beacon Products • 701 Millennium Blvd, Greenville, SC 29607 • Phone: 864-678-1000
Due to our continued efforts to improve our products, product specifications are subject to change without notice.
© 2020 BEACON PRODUCTS,  All Rights Reserved • For more information visit our website: www.beaconproducts.com  •  Printed in USA     SSS-B POLES-SPEC          JuLy 28, 2020 8:45 AM

APPLICATIONS
• Lighting installations for side and top mounting of luminaires with effective projected area (EPA) not exceeding maximum 

allowable loading of the specified pole in its installed geographic location
CONSTRUCTION
• SHAFT: One-piece straight steel with square cross section, flat sides and minimum 0.23" radius on all corners; Minimum yield 

of 46,000 psi (ASTM-A500, Grade B); Longitudinal weld seam to appear flush with shaft side wall; Steel base plate with 
axial bolt circle slots welded flush to pole shaft having minimum yield of 36,000 psi (ASTM A36)

• BASE COVER: Two-piece square aluminum base cover included standard
• POLE CAP: Pole shaft supplied with removable cover when applicable; Tenon and post-top configurations also available
• HAND HOLE: Rectangular 3x5 steel hand hole frame (2.38" x 4.38" opening); Mounting provisions for grounding lug 

located behind gasketed cover
• ANCHOR BOLTS: Four galvanized anchor bolts provided per pole with minimum yield of 55,000 psi (ASTM F1554). 

Galvanized hardware with two washers and two nuts per bolt for leveling 
 Anchor bolt part numbers:  3/4 x 30 x 3 — TAB-30-M38
                                   1 x 36 x 4 — TAB-36-M38
FINISH
• Durable thermoset polyester powder coat paint finish with nominal 3.0 mil thickness
• Powder paint prime applied over “white metal” steel substrate cleaned via mechanical shot blast method
• Decorative finish coat available in multiple standard colors; Custom colors available; RAL number preferable

WAREHOUSE ‘STOCKED’ POLES:
• SSSH20-40A-4-HV-DB-RDC, SSSH25-40A-4-HV-DB-RDC and SSSH30-50B-4-HV-DB-RDC
• The HV designation in the above catalog numbers is a combination drill pattern of the Hubbell Outdoor S2 pattern         

and the Beacon B3/B4 Viper pattern (rectangular arm mounting)

SSS-B SERIES
POLES
SQUARE STRAIGHT STEEL 

Overall
Height 10' - 40'

Handhole
18"

Cat.#

Approvals

Job Type

ORDERING INFORMATION

BASE DETAILPOLE CAP TENON BASE COVER

SERIES

SSS-B Square Straight 
Steel Pole 
Beacon

SSS    B 25 40 A/B/C  2L BLTB3 UL

1 Removable tenon used in conjunction with side arm mounting. First specify desired arm  
configuration followed by the “TR” notation. Example: SSS-B-25-40-A-1-B1-TR-BBT

2 Specify option location using logic found on page 2 (Option Orientation)
3 VM1 recommended on poles 20’ and taller with EPA of less than 1.

MOUNTING ORIENTATION

HEIGHT

Reference page 2 
Ordering matrix

SHAFT

Reference page 2 
Ordering matrix

THICKNESS

Reference 
page 2 
Ordering matrix

OPTIONS

GFI2 20 Amp GFCI 
Receptacle and Cover

EHH2 Extra Handhole

C052 .5” Coupling

C072 .75” Coupling

C202 2” Coupling

MPB2 Mid-pole Luminaire 
Bracket

VM2 2nd mode vibration 
damper

LAB Less Anchor Bolts

UL UL Certified 

ORDERING EXAMPLE: 
Reference page 2 for available configurations

Anchor Base Detail

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Anchor Base Detail

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Anchor Base Detail

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Overall
Height 10'-30'

18"

TENON

Bolt Circle (Outer)

Bolt Circle (Inner)

Bolt Square (Outer)

Bolt Square (Inner)

Height of option in feet

BASE COVER

270˚ 90˚

180˚

0˚ 
Handhole

VIBRATION DAMPER
2ND MODE

ACCESSORIES - Order Separately 
Catalog Number Description

 VM13  1st mode vibration damper
 VM2SXX  2nd mode vibration damper

MOUNTING

1 Single arm mount

2 Two fixtures at 180˚

2L Two fixtures at 90˚

3T Three fixtures at 90˚

4 Four fixtures at 90˚

TA Tenon (2.38” OD      
x 4” Tall)

TB Tenon (2.88” OD     
x 4” Tall)

TC Tenon (3.5” OD     
x 6” Tall)

TR1 Removable Tenon 
(2.375 x 4.25)

OT Open Top (includes 
pole cap)

TOP VIEW

DRILL PATTERN

B1 Cruzer, “AM”  arm

B3 2 bolt (2-1/2” spacing), Viper “A” arm

S2 2 bolt (3-1/2” spacing), Viper “AD” arm

FINISH

BLT Black Matte Textured

BLS Black Gloss Smooth

DBT Dark Bronze Matte Textured

DBS Dark Bronze Gloss Smooth

GTT Graphite Matte Textured

LGS Light Grey Gloss Smooth

PSS Platinum Silver Smooth

WHT White Matte Textured

WHS White Gloss Smooth

VGT Verde Green Textured

Color Option

CC Custom Color

wright
Rectangle

wright
Line

wright
Callout
2' high concrete pole base 

wright
Callout
10' high pole height 

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Text Box
max mounting height with fixture arm: 12' above finished grade 

wright
Callout
existing grade



Beacon Products • 701 Millennium Blvd, Greenville, SC 29607 • Phone: 864-678-1000
Due to our continued efforts to improve our products, product specifications are subject to change without notice.
© 2020 BEACON PRODUCTS,  All Rights Reserved • For more information visit our website: www.beaconproducts.com  •  Printed in USA     SSS-B POLES-SPEC          JuLy 28, 2020 8:45 AM

Overall
Height 10'-30'

18"

TENON

Bolt Circle (Outer)

Bolt Circle (Inner)

Bolt Square (Outer)

Bolt Square (Inner)

Height of option in feet

BASE COVER

270˚ 90˚

180˚

0˚ 
Handhole

VIBRATION DAMPER
2ND MODE

ORDERING INFORMATION Cont.

NOTE Factory supplied template must be used when setting anchor bolts. Beacon Products will deny any claim for incorrect anchorage placement resulting from failure to use factory supplied template and anchor bolts.

For more information about pole vibration and vibration dampers, please consult https://hubbellcdn.com/ohwassets/HLI/outdoor/resources/literature/files/Pole_Wind_Induced_Flyer_HLOI0022.pdf

Due to our continued efforts to improve our products, product specifications are subject to change without notice.

Follow the logic below when ordering location specific 
options. For each option, include its orientation (in degrees) 
and its height (in feet). Example: Option C07 should be 
ordered as: SSS-B-20-40-A-TA-DB-CO5-0-15 
(.5” coupling on the handhole/arm side of pole, 15 feet up 
from the pole base) 1’ spacing required between option. 
Consult factory for other configurations.

OPTION ORIENTATIONGFI – 20 AMP GFCI
RECEPTACLE & COVER

EHH - EXTRA
HANDHOLE

C05 - C07 - C20 -
COUPLING

MPB - MID POLE BRACKET

VM1 - VIBRATION DAMPER 
         1ST MODE

VM2 - VIBRATION DAMPER  
         2ND MODE

VM2SXX - VIBRATION DAMPER  
2ND MODE

Anchor Base Detail

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Provision for Grounding

Anchor Base Detail

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

1/2” - 14 NPSC Threads

3/4” - 14 NPSC Threads

2” -11.5 NPSC Threads

Anchor Base Detail

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Square Steel Pole

Attachment stub 5” long
welded to pole

Arm, 3” Sq. x 13.5” long
ships separately

2” pipe tenon 
4.25” tall

Anchor Base Detail

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Square aluminum pole

Standard hand 
hole frame

Adapter plate
Gasket

20 AMP GFCI

Wet Locations
In-use Cover

Anchor Base Detail

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Bolt Circle

Bolt Slots/Holes

0°-Handhole
Bolt Square

270°
Arm 1 

90° 
Arm 2 

180°

As viewed 
from top 
of pole.

Overall
Height 10'-30'

18"

TENON

Bolt Circle (Outer)

Bolt Circle (Inner)

Bolt Square (Outer)

Bolt Square (Inner)

Height of option in feet

BASE COVER

270˚ 90˚

180˚

0˚ 
Handhole

VIBRATION DAMPER
2ND MODE

VM1

Pole

Field Installed Pole Top damper designed 
to reduce pole top deflection or sway.  VM1 
is recommended for pole systems 25’ and 
taller with a total EPA of 1.0 or less.

Factory installed, internal damper designed 
to alter pole resonance to reduce movement 
and material fatigue caused by 2nd mode 
vibration.  

Field installed, internal damper designed to 
alter pole resonance to reduce movement 
and material fatigue caused by 2nd mode 
vibration.  

VM2S08 – 8'
VM2S12 – 12'
VM2S16 – 16'
VM2S20 – 20'
VM2S24 – 24'

Overall
Height 10'-30'

18"

TENON

Bolt Circle (Outer)

Bolt Circle (Inner)

Bolt Square (Outer)

Bolt Square (Inner)

Height of option in feet

BASE COVER

270˚ 90˚

180˚

0˚ 
Handhole

VIBRATION DAMPER
2ND MODE

Catalog Number 
Height Nominal 

Shaft Dimensions
Wall 

Thickness
Bolt Circle

(suggested)
Bolt Circle

(range)
Bolt Square

(range)
Base Plate 

Square
Anchor bolt size Bolt Projection Pole weight

Feet Meters

SSS-B-10-40-A-XX-XX 10 3.0 4” square 0.125” 9” 8” - 10” 5.66” - 7.07” 9” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 77

SSS-B-12-40-A-XX-XX 12 3.7 4” square 0.125” 9” 8” - 10” 5.66” - 7.07” 9” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 90

SSS-B-14-40-A-XX-XX 14 4.3 4” square 0.125” 9” 8” - 10” 5.66” - 7.07” 9” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 103

SSS-B-16-40-A-XX-XX 16 4.9 4” square 0.125” 9” 8” - 10” 5.66” - 7.07” 9” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 116

SSS-B-18-40-A-XX-XX 18 5.5 4” square 0.125” 9” 8” - 10” 5.66” - 7.07” 9” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 129

SSS-B-20-40-A-XX-XX 20 6.1 4” square 0.125” 9” 8” - 10” 5.66” - 7.07” 9” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 142

SSS-B-25-40-A-XX-XX 25 7.6 4” square 0.125” 9” 8” - 10” 5.66” - 7.07” 9” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 175

SSS-B-14-40-B-XX-XX 14 4.3 4” square .188” 11” 10” - 12” 7.07” - 8.48” 10.50” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 152

SSS-B-16-40-B-XX-XX 16 4.9 4” square .188” 11” 10” - 12” 7.07” - 8.48” 10.50” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 171

SSS-B-18-40-B-XX-XX 18 5.5 4” square .188” 11” 10” - 12” 7.07” - 8.48” 10.50” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 190

SSS-B-20-40-B-XX-XX 20 6.1 4” square .188” 11” 10” - 12” 7.07” - 8.48” 10.50” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 209

SSS-B-25-40-B-XX-XX 25 7.6 4” square .188” 11” 10” - 12” 7.07” - 8.48” 10.50” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 257

SSS-B-30-40-B-XX-XX 30 9.1 4” square .188” 11” 10” - 12” 7.07” - 8.48” 10.50” 3/4” x 30” x 3” 3.5 304

SSS-B-16-50-B-XX-XX 16 4.9 5” square .188” 11” 10.25” - 13.25” 7.25” - 9.37” 11.50” 1” x 36” x 4” 4.5 219

SSS-B-18-50-B-XX-XX 18 5.5 5” square .188” 11” 10.25” - 13.25” 7.25” - 9.37” 11.50” 1” x 36” x 4” 4.5 243

SSS-B-20-50-B-XX-XX 20 6.1 5” square .188” 11” 10.25” - 13.25” 7.25” - 9.37” 11.50” 1” x 36” x 4” 4.5 267

SSS-B-25-50-B-XX-XX 25 7.6 5” square .188” 11” 10.25” - 13.25” 7.25” - 9.37” 11.50” 1” x 36” x 4” 4.5 327

SSS-B-30-50-B-XX-XX 30 9.1 5” square .188” 11” 10.25” - 13.25” 7.25” - 9.37” 11.50” 1” x 36” x 4” 4.5 387

SSS-B-25-50-C-XX-XX 25 7.6 5” square .25” 11” 10.25” - 13.25” 7.25” - 9.37” 11.50” 1” x 36” x 4” 4.5 427

SSS-B-30-50-C-XX-XX 30 9.1 5” square .25” 11” 10.25” - 13.25” 7.25” - 9.37” 11.50” 1” x 36” x 4” 4.5 507

SSS-B-20-60-B-XX-XX 20 6.1 6” square .188” 12” 11.00” - 13.25” 7.81” - 9.37” 12.25” 1” x 36” x 6” 4.5 329

SSS-B-25-60-B-XX-XX 25 7.6 6” square .188” 12” 11.00” - 13.25” 7.81” - 9.37” 12.25” 1” x 36” x 6” 4.5 404

SSS-B-30-60-B-XX-XX 30 9.1 6” square .188” 12” 11.00” - 13.25” 7.81” - 9.37” 12.25” 1” x 36” x 6” 4.5 479

SSS-B-35-60-B-XX-XX 35 10.7 6” square .188” 12” 11.00” - 13.25” 7.81” - 9.37” 12.25” 1” x 36” x 6” 4.5 554

SSS-B-40-60-B-XX-XX 40 12.2 6” square .188” 12” 11.00” - 13.25” 7.81” - 9.37” 12.25” 1” x 36” x 6” 4.5 629

https://hubbellcdn.com/ohwassets/HLI/outdoor/resources/literature/files/Pole_Wind_Induced_Flyer_HLOI0022.pdf


Beacon Products • 701 Millennium Blvd, Greenville, SC 29607 • Phone: 864-678-1000
Due to our continued efforts to improve our products, product specifications are subject to change without notice.
© 2020 BEACON PRODUCTS,  All Rights Reserved • For more information visit our website: www.beaconproducts.com  •  Printed in USA     SSS-B POLES-SPEC          JuLy 28, 2020 8:45 AM

ASCE7-05      WIND MAP         FLORIDA REGION WIND MAP

180
180

170

170

160

160
150

150

140

140140
150

140
150

130
120 115

115
120

130

• Florida region wind map above is 
based upon 3-second gust winds 
and the 2017 Florida Building Code

HAWAII – 105 mph 
PUERTO RICO – 145 mph

NOTES:
• Values are based on 50 year mean recurrence interval 30’ 

above grade.
• Hawaii has an 105 mph wind velocity.
• Puerto Rico has a 125 mph wind velocity.
• Caution must be exercised in determining wind velocities 

in special wind areas such as:
Mountainous Regions
Areas surrounding the Great Lakes or other large bodies 
of water or open land.
Areas subject to extreme wind conditions, such as 
hurricanes, typhoons, cyclones, and tornadoes.
Areas adjacent to airports.
Any specific area with a known or suspected abnormally 
high intermittent wind condition caused by geography, 
adjacent structures, or other specific local conditions 
that may not be recorded in National Weather Service 
records.

• Allowable pole EPA for jobsite wind conditions must be 
equal to or greater than fixture EPA. Responsibility lies with 
the specifier for correct pole selection based on AASHTO 
wind map and job location.

• The Wind Map is intended only as a general guide. Always 
consult local authorities to determine maximum wind 
velocities, gusting and unique wind conditions for each 
specific application.

• CAUTION: Wind speeds and listed EPAs are for ground 
mounted installations. Poles mounted on structures (such 
as bridges and buildings) must consider vibration and 
coefficient of height factors beyond this general guide. 
Consult AASHTO standards.

• Extreme Wind Events: Hurricanes, Typhoons, Cyclones, or 
Tornadoes expose poles to flying debris, wind shear, and 
other unpredictable aerodynamic forces not indicated by 
the wind velocity ratings. 

• Pole Strength Limited Warranty: Standard, unmodified Kim 
lighting Poles installed as recommended, undamaged by 
corrosion, or lack of maintenance, shall withstand steady 
wind conditions as provided on page 2 (Allowable Pole 
EPA). Installation of poles without luminaires, or attachment 
of any unauthorized accessories to poles shall void this 
warranty.

85

90

90
100
110
120
130

130

140

140

140     

150

150

140
130

120110
100
90

Special Wind Region
(Consult Local Authorities)

90
Wind Map

United States and Canada

Florida Building Code 2017 EPA Load Rating - 3 second gust wind speeds
(Use for Florida only)

Catalog Number 115 120 130 140 150 160 170 180

SSS-B-10-40-A 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 21.4 18.4 15.9 13.9

SSS-B-12-40-A 25.0 25.0 23.6 19.8 16.7 14.2 12.1 10.4

SSS-B-14-40-A 25.0 23.1 19.0 15.7 13.1 10.9 9.1 7.6

SSS-B-16-40-A 20.8 18.7 15.2 12.3 10.1 8.2 6.7 5.4

SSS-B-18-40-A 16.8 15.0 11.9 9.4 7.5 5.9 4.5 3.4

SSS-B-20-40-A 13.6 11.9 9.2 7.1 5.3 3.9 2.7 1.7

SSS-B-25-40-A 7.4 6.2 4.1 2.5 1.1 NR NR NR

SSS-B-14-40-B 25.0 23.6 19.4 16.1 13.4 11.2 9.4 7.8

SSS-B-16-40-B 21.4 19.2 15.6 12.7 10.4 8.5 6.9 5.6

SSS-B-18-40-B 17.2 15.4 12.2 9.7 7.7 6.1 4.7 3.6

SSS-B-20-40-B 13.9 12.3 9.5 7.3 5.5 4.1 2.9 1.9

SSS-B-25-40-B 7.7 6.4 4.3 2.6 1.3 NR NR NR

SSS-B-30-40-B 3.2 2.1 NR NR NR NR NR NR

SSS-B-16-50-B 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 21.4 18.2 15.5

SSS-B-18-50-B 25.0 25.0 25.0 24.4 20.4 17.0 14.2 11.9

SSS-B-20-50-B 25.0 25.0 24.4 19.9 1 6.3 13.4 11.0 8.9

SSS-B-25-50-B 21.8 19.3 15.0 11.5 8.8 6.5 4.7 3.1

SSS-B-30-50-B 13.7 11.7 8.2 5.5 3.3 1.5 NR NR

SSS-B-25-50-C 21.8 19.3 15.0 11.5 8.8 6.5 4.7 3.1

SSS-B-30-50-C 13.7 11.7 8.2 5.5 3.3 1.5 NR NR

SSS-B-20-60-B 25.0 25.0 25.0 21.9 17.8 14.5 11.7 9.4

SSS-B-25-60-B 23.8 20.9 16.1 12.3 9.2 6.6 4.5 2.8

SSS-B-30-60-B 14.6 12.3 8.4 5.3 2.8 0.8 NR NR

SSS-B-35-60-B 7.5 5.6 2.4 NR NR NR NR NR

SSS-B-40-60-B 1.8 NR NR NR NR NR NR NR

ASCE 7-05 wind map EPA Load Rating - 3 second gust wind speeds
(Use for all locations except Florida)

Catalog Number 85 90 100 105 110 120 130 140 145 150

SSS-B-10-40-A 25.0 25.0 25.0 22.8 20.6 17.0 14.2 11.9 11.0 10.1

SSS-B-12-40-A 25.0 25.0 20.0 18.0 16.1 13.2 10.8 8.9 8.1 7.4

SSS-B-14-40-A 23.1 20.4 16.1 14.3 12.8 10.2 8.2 6.6 5.9 5.3

SSS-B-16-40-A 19.0 16.7 13.0 11.5 10.1 7.9 6.2 4.7 4.1 3.6

SSS-B-18-40-A 15.6 13.6 10.0 9.0 7.8 5.9 4.4 3.1 2.6 2.1

SSS-B-20-40-A 12.7 10.9 7.9 6.9 5.9 4.2 2.8 1.7 1.3 0.9

SSS-B-25-40-A 7.3 5.9 3.8 2.9 2.1 0.8 NR NR NR NR

SSS-B-14-40-B 25.0 25.0 23.3 20.8 18.6 15.1 12.3 10.2 9.2 8.4

SSS-B-16-40-B 25.0 24.9 19.4 17.3 15.4 12.3 9.9 8.0 7.2 6.4

SSS-B-18-40-B 24.0 20.8 16.1 14.2 12.5 9.8 7.7 6.1 5.3 4.7

SSS-B-20-40-B 20.2 17.5 13.2 11.6 10.1 7.7 5.9 4.4 3.8 3.2

SSS-B-25-40-B 12.8 11.0 7.9 6.7 5.5 3.7 2.3 1.2 0.7 NR

SSS-B-30-40-B 8.0 6.6 4.1 3.1 2.2 0.8 NR NR NR NR

SSS-B-16-50-B 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 24.8 20.1 16.5 13.6 12.3 11.2

SSS-B-18-50-B 25.0 25.0 25.0 22.9 20.4 16.4 13.2 10.7 9.6 8.6

SSS-B-20-50-B 25.0 25.0 21.3 18.9 16.7 13.2 10.4 8.1 7.2 6.3

SSS-B-25-50-B 20.7 17.8 13.3 11.5 9.8 7.2 5.0 3.3 2.6 1.9

SSS-B-30-50-B 13.5 11.3 7.7 6.2 4.9 2.8 1.1 NR NR NR

SSS-B-25-50-C 25.0 25.0 19.4 17.1 15.1 11.7 9.0 6.9 6.0 5.1

SSS-B-30-50-C 20.1 17.3 12.7 10.9 9.3 6.6 4.5 2.8 2.1 1.4

SSS-B-20-60-B 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 20.2 16.1 12.9 11.5 10.3

SSS-B-25-60-B 25.0 25.0 20.6 18.0 15.6 11.8 8.7 6.2 5.2 4.2

SSS-B-30-60-B 21.4 18.1 12.9 10.7 8.8 5.7 3.3 1.3 NR NR

SSS-B-35-60-B 14.0 11.3 6.9 5.2 3.6 1.0 NR NR NR NR

SSS-B-40-60-B 8.1 5.8 2.2 nr NR NR NR NR NR NR

120 110
100
90

90

100

110

120

130

130

130

130

ALASKA REGION WIND MAP



Beacon Products • 701 Millennium Blvd, Greenville, SC 29607 • Phone: 864-678-1000
Due to our continued efforts to improve our products, product specifications are subject to change without notice.
© 2020 BEACON PRODUCTS,  All Rights Reserved • For more information visit our website: www.beaconproducts.com  •  Printed in USA     SSS-B POLES-SPEC          JuLy 28, 2020 8:45 AM

NOTES

•  Allowable EPA, to determine max pole loading weight, multiply allowable EPA by 30 lbs.

•  The tables for allowable pole EPA are based on the ASCE 7-05 Wind Map or the Florida Region Wind Map for the 2010 Florida Building Code. The Wind Maps are intended only as a general guide and   
 cannot be used in conjunction with other maps. Always consult local authorities to determine maximum wind velocities, gusting and unique wind conditions for each specific application

• Allowable pole EPA for jobsite wind conditions must be equal to or greater than the total EPA for fixtures, arms, and accessories to be assembled to the pole. Responsibility lies with the specifier for   
 correct pole selection. Installation of poles without luminaires or attachment of any unauthorized accessories to poles is discouraged and shall void the manufacturer’s warranty

•  Wind speeds and listed EPAs are for ground mounted installations. Poles mounted on structures (such as bridges and buildings) must consider vibration and coefficient of height factors beyond this   
 general guide; Consult local and federal standards

•  Wind Induced Vibration brought on by steady, unidirectional winds and other unpredictable aerodynamic forces are not included in wind velocity ratings. Consult Hubbell Lighting’s Pole Vibration   
 Application Guide for environmental risk factors and design considerations. https://hubbellcdn.com/ohwassets/HLI/outdoor/resources/literature/files/Pole_Wind_Induced_Flyer_HLOI0022.pdf

•  Extreme Wind Events like, Hurricanes, Typhoons, Cyclones, or Tornadoes may expose poles to flying debris, wind shear or other detrimental effects not included in wind velocity ratings

Due to our continued efforts to improve our products, product specifications are subject to change without notice.

Wind-speed Website disclaimer:
Hubbell Lighting has no connection to the linked website and makes no representations as to its accuracy.  While the information presented on this third-party website provides a useful 
starting point for analyzing wind conditions,  Hubbell Lighting has not verified any of the information on this third party website and assumes no responsibility or liability for its accuracy. 
The material presented in the windspeed website should not be used or relied upon for any specific application without competent examination and verification of its accuracy, suitability 
and applicability by engineers or other licensed professionals. Hubbell Lighting Inc. does not intend that the use of this information replace the sound judgment of such competent 
professionals, having experience and knowledge in the field of practice, nor to substitute for the standard of care required of such professionals in interpreting and applying the results 
of the windspeed report provided by this website. Users of the information from this third party website assume all liability arising from such use. Use of the output of these referenced 
websites do not imply approval by the governing building code bodies responsible for building code approval and interpretation for the building site described by latitude/longitude 
location in the windspeed report. http://windspeed.atcouncil.org

NOTES

https://hubbellcdn.com/ohwassets/HLI/outdoor/resources/literature/files/Pole_Wind_Induced_Flyer_HLOI0022.pdf


Page 1/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

FEATURES

• Small size companion to Viper Large

• Wide choice of different LED wattage configurations

• Nine optical distributions 

• Designed to replace HID lighting up to 400W MH or HPS

• Suitable for wet locations


 Photom

etry


 Viper Brochure


 D
im

ensional D
raw

ings


 EN
ERG

EN
I


 SiteSync

 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CONSTRUCTION
• Manufactured with die cast aluminum

• Coated with a polyester finish that meets 
ASTM B117 corrosion test requirements and 
ASTM D522 cracking and loss of adhesion  
test requirements

• IFS polyester powder-coat electrostatically 
applied and thermocured. IFS finish consists 
of a five stage pretreatment regimen with a 
polymer primer sealer and top coated with 
a thermoset super TGIC polyester powder 
coat finish

• The finish meets the AAMA 2604 
performance specification which includes 
passing a 3,000-hour salt spray test for 
corrosion resistance and resists cracking or 
loss of adhesion per ASTM D522 and resists 
surface impacts of up to 160 inch-pounds

• External hardware is corrosion resistant

OPTICS
• Cartridge is held together with internal brass 

standoffs soldered to the board so that it 
can be field replaced as a one-piece optical 
system 

• One-piece silicone gasket ensures a 
weatherproof seal around each individual 
optic 

• One-piece optical cartridge system 
consisting of an LED engine, optics, gasket 
and stainless steel bezel

INSTALLATION
• Mounting options for horizontal arm, vertical 

tenon or traditional arm mounting available. 
Mounting hardware included

ELECTRICAL
• Luminaire accepts 100V through 277V, 347V 

or 480V input 50 Hz to 60 Hz (UNV) 

CONTROLS (CONTINUED)
• In addition, Viper can be specified with 

SiteSync™ wireless control system for 
reduction in energy and maintenance costs 
while optimizing light quality 24/7

CERTIFICATIONS
• DLC® (DesignLights Consortium)  

Qualified. Please refer to the DLC  
website for specific product qualifications  
at www.designlights.org

• Certified to UL 1598 and UL 8750

• 3G rated for ANSI C136.31 high vibration 
applications with MAF mounting

• IDA approved 

• This product qualifies as a “designated 
country construction material” per FAR 
52.225-11 Buy American-Construction 
Materials under Trade Agreements effective 
04/23/2020. See Buy American Solutions.

WARRANTY
• 5 year warranty

• See HLI Commercial and Industrial Outdoor 
Lighting Warranty for additional information

SPECIFICATIONS

ELECTRICAL (CONTINUED)
• Power factor is ≥ .90 at full load

• Dimming drivers are standard, but CD must 
be selected in options to obtain external  
wiring leads for dimming controls

• Component-to-component wiring within the 
luminaire may carry no more than 80% of 
rated load and is certified by UL for use at 
600VAC at 90°C or higher

• Plug disconnects are certified by UL for use 
at 600 VAC, 13A or higher. 13A rating applies 
to primary (AC) side only

• Fixture electrical compartment contains all 
LED driver components

• Optional 7-pin ANSI C136.41-2013 Twist-
Lock® photo control receptacle available. 
Compatible with ANSI C136.41 external 
wireless control devices

• Ambient operating temperature -40°C to 25°C

• Surge protection: 20kA

• Lifeshield™ Circuit (see Electrical Data)

CONTROLS
• Available with an optional passive infrared 

(PIR) motion sensor capable of detecting 
motion 360° around the luminaire. When no 
motion is detected for the specified time, the 
motion response system reduces the wattage 
to factory preset level, reducing the light 
level accordingly. When motion is detected 
by the PIR sensor, the luminaire returns to full 
wattage and full light output. Please contact 
Beacon Products if project requirements vary 
from standard configuration  

• Available with Energeni for optional set 
dimming, timed dimming with simple delay, 
or timed dimming based on time of night

KEY DATA

Lumen Range 4,045–16,216

Wattage Range 39–136

Efficacy Range (LPW) 100–124

Reported Life (Hours) L70>60,000

Input Current Range (Amps) 0.1– 1.1

CATALOG #:

 Viper Large

RELATED PRODUCTS

*3000K and warmer CCTs only

OPTICS

CONTROL TECHNOLOGY
™

See Certification
 Specifications

BUY 
AMERICAN
SOLUTIONS

See Certification
 Specifications

BUY 
AMERICAN
SOLUTIONS

https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168#prod-photometry-section
https://hubbellcdn.com/brochure/beac-brochure-viper-web.pdf
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Outdoor-Lighting-Accessories-Components/Energeni/p/249071
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/p/2056434
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/p/2056434
http://www.designlights.org
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/buyamerican
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/warranty
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/warranty
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Outdoor-Lighting-Accessories-Components/Energeni/p/249071
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/p/2056434
http://www.beaconproducts.com/products/energeni
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/wiSCAPE-Lighting-Controls/wiSCAPE-Wireless-Outdoor-Lighting-System/p/2135914
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/NX-Distributed-Intelligence-Lighting-Controls/NX-Distributed-Intelligence/p/2135913
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/buyamerican	
wright
Text Box
S1 & S2

wright
Rectangle



 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

Page 2/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

ORDERING GUIDE

VPS – – – – – –
Series LED Engine CCT/CRI 7 Distribution Rotation Voltage

VPS Viper 
Small

24L-39 39W, LED array

24L-55 55W, LED array

36L-65 65W, LED array

36L-80 80W, LED array

48L-110  110W, LED array

60L-136 136W, LED array

3K7 3000K, 70 CRI

4K7 4000K, 70 CRI

5K7 5000K, 70 CRI

FR Type 1/Front Row

2 Type 2

3 Type 3

4F (formerly 4) Type 4 

4W Type 4 Wide

5QM Type 5QM

5R Type 5R (rectangular)

5W Type 5W (round wide)

TC Tennis Court

CR Corner Right

CL Corner Left

Blank No rotation

L Optic rotation left5

R Optic rotation right5

UNV 120–277V

347 347V

480 480V

– – –
Mounting Color Control Options Options

A Rectangular Arm (formerly RA) for 
square or round pole

MAF Mast Arm Fitter (formerly SF2) for 23/8" 
OD horizontal arm

K Knuckle (formerly PK2) limit to 30° tilt 
or 23/8" OD horizontal arm or vertical 
tenon

WB Wall Bracket

AD Universal Arm for square pole

AD3 Adapter for 2.4"–4.1" round pole

AD4 Adapter for 4.2"–5.3" round pole

AD5 Adapter for 5.5"–5.9" round pole

AD6 Adapter for 6.0"–6.5" round pole

BLT Black Matte Textured

BLS Black Gloss Smooth

DBT Dark Bronze Matte Textured

DBS Dark Bronze Gloss Smooth

GTT Graphite Matte Textured

LGS Light Grey Gloss Smooth

PSS Platinum Silver Smooth

WHT White Matte Textured

WHS White Gloss Smooth

VGT Verde Green Textured

Color Option

CC Custom Color

NXWE NX Wireless Enabled (module + radio)

NXSPW_F Nx Wireless, PIR Occ. Sensor, Daylight Havesting7

NXSP_F NX, PIR Occ. Sensor, Daylight Harvesting7

WIR Wireless Controls, wiSCAPE

Control Options

7PR 7-Pin Receptacle only (shorting cap, photo control, or wireless 
control provided by others)

7PR-SC 7-Pin Receptacle w/Shorting Cap

7PR-TL 7-Pin Receptacle w/Twist-Lock® photo control

SCP/_F Programmable Occupancy Sensor w/ daylight control 1, 2,6

GENI-XX ENERGENI3

SWP SiteSync Pre-Commission1,4

SWPM_F SiteSync Pre-Commission w/ Sensor 1, 2, 4

BC Backshield 
(available for 
FR, 2, 3, 4, 
4W Optics)

CD Continuous 
Dimming

F Fusing

TB Terminal 
Block

Example: VPS–24L–55–4K7–4W–UNV–A–DBT–TL–GENI–04–BC

CATALOG #

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

House Side Shield Accessories

HSS/VP-S/90-FB/XXX 90° shield front or back

HSS/VP-S/90-LR/XXX 90° shield left or right

HSS/VP-S/270-FB/XXX 270° shield front or back

HSS/VP-S/270-LR/XXX 270° shield left or right

HSS/VP-S/360/XXX Full shield

Replace XXX with notation for desired finish color. Refer to page 
8 for shield images.

Accessories and Services (Ordered Separately)

SCP-REMOTE Remote Control for SCP/_F option. Order at least one per project to program and control the occupancy 
sensor

SWUSB* SiteSync interface software loaded on USB flash drive for use with owner supplied PC (Windows based 
only). Includes SiteSync license, software and USB radio bridge node

SWTAB* Windows tablet and SiteSync interface software. Includes tablet with preloaded software, SiteSync 
license and USB radio bridge node

SWBRG SiteSync USB radio bridge node only. Order if a replacement is required or if an extra bridge node 
is requested

SW7PR+ SiteSync 7-Pin on fixture module On/Off/Dim, Daylight Sensor 120–480VAC

BIRD-SPIKE-3 Bird Spikes

* When ordering SiteSync at least one of these two interface options must be ordered per project. 
+ Available as a SiteSync retrofit solution for fixtures with an existing 7-pin receptacle.

Hubbell Control Solutions — Accessories (Sold Separately)

NX Distributed Intelligence™

NXOFM-
1R1D-UNV

On-fixture Module (7-pin), On / Off / Dim, 
Daylight Sensor with HubbNET Radio 
and Bluetooth® Radio, 120–480VAC

wiSCAPE® Lighting Control

WIR-RME-L On-fixture Module (7-pin or 5-pin), 
On / Off / Dim, Daylight Sensor with 
wiSCAPE Radio, 110–480VAC 

For additional information related to these accessories please 
visit www.hubbellcontrolsolutions.com. Options provided for use 
with integrated sensor, please view specification sheet ordering 
information table for details.

Mounting Accessories

VPL-AD-RPA3 2.4"–4.1" Round Pole 
Adapter for AD arm

VPL-AD-RPA4 4.2"–5.3" Round Pole 
Adapter for AD arm

VPL-AD-RPA5 5.5"–5.9" Round Pole 
Adapter for AD arm

VPL-AD-RPA6 6.0"–6.5" Round Pole 
Adapter for AD arm

Notes:

1 Not available with other wireless control or sensor options

2 Specify mounting height; 8 = 8’ or less, 40 = 14’ to 30’

3 Specify routine setting code (example GENI-04).  See ENERGENI brochure and 
instructions for setting table and options.  Not available with sensor or SiteSync options

4 Specify group and zone at time of order.  See www.hubbelllighting.com/sitesync for 
further details. Order at least one SiteSync interface accessory SWUSB or SWTAB.  
Each option contains SiteSync License, GUI, and Bridge Node

5 Only available with FR, 2, 3, 4, 4W and 5R distributions 

6 Specify mounting height; 8=8’, 30=30

CATALOG #:

https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/
http://www.hubbellcontrolsolutions.com
https://hubbellcdn.com/brochure/energeni_brochure_web.pdf
https://hubbellcdn.com/installationmanuals/energeni_instruction_sheet.pdf
http://www.hubbelllighting.com/sitesync
wright
Text Box
S1 & S2

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Rectangle

wright
Callout
S2 only 

wright
Highlight

wright
Callout
S1  only 

wright
Highlight

wright
Callout
S1 only 



 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

Page 3/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

CONTROLS

wiSCAPE™:
Supports remote management, monitoring and metering of outdoor wireless lighting   
applications such as smart campuses, smart cities, parking lots, parking lots and roadways.

NX Integrated Controls Reference

NX Option Sensor Networkable Scheduling Occupancy Daylight 
Harvesting

0–10V 
Dimming

On/off 
Control

Bluetooth® App 
Programming

NX Networked – Wireless

NXOFM-
1R1D-UNV SCLNX Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes, Bluetooth App

wiSCAPE Reference

wiSCAPE 
Option Sensor Networkable Scheduling Occupancy Daylight 

Harvesting
0–10V 

Dimming
On/off 
Control

Bluetooth® App 
Programming

Networked – Wireless

WIR-RME-L WIR-RME-L Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes wiSCAPE Gateway

™


 N

X D
esign & Application G

uide


 N
X Brochure


 w

iSCAPE

SiteSync — Precommissioned Ordering Information:
When ordering a fixture with the SiteSync lighting control option, additional information will be required to complete the order. The SiteSync 
Commissioning Form or alternate schedule information must be completed. This form includes Project location, Group information, and 
Operating schedules. For more detailed information please visit the SiteSync family page on our website or contact Hubbell Lighting tech 
support at 864-678-1000.

SiteSync fixtures with Motion control (SWPM) require the mounting height of the fixture for selection of the lens.

Examples: VP-L/80L-235/4K7/3/UNV/A/DB/SWP/  SiteSync only
 VP-L/80L-235/4K7/3/UNV/A/DB/SWPM-40F/   SiteSync with Motion Control

SiteSync 7-Pin Module:
• SiteSync features in a new form
• Available as an accessory for new construction or 
retrofit applications (with existing 7-Pin receptacle) 
• Does not interface with occupancy sensors

SW7PR

NX Distributed Intelligence™ Lighting Controls:
Supports both indoor and outdoor applications in a variety of deployment options: wired, wireless and hybrid.   
Integrates with and enables a wide array of luminaires including those with SpectraSync Color Tuning Technology.


 SiteSync

https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/
https://hubbellcdn.com/brochure/HCS_NX_In-Fixture_Solution_Guide.pdf
https://hubbellcdn.com/brochure/HCS_NX_In-Fixture_Solution_Guide.pdf
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/wiSCAPE-Lighting-Controls/wiSCAPE-Wireless-Outdoor-Lighting-System/p/2135914
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/wiSCAPE-Lighting-Controls/wiSCAPE-Wireless-Outdoor-Lighting-System/p/2135914
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/NX-Distributed-Intelligence-Lighting-Controls/NX-Distributed-Intelligence/p/2135913
https://hubbellcdn.com/brochure/NX_Design_Application_Guide.pdf
https://hubbellcdn.com/brochure/HCS_NX_Brochure.pdf
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/wiSCAPE-Lighting-Controls/wiSCAPE-Wireless-Outdoor-Lighting-System/p/2135914
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/p/2056434
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/p/2056434
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbellcontrolsolutions/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Lighting-Controls-Sensors/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/SiteSync-Lighting-Control/p/2056434
wright
Text Box
S1 & S2



 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

Page 4/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

5K
(5000K nominal, 70 CRI)

4K
(4000K nominal, 70 CRI)

3K
(3000K nominal, 70 CRI)

# of 
LEDs

DRIVE CURRENT 
(mA)

SYSTEM 
WATTS

DISTRIBUTION 
TYPE LUMENS LPW B U G LUMENS LPW B U G LUMENS LPW B U G

24 500mA 39W

FR 4689 120 1 0 0 4665 120 1 0 0 4432 114 1 0 0
2 4523 116 1 0 1 4500 115 1 0 1 4275 110 1 0 1
3 4436 114 1 0 1 4414 113 1 0 1 4194 108 1 0 1

4F 4362 112 1 0 2 4340 111 1 0 2 4123 106 0 0 2
4W 4280 110 1 0 2 4258 109 1 0 2 4045 104 1 0 2

5QM 4442 114 2 0 1 4420 113 2 0 1 4199 108 2 0 0
5R 4472 115 2 0 2 4450 114 2 0 2 4227 108 2 0 2
5W 4335 112 3 0 1 4336 111 3 0 1 4114 105 3 0 1
TC 4561 117 1 0 1 4538 116 1 0 1 4311 111 1 0 1
CL 4758 122 1 0 2 4758 122 1 0 2 4329 111 1 0 1
CR 4773 122 1 0 2 4773 122 1 0 2 4361 112 1 0 1

24 700 mA 55W

FR 6357 118 1 0 1 6486 120 1 0 1 5804 107 1 0 1
2 6132 114 1 0 1 6257 116 1 0 2 5599 104 1 0 1
3 6015 111 1 0 2 6137 114 1 0 2 5492 102 1 0 2

4F 5921 110 1 0 2 6034 112 1 0 2 5400 100 1 0 2
4W 5793 108 1 0 2 5909 110 1 0 2 5272 98 1 0 2

5QM 6022 112 2 0 1 6145 114 2 0 1 5499 102 2 0 1
5R 6063 112 3 0 3 6187 115 3 0 3 5536 103 3 0 3
5W 5908 109 3 0 1 6028 112 3 0 1 5908 102 3 0 1
TC 6183 113 1 0 1 6309 118 1 0 1 5645 105 1 0 1
CL 6707 122 1 0 2 6707 122 1 0 2 6117 111 1 0 2
CR 6729 122 1 0 2 6729 122 1 0 2 6143 112 1 0 2

36 560 mA 65W

FR 7864 121 1 0 1 8041 124 1 0 1 7189 111 1 0 1
2 7586 117 1 0 2 7757 119 1 0 2 6934 107 1 0 2
3 7441 114 1 0 2 7609 117 1 0 2 6802 105 1 0 2

4F 7317 110 1 0 2 7482 112 1 0 2 6688 100 1 0 2
4W 8690 108 1 0 2 8864 110 1 0 2 7908 98 1 0 2

5QM 7450 115 3 0 1 7618 117 3 0 1 6810 105 3 0 1
5R 7501 115 3 0 3 7670 118 3 0 3 6857 105 3 0 3
5W 7309 112 3 0 2 7473 115 3 0 2 6681 103 3 0 1
TC 7540 116 1 0 1 7694 118 1 0 1 7694 122 1 0 2
CL 8179 126 2 0 2 8179 126 2 0 2 7467 115 1 0 2
CR 8205 126 2 0 2 8205 126 2 0 2 7492 115 1 0 2 

36 700 mA 80W

FR 9535 118 1 0 1 9730 120 1 0 1 8706 107 1 0 1
2 9197 114 1 0 2 9385 116 1 0 2 8398 104 1 0 2
3 9022 111 1 0 2 9206 114 1 0 2 8238 102 1 0 2

4F 8871 110 1 0 2 9052 112 1 0 2 8100 100 1 0 2
4W 11587 108 1 0 3 11819 110 1 0 3 10544 98 1 0 3

5QM 9033 112 3 0 1 9217 114 3 0 1 8248 102 3 0 1
5R 9095 112 3 0 3 9280 115 3 0 3 8304 103 3 0 3
5W 8861 109 3 0 2 9043 112 3 0 2 8092 100 3 0 2
TC 9275 115 1 0 1 9464 118 1 0 1 8468 105 1 0 1
CL 10060 126 2 0 2 10060 126 2 0 2 9184 115 2 0 2
CR 10093 126 2 0 2 10093 126 2 0 2 9215 115 2 0 2

48 700 mA 110W

FR 12713 118 1 0 1 12973 120 2 0 1 11608 107 1 0 1
2 12263 114 2 0 2 12513 116 2 0 2 11197 104 2 0 2
3 12029 111 2 0 2 12275 114 2 0 2 10984 102 1 0 2

4F 11828 110 1 0 3 12069 112 1 0 3 10800 100 1 0 2
4W 11609 108 1 0 3 11841 110 1 0 3 10564 98 1 0 3

5QM 12044 112 3 0 2 12290 114 3 0 2 10997 102 3 0 1
5R 12126 112 3 0 3 12374 115 3 0 3 11072 103 3 0 3
5W 12126 109 4 0 2 12057 112 4 0 2 10789 100 4 0 2
RC 12366 115 1 0 2 12619 118 1 0 1 11290 105 1 0 2
CL 13414 122 2 0 3 13414 122 2 0 3 12246 111 2 0 2
CR 13458 122 2 0 3 13458 122 2 0 3 12287 112 2 0 2

60 700 mA 136W

FR 15891 117 2 0 2 16216 120 2 0 2 14511 107 2 0 1
2 15329 113 2 0 2 15642 116 2 0 2 13997 103 2 0 2
3 15037 111 2 0 3 15344 113 2 0 3 13730 101 2 0 3

4F 14784 109 1 0 3 15086 111 1 0 3 13500 100 1 0 3
4W 14802 109 2 0 3 15104 112 2 0 3 13515 100 2 0 3

5QM 15055 111 3 0 2 15362 114 3 0 2 13747 102 3 0 2
5R 15158 112 4 0 4 15469 114 4 0 4 13841 102 4 0 4
5W 14781 109 4 0 2 15083 111 4 0 2 13495 100 4 0 2
TC 15458 115 1 0 2 15834 118 1 0 2 14113 105 1 0 2
CL 16768 123 3 0 3 16768 123 3 0 3 15309 113 2 0 3
CR 16823 124 3 0 3 16823 124 3 0 3 15359 113 2 0 3

DELIVERED LUMENS

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/
wright
Text Box
S1 & S2



 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

Page 5/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

21.75"
(552mm)

16.75"
(425mm)

18.75"
(476.3mm)

22.50"
(572mm)

24.75"
(629mm)

11.25"
(286mm)

6.63"
(168.4mm)

6.00"
(152.4mm)

6.00"
(152.4mm)

2⅜" OD

0.50" (4x)

5.00"
(127mm)

5.50"
(140mm)

7.75"
(197mm)

4.88"
(124mm) 1.00"

(25.4mm)
0.56"
(14.2mm)

A Arm (formerly RA)

MAF (formerly SF2)

2⅜" Adjustable Knuckle (K) (formerly PK2)

Wall Bracket (WB)

AD Decorative Arm

Side View

Side View

Back View

Limit to 30° tilt. Sensor, photocell and wireless 
controls should not be tilted above horizontal.

Back View

Accepts 2⅜" OD tenon, min 5" long.

4.13"
(105mm)

Front

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

DIMENSIONS

Weight 15.0 lbs 
 (6.8 kg)

EPA .67 ft2

See page 9 for 
mounting details.

https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/
wright
Text Box
S1 & S2

wright
Rectangle



 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

Page 6/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

PHOTOMETRY

Type FR - Front Row/Auto OpticType FR – Front Row/Auto Optic

Type 4Type 4

Type 2Type 2

Type 4 WideType 4 Wide

Type 5R (rectangular)Type 5R (rectangular)

Type 3Type 3

Type 5QMType 5QM

Type 5W (round wide)Type 5W (round wide)

The following diagrams represent the general distribution options offered for this product. For detailed information on specific product configurations, 
see website photometric test reports.

Type TC (tennis court)Type TC

https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Large-Strike-Optic/p/249167#prod-photometry-section
wright
Text Box
S1 & S2

wright
Callout
S1 only 

wright
Callout
S2 only 



 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

Page 7/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

ELECTRICAL DATA

# OF LEDS NUMBER OF DRIVERS DRIVE CURRENT (mA) INPUT VOLTAGE (V) SYSTEM POWER (w) CURRENT (Amps)

24 1 500 mA

120

39

0.33
277 0.14
347 0.11
480 0.08

24 1 700 mA

120

55

0.5
277 0.2
347 0.2
480 0.1

36 1

525 mA

120

65

0.65
277 0.28
347 0.22
480 0.16

700 mA

120

80

0.7
277 0.3
347 0.2
480 0.2

48 1 700 mA

120

110

0.9
277 0.4
347 0.3
480 0.2

60 1 700 mA

120

136

1.1
277 0.5
347 0.4
480 0.3

PROJECTED LUMEN MAINTENANCE

Ambient Temp. 0 25,000 50,000 TM-21-11  60,000 1 100,000 Calculated L70 
(HOURS)

25°C / 77°C 1 0.97 0.95 0.95 0.92 >377,000

1 Projected per IESNA TM-21-11.
Data references the extrapolated performance projections for the 60 LED base model in a 25°C ambient, 
based on 10,000 hours of LED testing per IESNA LM-80-08.

CATALOG #:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

LEFT ROTATED OPTIC RIGHT ROTATED OPTIC

ROTATION OPTIONS 

LIFESHIELD™ CIRCUIT
Protects luminaire from excessive temperature. The device activates at a specific, factory-preset temperature and progressively reduces power over a finite 
temperature range. Operation is smooth and undetectable to the eye. Thermal circuit is designed to “fail on”, allowing the luminaire to revert to full power in the 
event of an interruption of its power supply or faulty wiring connection to the drivers. The device can co-exist with other 0–10V control devices (occupancy sensors, 
external dimmers, etc.)

https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/


 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

Page 8/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

DRILL PATTERN

TENON TOP POLE BRACKET ACCESSORIES (ORDER SEPARATELY) 

HOUSE SIDE SHIELD FIELD INSTALL ACCESSORIES

EPA

4" suggested 
distance from 

top of pole 2.50"

2X Ø5/16"

Ø5/8"

Rectangular Arm
Ø4" Pole
Ø5" Pole
Ø6" Pole

Compatible with Pole drill pattern B3
RECTANGULAR ARM (A) Config. EPA

 3 @ 120˚  1.68

 3 @ 90˚ 1.73

 4 @ 90˚ 2.12

Config. EPA

 1  .67

 2 @ 90˚ 1.06

 2 @ 180˚ 1.34

(2 3/8" OD tenon) 

TENON TOP POLE BRACKET ACCESSORIES (Order Separately) 

SETAVP-XX Square tenon adapter (4 at 90°) for A - Rectangular Arm mounting option only

RETAVP-XX  Round tenon adapter (4 at 90°) for A - Rectangular Arm mounting option only

SETA2XX Square tenon adapter (4 at 90°) for AD - Universal Arm mounting option only

RETA2XX Round tenon adapter (4 at 90°) for AD3 - Universal Arm mounting option only

HSS/VP-S/90-FB/XXX 
90° shield front or back 
(2 shields shown)

HSS/VP-S/90-LR/XXX
90° shield left or right 
(1 shield shown in left orientation)

HSS/VP-S/270-FB/XXX
270° shield front or back 
(1 shield shown in back orientation)

HSS/VP-S/270-LR/XXX
270° shield left or right 
(1 shield shown in right orientation)

HSS/VP-S/360/XXX
Full shield 
(1 shield shown)

https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/
wright
Text Box
S1 & S2

wright
Rectangle

wright
Callout
S1 only 



 VIPER S
SMALL VIPER LUMINAIRE

Page 9/9 Rev. 11/03/20
BEA-VIPER-S-SPEC

© 2020 Beacon Products, a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. 
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 / Tel 864.678.1000 / Website www.beaconproducts.com

All product and company names, logos and product identifiers are trademarks ™ or registered trademarks ® of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. 
or their respective owners. Use of them does not necessarily imply any affiliation with or endorsement by such respective owners.

DATE: LOCATION:

TYPE: PROJECT:

CATALOG #:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

AD ARM MOUNTING INSTRUCTIONS

Mounting Notes:

Catalog Number: VP-AD-ACC-XX
Instruction Sheet: ��������

Shipping Package Contents:
Viper AD Arm
Viper AD Arm Adapter
Viper AD Arm Wireway Cover
Sliding Nut Block Assembly

1/2-13 Bolts (2)
1/2 Split Washers (2)
1/2 Flat Washers (2)
1/4-20 UNC Button Head Screws (2)
10-24 UNC Button Head Screw (1)

Material: Aluminum
Finish: Powder Paint
Weight: 3 lbs

VP-AD-ACC   DECORATIVE ARM
VIPER ACCESSORY

Beacon Products
a division of Hubbell Lighting Inc.
2041 58th Avenue Circle East
Bradenton, FL 34203

Technical Support: (800) 345-4928
Fax: (941) 751-5535

www.beaconproducts.com

Compatible with: VIPER

1. Position the Adapter to align top 1/2" hole with the pre-drilled holes in 
pole.  

2. Lower the Sliding Nut Block inside pole noting the side that is placed 
against the inside pole wall. 

3. Place one ½-13 Hex Bolt with lock and flat washer through the botton 
hole in the pole and tighten into the lower nut on the Sliding Nut Block. 

4. Place the second ½-13 Hex Bolt with lock and flat washer through the 
top hole in the pole, locate and tighten into the top nut on the Sliding Nut 
Block. 

5. Secure by torquing (2) 1/2" Bolts at 75 ft-lbs through Arm Adapter and 
Pole and into the Sliding Nut Block. 

6. Feed wires through the pole and adapter so that it can be easily 
accessed for wiring when the arm is installed.   

7. Position Viper Decorative Arm over AD Arm Adapter flush against the 
pole so that the lugs engage the mating details in the adapter. 

8. Secure by torquing (2) ¼-20 Screws at 20 ft-lbs through Viper Decorative 
Arm and into threaded holes in the AD Arm Adapter. 

9. Secure by torquing (2) 3/8" Set Screws at 20 ft-lbs through Viper AD Arm 
and end into ths AD Arm Adapter. 

10. Consult fixture installation instructions to complete the installation. 

Sliding nut block 
fits inside pole

Round pole example 
RPA required only for  
attachment to round poles

Round pole adapter 
(when applicable)

VIPER AD Arm

Wireway cover

Compatible with pole drill pattern S2
DECORATIVE ARM (AD)

COVER

CAST ADAPTER

CAST ADAPTER

THREADED ROD
GASKET

FLAT WASHER

SCREW
COVER

LOCKWASHER
HEX NUT

RETAINER WASHER

ARM

CAST ARMFIXTURE

TO
HOUSING
(3-HOLE PATTERN END)

SQUARE POLE COVER

POLE COVER
POLE COVER

POLE TOP

.875

Ø.562
HOLE

3.875

3.5

Ø.562
3 HOLES

ROUND POLE

ROUND POLE

SQUARE POLE

SQUARE & ROUND POLES UPSWEPT ARM MOUNT
SQUARE & ROUND POLES

#2 DRILL PATTERN FOR POLES

NUT PLATE

NUT PLATE

NUT PLATE

SQUARE POLE

https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/Products/Lighting-Controls/Commercial-Outdoor-Lighting/Area-Site-Roadway/Viper-Small-Strike-Optic/p/249168
https://www.hubbell.com/hubbelllightingci/en/
https://www.hubbell.com/beacon/en/
wright
Text Box
S1 & S2


	11-10-2021 PC Agenda
	Minutes Combined 10-13-21
	10-13-21 PC Minutes - Draft
	10-13-2021 Derm Institute Transcript - Small

	Draft Findings and Recommendations - 920 N. York Road
	Draft Findings and Recommendations - 33 E. First Street - PC 11.10.21
	Premier Martial Arts Studio Special Use - Full Packet - Schedule PH
	Zoning Map and Project Location
	Aerial - 777 N. York Road
	Birds Eye View - 777 N. York Road
	Applications and Exhibits
	Plan Commission Application
	Certificate of Zoning Compliance Application
	Special Use Permit
	Ownership Lease Authorization


	Indifference Salon Signs - FINAL Full Packet - PC Staff Report - 11.10.2021
	2. Zoning Map and Project Location
	3. Birds Eye View - 6 W. Hinsdale
	4. Street View -  6 W. Hinsdale
	5. Applications and Exhibits
	indiff01 AppWindow
	indiff01 etchedsamples
	indiff01 signDesign
	Indiff-ownerLetter HinsdaleSign9-30-21


	ProMedica Ground Sign - Full PC Packet
	1. Promedica Ground Sign - 600 W. Ogden Avenue - PC Staff Report - 11.10.2021
	2. Zoning Map and Project Location
	3. Aerial View - 600 W. Ogden
	4. Street View
	5. Applications and Exhibits

	36 E. Hinsdale Avenue - Full Packet - Exterior Changes and Signage - PC 11.10.2021
	36 E. Hinsdale Avenue - Exterior Changes and Signage - PC 11.10.2021
	2. Zoning Map and Project Location
	3. Birds Eye View - 36 E. Hinsdale
	4. Street View - 36 E. Hinsdale
	5. Title 14, Section 14-5-2 - COA Review Criteria
	6. Downtown Historic District Map
	7. National Register of Historic Places Survey Sheet
	8. 2003 Survey Sheets
	9. Applications and Exhibits

	4 N. Washington - Full Packet Chase Bank Parking Lot Lighting - PC 11.10.2021
	4 N. Washington - Chase Bank Parking Lot Lighting - PC 11.10.2021
	2. Zoning Map and Project Location
	3. Aerial View - 4 N. Washington
	4. Birds Eye View - 4 N. Washington
	5. Street View - 4 N. Washington
	Applications and Exhibits
	19147 Photometric Plan_V7_211101
	lnc2_spec_redesign_211101
	spec_sheet_sss_pole_beacon_211101
	Viper_Small_LED_Strke Optic_spec_sheet_211101
	19147 Site Plan CD-A1.0 Site Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	19147 Site Plan CD-A1.0 Site Plan





	Date: 
	Location: 
	Type: 
	Project: 
	Your Order: 
	Your Order 3: 
	Output 3: 
	Output 2: 
	CRI 2: 
	Voltage 3: 
	Voltage 2: 
	Color Temp 3: 
	Color Temp 4: 
	Options 3: 
	Options 5: 
	Options 4: 
	Check Box 119: Off
	Check Box 118: Off
	Check Box 117: Off
	Check Box 116: Off
	Check Box 115: Off
	Check Box 114: Off
	Check Box 121: Off
	Check Box 120: Off
	Check Box 122: Off
	Date 3: 
	Location 3: 
	Project 3: 
	Type 3: 
	Your Order 4: 
	Date 4: 
	Location 4: 
	Project 4: 
	Type 4: 
	Your Order 5: 
	Date 1: 
	Location 1: 
	Project 1: 
	Type 1: 
	Your Order 1: 
	Text Field 2: 
	Text Field 3: 
	Text Field 4: 
	Text Field 6: 
	Text Field 14: 
	Catalog #: 
	LED Engine: 
	CCT/CRI: 
	Distribution: 
	Rotation: 
	Voltage: 
	Check Box 1: Off
	Check Box 2: Off
	Check Box 3: Off
	Check Box 4: Off
	Check Box 5: Off
	Check Box 6: Off
	Check Box 7: Off
	Check Box 8: Off
	Check Box 9: Off
	Check Box 10: Off
	Check Box 11: Off
	Check Box 12: Off
	Check Box 13: Off
	Check Box 14: Off
	Check Box 48: Off
	Check Box 15: Off
	Check Box 16: Off
	Mounting: 
	Color: 
	Control Options: 
	Options: 
	Check Box 46: Off
	Check Box 45: Off
	Check Box 43: Off
	Check Box 42: Off


